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ORDER OF BUSINESS CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: March 19, 2007, April 2, 2007, April 16, 2007 and June 4, 2007.
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: None.

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY

1. Upcoming Meeting of Monday, July 16, 2007
a. Code Text Amendment 06-0004 to revise Chapter 16.70 — Screening and Landscaping Regulations.

Continued from the meeting of April 16, 2007 to the meeting of July 16, 2007 has been continued
August 20, 2007. Staff Person: Katherine Donovan, 648-4327,
b. Tentative Map 06-0003 to create 23 parcels for Skyline Estates subdivision. Staff Person: Marcus
Adams, 648-5392.
c. Site Development 06-0022 for a second story addition in the View District located at 35 Burnham
St. Staff Person: Marcus Adams 648-5392.

2. a. Receiving Planning Commission Packets Electronically Starting July 16, 2007
CITY ATTORNEY REPORT

REPORT OF THE PRESIDING OFFICER AND MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION AND
LIAISON REPORTS

1. Report of the Presiding Officer and members of the Planning Commission
2. Council Liaison to Planning Commission

3. Planning Commission Liaison to City Council

COMMUNITY FORUM

Members of the public wishing to address the Commission on items not on the agenda are requested to submit a
completed speaker card to the Secretary. The Commission may take information but may not take action on any item
not on the agenda.

CONSENT CALENDAR AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Consent Calendar items appear below in section K, with the Secretary’s or City Attorney’s designation as such.
Members of the public wishing to address the Commission on Consent Calendar items are asked to address the
Secretary and submit a completed speaker card prior to the approval of the agenda. Such requests shall be
granted, and items will be addressed in the order in which they appear in the agenda. After making any changes
to the agenda, the agenda shall be approved.

All matters are approved under one motion unless requested to be removed for discussion by a commissioner or
any member of the public.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Specific Plan 98-01C and Code Text Amendment 06-0006 for an amendment to Architectural Heritage
and Historic Preservation Ordinance. Staff Person: Michelle Hightower, 648-4506.
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2. Use Permit 06-0019 is an application for conversion of a commercial building into a church, located at
2020 Sacramento Street. Proposed CEQA Action: Exempt per Section 14332, “In-Fill Development”.
Staff Person: Devan Reiff 649-3409.

3. Use Permit 07-0002 — Reconsideration of tow yard located at 107 Couch Street. The applicant is
proposing a tow storage yard with capacity for 30 vehicles. Access to the yard would be from Couch
Street only. No structures are proposed for the yard which is enclosed by a chain link fence with vinyl
slats. The applicant operates a towing storage yard on Maine Street and the current proposed yard would
serve as an over-flow yard for the Maine Street lot. Proposed CEQA Action: Exempt per Section 15332,
“In-Fill Development”. Staff Person: Marcus Adams, 648-5392.

L. OTHER ITEMS
Election of officers.

M.  ADJOURNMENT
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A

B.

The meeting was called to order at 7:01 p.m.

The pledge of allegiance to the flag was recited.

ROLL CALL:

Present: Commissioners McConnell, Manning, Legalos, Turley, Saivadori,
Peterman.

Absent: Engelman.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES.
None.
CONSENT CALENDAR AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

1. Upcoming Special Meeting of Tuesday, March 20, 2007, 7:00 PM ,
a. Draft Inclusionary Housing Ordinance, continued from March 19, 2007.

Iltem E1 was pulled from the Consent Calendar by Don Hazen and placed as a Public
Hearing Item K1. The special meeting of Tuesday, March 20, 2007 at 7:00 PM was
canceled by a unanimous vote of the Commission. As modified Consent Calendar and
Agenda were unanimously approved on a motion by Commissioner Peterman.

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY

1. Upcoming Meeting of Monday, April 2, 2007
a. Site Development 06-0045 for a single-family home in the Residential View
District located at 516 Hichborn Street
b. Tentative Map 07-0004 to create two parcels for commercial development on
Mare Island

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT

Claudia Quintana: You have a memo in front of you dealing with general procedures and
actions that you can take at public hearings. That is just for your general reference.

COMMUNITY FORUM
None.
REPORT OF THE PRESIDING OFFICER AND COMMISSIONERS

Commissioner Salvadori: | met with the Economic Development Commission this past
Thursday concerning the activities going on, on Mare Island. It was a constructive
meeting with the Commission. David Cates is the Chair of that Commission. They had a
motion, which carried that put the responsibility of the ad hoc committee within the
purview of the Retention and Recruitment Committee of the Economic Development
Commission. They sounded anxious and excited about getting involved. They are going
to take the recommendations that the Planning Commission had made to the City Council
about the make up of that committee under consideration. They will discuss this at their
next scheduled meeting in April. | wrote a letter to the Mayor, at the request of the
Planning Commission, asking the Mayor, the Liaison to the Planning Commission and the
Chair of the Economic Development Commission to join us at our meeting of May 21,
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2007 to discuss with us what they had planned to do. Councilmember Bartee was very
supportive and vocal about the need for such a committee. | was very encouraged.

J. LIAISON REPORTS

1.

Council Liaison to Planning Commission
‘None.
Planning Commission Liaison to City Council

None.

K. PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Inclusionary Housing Ordinance — Continued from the meeting of

February 21, 2007.

Don Hazen: Staff is not really prepared to make a presentation this evening. We
would like to open the floor to members of the public that have indicated that they
would like to speak. In addition to that you have several pieces of correspondence
from various groups addressing this item as well. We had initially recommended
that this item be continued to the special meeting tomorrow. | believe you wiil hear
some testimony this evening that might indicate a request for a continuance. What
the Commission would need to do is to consider whether you would have that
special meeting tomorrow or a continuance to another date. Staff has some
suggestions as far as possible continuances. We are joined by Laura Simpson the
Housing Manager, Craig Whittom Assistant City Manager, and Brian Dolan the
Development Services Director. | will defer to Laura if she has anything to add
before we open the Public Hearing this evening.

Laura Simpson: | have nothing to add.

Commissioner Peterman: It seems to me that we recognize that staff has done an
incredible amount of work on this Ordinance. They have devoted a ot of time and
energy to it. | think that everyone in our community wants to see our citizens
housed in good housing. That being said this issue seems to have polarized
peopie. Opinions of opponents and proponents cut across usual lines. People see
different ways of achieving the same goals. | believe that if we do not get
community support it will be difficult to implement in a timely manner. | think, as
written, it could do more harm than good. | propose that we postpone it, but |
propose that we postpone it for a much longer period of time than we are talking
now. | also propose that staff should have, at least, three meetings with citizens
that includes: non-profits, developers, builders, real estate agents, local officials,
school district personnel, possible users of Inclusionary Housing, the public at large
and others. | think the groups should not be just invited focus groups but should
reach out to body segments of the community. 1 believe that the notice of the
meeting should be widely disseminated in the Times-Herald, etc. etc. From these
meetings we should form a group of representatives from those stakeholder groups
as we did with the Waterfront and Downtown areas. | think that this group then,
should work on an Ordinance. Everybody would be, if not completely thrilled, at
least it would be something they could all live with. I think then that at that point
they should bring it back to the Commission for approval. | am thinking that maybe
we should do that four or five months out. | talked with people from both sides of
the issue and most people that | talked to seemed to think that this would be a
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feasible plan because it would bring all the different despair groups together. | have
also spoken to members of the Council. Councilmember Gomes is a proponent of
Inclusionary housing and she thinks this would be a good plan. | spoke with
someone from the private sector who is willing to get people on board who have
worked with other groups to come up with Inclusionary Housing ordinances. My
recommendation would be that we have focus groups who form a committee who
come up with an Ordinance that would be palatable to all the different stakeholders
and despair groups.

Commissioner Salvadori: | would like to applaud Commissioner Peterman. He put
it so concisely and so well. | absolutely support the broader base input and the
ability to come up with something that really does meet the needs of the community.

Chairperson Legalos opened the Public Hearing.

Erin Hannigan, 118 Loma Vista, Vallejo: Good evening Commissioners. There was
a recording problem and her words were indistinguishable. At a time when
resources are thin and the more critical services are not being adequately
addressed. | would like to make clear however, that the Chamber is not opposed to
an affordable housing policy and is interested in a broader discussion with the City,
other interested parties to increase equity, participation and homeownership for
more Vallejoeans. We look forward to working with you. Thank you.

Jeff Dennis, President, Solano Association of Realtors: 1 am here to comment on
the staff report to the Planning Commission on the Inclusionary Housing Ordinance,
commonly referred to as Inclusionary Zoning. My primary purpose here is to
request that the Planning Commission take a step back in the process of drafting
and approving this Ordinance.

There are several reasons for this request not the least of which is to address the
inaccuracies of the report. More importantly it is to allow us to work with a broad
coalition of stakeholders in this City including real estate professionals, City staff,
housing advocates, developers, as well as potential recipients of the benefits of
such a program, and the public in general. The due diligence needed to craft an
effective program that will actually meet the needs expressed by the City Council,
that due diligence has not been done.

First the inaccuracies. While a smail point, the organization | represent is the
Solano Association of Realtors. What's in a name? Well, as trade organizations
CAR and NAR spend millions of dollars defending the trademarked Realtor
designation. Yes, we think it is important.

Additionally, we are typified as being supportive of the Ordinance with suggested
revisions. That is a mischaracterization of our position. We are in favor of
affordable home ownership, as demonstrated by our local contribution of $30,000
towards a down payment assistance program with a matching contribution for CAR,
that's $60,000 to help low to moderate income families achieve true
homeownership.

In the Aiternative Options section of the report under Allowing Equity Share
Deferred Mortgage, it is suggested that local realtors object to the restricted sales
price because it limits commissions. This is patently not the case. We are
concerned with property rights and feel that an arbitrary limitation of appreciation is
a disincentive to maintaining and improving the property to the detriment of all. We
are also concerned with the property rights of those owners who wish to sell to
developers, who could be damaged by an ordinance that would impose expensive
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requirements thus impacting the value of the property. Developers too, who have
already purchased property, will ex post facto be subject to this new law with added
expense. These costs will be passed on to consumers who will pay more for
housing, thus defeating the purpose.

Again, our position is to take the time to examine the alternatives, look at the
various plans that have worked and those that have not and draft an Ordinance that
will meet our City’s home ownership needs.

Don Hazen: | might ask that we have a show of hands of who can hear the
speaker. If not we might ask them to sit at one of the desk mics.

Chairperson Legalos: Can we have a show of hands if you can hear the speakers.
Can we use the hand held mic? ,

Marti Brown, Vallejo: Good evening Commissioners and members of the public. |
am a resident of Vallejo and a Co-Chair of the Vallejo Waterfront Coalition. Tonight
I'am coming to speak to you as a resident and a planner. | am in support of this
proposed Ordinance. | think it is right in line with the rest of the Bay Area. An
Inclusionary Housing ordinance is one of the common tools. It is one of the tools in
the toolbox for addressing affordable housing especially in the Bay Aréa in '
California. | think that staff has done their due diligence on this. There has been a
public process as well as considerable research. There is a couple of points that |
want to address. | was not here at the last meeting so | sat in front of my computer
this afternoon and watched the whole thing on the screen. A couple of things that |
kept hearing were owner equity and | can understand how people might be
passionate about the need to bring equity to your home and to have an investment
like that. Inclusionary Housing is really more of, it is not an investment program. It
is a program to put roofs over the heads of low income families. It is mixing apples
and oranges. Equity is not part of what Inclusionary Housing is really intended to be
about. | think the investment program should be a different program put in the tool
box for addressing affordable housing issues. The other thing | wanted to talk a
little bit about is the idea that somehow Inclusionary Housing Ordinance will impede
development. According to the APA mandatory Inclusionary Housing has not
depressed or stified housing praduction. As | spoke to a coworker of mine that
works in Housing, she works on Inclusionary Housing in Sacramento, she confirmed
this. Developers are accustomed to doing Inclusionary Housing and they expect it
in California. It is not an impediment at all, certainly it has not been in Sacramento.
It has not been in American Canyon which has had an ordinance for 15 years. |
don’t buy that. People keep bringing it up. They have no statistics or evidence that
shows any impediment. Vallejo is in the Bay Area and people want to be here. The
last thing | want to say is that people think that building equity will help them turn
over their house more quickly into market rate housing. The whole idea is to keep
affordable housing stock to be able to provide affordable housing to future users.

Jennifer Wilson, 519 Capitol St, Vallejo: | am a Vallejo resident as well as a
business owner. | was very glad to hear Commissioner Peterman’s comments.
What | would really like to see is that we take the time to examine this in more
depth. In speaking with people who know a lot about the topic and know a lot about
different zoning things that are in place across the State of California what has
come to our attention is that there is a very broad range of ways to implement this.
It is not a one size fits all. While it is true to say that there are many cities that have
this they aren’t all the same. You would be interested to know that the way that
Livermore has implemented their Inclusionary Housing is with a program that
targets very low and low income people and there are no deed restrictions
whatsoever. In East Palo Alto they have permanent deed restrictions and are for
only extremely low income people who never take any equity from it. There is a ton
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of things in between including what they are doing in Napa where they use this as
one tool as a way of addressing a larger affordability issue. That is what [ think we
really need to get back to in this discussion. How can we use Inclusionary Housing
as one tool and then package it with other tools. Napa has an equity share program
for down payment assistance for low to moderate income people. There is also
Section 8 that goes with all of it. We need to look at how we can tailor affordable
housing to be what our community really needs for the larger purpose here.

Diana Lang, 1255 Tuolumne St, Vallejo: We are communicating now with staff. |
want to go back to the process that this has been or has not been. The community
has learned things about public process with other issues. | will use the analogy
between the Callaghan DeSilva Plan for the Waterfront which went through public
process over many years. That public process was very passive and many people
participated. Their opinions were not included and it ended up being a very sore
point. It went on and on for years. Finally when they did come up with a plan they
did not have public buy in. It ended up in a law suit. | am not talking about a law
_suit | am talking about public process. Within two years they incorporated the public
process and included their thoughts and then in two years had a unanimous support
of the community. What | want to get to is that maybe this was not the best public
process. There are many people in this community who would like to help create a
working group. What we are specifically asking for is a hold. Not putting this issue
off, not putting it aside actually putting it to the forward, and have a forum where we
have all the stakeholders as a part of it, as a part in this process. Create a working
group and in a short amount of time, | think maybe 3 months, have assembled a
number of alternatives. Find alternatives that are appropriate to our community and
come back and work with staff. Staff and community coming together to make a
better plan. It has big holes in it and | do not think it is necessarily the best but |
think we can get the best. | know a lot of people are willing to work and become a
part of it. There are other points to be made but I think that point is we want to help
and have a better plan and don’t we deserve a better plan. Thank you.

Katy Miessner, 135 Scenic Way, Vallejo: | just have a couple comments. | believe
the City has an obligation to create affordable housing. Part of the Waterfront tax
increment has to go towards affordable housing. Our ways of creating affordable
housing in the past have been sub-standard. Clustering affordable housing
together creates crime. Not everyone who has low income are criminals but they
have a harder time being advocates for themselves. My sister works in the housing
industry for a loan firm that is similar to Vallejo Residential Housing Services. She
said that Inclusionary Housing is another tool in the tool box. When you have a
variety of ways to address affordable housing you end up creating better affordable
housing all over the City. Not clustering in certain areas helps. People keep talking
about equity. When people are paying into a mortgage they do get that back so it is
money that they have earned. There aren’t any capital gains and they get a tax
write off too. | think this is very helpful for them. Thank you.

Stephanie Gomes, 727 Sutter St, Vallejo: | am a Councilperson but 1 am here
tonight as a citizen. Affordable housing is really, really important to me. | was at
the Local Government Commission Conference this weekend. They were
describing it as workforce housing. | think that is what we are talking about. We are
not talking about Section 8 housing rentals which is a whole different discussion.
We are talking about housing for nurses and store clerks and people who are
working and can't afford to purchase a home. It means a lot to me. Listening to all
the discussions and debates going on it became really clear to me that this was
becoming polarized. | think staff did do an excellent job putting this together. | think
there is a lot of misinformation out there about what we are talking about. In
speaking with Commissioner Peterman last night | realized that | would rather that
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we have an opportunity for this Ordinance to go forward and be approved. | would
therefore support putting a temporary hold on what we are doing with forward
movement so we can get everyone to that table. It is really important to get the
people who are going to be utilizing this service as well as the typical groups of
people who are already involved. | think having a better public process and making
it more inclusive and possibly workshops so we can all know what we are talking
about and not having to throw facts at each other is desirable. We all know we can
make the numbers look however we want them to look. Let’s all get sit down at the
table and work on this together and put it forward. It is for Vallejo. | would hope
most people would recognize that we need to help other people and not just
ourselves and take this discussion to another level. | would support putting this on
hold but | would personally not like to see it go four or five months. | would prefer
maybe two months. | know this is probably frustrating to you because you have
worked so hard on it to get to where we are at but | think it would behoove all of us
to take a tad bit more time and put forward something that we might actually be able
to get approved. Thank you.

Nicole Byrd, 1652 Texas St, Fairfield: 1 am a Solano Napa Field Representative for
Greenbelt Alliance. | want to thank staff. 1 think they have done a great job. | want
to remind everyone that they actually did do three stakeholder meetings. The idea
that we are all going to sit around the table again is great but let's not forget that the
community was out there. Itis not like we did not have that opportunity. | am glad
to see tonight that it has gone from let's throw it out the window and staff did not do
anything to we are interested in working together. That makes me feel really good
because that is what needs to happen. | feel like that is really positive. | agree with
Stephanie that it needs to happen sooner not later. Two months seems pretty
reasonable. | think we just need to make sure that the way the meetings are
structured, that they are actually set up in a way that we are trying to reach
consensus. Because the others were to learn about the process and to give input
but through that process staff has written the report and now there is this big
upheaval. We don’t want to repeat that we want to make sure that it is structured
and maybe some kind of facilitation going on‘and the end result of that is that there
is something that we can all get behind. | really appreciate that we are looking at
this and [ look forward to the process of everyone working together. Thanks.

Chairperson Legalos closed the Public Hearing.

Commissioner McConnell: | move we further continue this for discussion between
the community and staff for a period of 60 days. That would be the meeting of May
21, 2007.

Commissioner Turley: This is a pretty big project. It is going to take a lot of work
and a lot of thought to put it together right. Instead of putting a timeline on this if we
should just form our committees and get the show on the road and do what needs
to be done. Then when we are close to the end bring it in for approval. | do not
know if 60 days is enough time. Maybe it is too much and maybe it is not enough.

Don Hazen: | might make a suggestion and look to Laura for confirmation as to
whether this is a good idea but may | suggest that we possibly continue this to the
next meeting so that staff can come back with a work plan of how we intend to
proceed from this point. We can put a time line together and we can be in a better
position to actually give a proposed meeting date even if it means a special
meeting. Can we, to avoid leaving people in limbo, submit a work plan at the next
meeting for your evaluation?

Chairperson Legalos: That sounds like a reasonable proposal.
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Commissioner Manning: | am surprised that you did not take this opportunity to
present what is different and what revisions you have done. 1 think you have
listened and tried to incorporate the comments that were made. | am surprised that
on live TV and before the live audience that you did not take the opportunity to say
that.

Laura Simpson: That was not our intention tonight. We could still present that
information but that is not what it was agendaized for.

Commissioner McConnell: | have a motion on the floor but before we proceed to
vote on that we find out if the April 16™ meeting is long enough or if we should
continue it out for 60 days now. As a Commission we can go either way.

Don Hazen: Staff would have between now and April 16" to put together a
proposal for your review.

Laura Simpson: We could try to do that.

Commissioner Salvadori: That suggestion sounds like a reasonable approach in
that staff will uncover and decide what is a reasonable time line to get the kind of
input the Commission and the public is asking for. To set a date certain for them to
get back may or may not be consistent with what they think they can actually do.
Things like this, especially in this City, often take a reasonable amount of time to get
through the process, to get all the stakeholders, some of which we may not even
have identified yet, as part of it. | think Mr. Hazen’s suggestion is a good one. |
would only ask if Commissioner McConnell would modify his motion to represent
that length and that the purpose be for a timeline only not a full Ordinance hearing.

Commissioner McConnell: | would be willing to change it to April 16™. My question
_is what about the meeting agendaized for tomorrow night?

Don Hazen: If you continue this to any night other than tomorrow's meeting you
should take some action to cancel tomorrow’s meeting. We will issue a notice of
cancellation per the Brown Act.

Commissioner McConnell: | am happy to amend my motion to April 16" for a
timeline only. However since we put out a notice about tomorrow night's meeting
might we not be frustrating some people who might be geared up to come to that
meeting. ' :

~ Commissioner Salvadori: In deference to those people who might have been going
to come down tomorrow night, what is finally proposed to the Commission might be
substantively different than what they have seen at this point and may address
many of the issues they might have had. We will proved other opportunities to have
those discussions so that staff can put together perhaps a more inclusive program
to address the housing needs in the City. My substitute motion would be to cancel
the special meeting tomorrow night and to continue the time to April 16™ and
agendaize the opportunity for staff to come back with a timeline.

Commissioner Turley: If we have the meeting tomorrow night | can see where a lot
of things could be gained but | can’t see how anything could be lost. | would be
interested in going ahead as planned.

Commissioner Peterman: | tend to agree with Commissioner Salvadori. | think we

should wait until we have the plan on April 16™. Then when those people do come
back and the do listen to the final plan they will realize at the time that the wait was
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well worth it. It seems to me that to come tomorrow night and listen to a plan that
may or may not ever come to fruition might be futile and a waste of time so | wouid
support also canceling tomorrow night's meeting.

Chairperson Legalos: Please vote on the substitute motion.

AYES: McConnell, Manning, Legalos, Turley, Salvadori, Peterman.
NOS: None.
ABSENT: Engelman.

Motion carries.

2. Planned Development 06-0018 for a new custom home in Hiddenbrooke
located at 1757 Durrow Ct. Proposed CEQA Action: Exempt. Continued from the
meetling of February 5, 2007.

Staff recommends approval based on the findings and conditions.

Marcus Adams: Good evening Commissioners. Tonight we will consider a
proposal for a new single-family custom home located within the Hiddenbrooke
community. Marcus did a PowerPoint Presentation. He showed a vicinity map. He

- showed a site plan of the building and structures located on the lot and the curved
driveway. He showed a picture of the subject site. He showed the subject site with
the existing custom home next door. There are three custom homes that have been
approved by the Planning Division. He referenced a memo with revisions to lot
coverages, which is going to be a key component in tonight’s discussion. He
showed other pictures of the surrounding lots. He showed a picture of the homes
across the street on Landmark Drive. Normally a custom home would follow the
Planned Development Unit Plan procedure which would be a staff level decision.
Before the plans even come to Planning they must go to the Hiddenbrooke
Architectural Review Committee for approval. In this case we were going to do the
staff level process but we discovered that they were also going to need a minor
exception because of encroachment into a side yard setback. They went through
the minor exception process and we readvertised the project. Staff became aware
of community opposition to the minor exception and the project itself. If we can tell
that it is likely the project will go to the appeal level we just go ahead and bring it to
the Commission usually with a recommendation. The applicant withdrew his minor
exception application and reconfigured so that he did not need the minor exception.
You are going to hear lots of figures tonight. This was a tough application for staff
to get a handle on the figures. Staff looks at what the County says the lot square
footage is and what the building square footage is. This project is 14,000 square
feet. It could be'living space, habitable space, or covered space. We look at the
massing the scale and the setbacks. Staff does not distinguish between the
habitable and non-habitable area. We looked at the Hiddenbrooke Specific Plan
and the Hiddenbrooke Design Guidelines. Because Hiddenbrooke is a Planned
Development it is exempt from the Infill Standards. There are goals and findings
that staff has to make and that was the basis for staff's recommendation tonight.
There are two goals that staff felt they did not meet. Staff did not notice a great
degree of difference in the slope of the homes that have been built and the home in
the project tonight. Staff looked at the immediate neighborhood. We focused on
the custom lots and not the production lots. This project is on a Iot designated
custom so we focused on the custom homes. We did not use the Hiddenbrooke
community at large nor did we use custom homes throughout Vallejo. Any
questions? )
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Don Hazen: [ would like to supplement what Mr. Adams was saying to clarify the
staff recommendation. The resolution in your packet is for approval. It does not
specify a square footage. That is something we would like the Planning
Commission to consider this evening. 1 would draw your attention to the previous
staff report which contains all the facts and findings to support the resolution. Page
9 gives you a sliding scale of various lot coverages. The staff recommendation is
approximately 7.3% lot coverage. That would equate to roughly a first floor square
footage of 3200. Staff recommends approval, what we would like the Commission
to consider tonight is at what square footage you would like to implement that
recommendation.

Commissioner Peterman: When HARC looked at the plan did they make a
recommendation at that time?

Marcus Adams: A representative of HARC is here tonight and they could probably
better answer that. | believe the first proposal the Perez family brought to them was
not approved and they asked them to come back with some changes. At that time
we told them it looked a little large and was going to be an uphill battle. They did
revise the plans and HARC did approve their proposal. When looking at the sliding
square footages instead of looking at page 9 of the staff report look at the memo
which has the most recent and revised figures.

Commissioner Peterman: My other concern is that tonight when we got here we got
this incredibly thick document which | believe is from the applicant. We got here we
had Commission business to discuss and things to do and it is very difficult to find
time to read this. | doubt that | could have done it if | had gotten here at 6:00. It
seems if it is really important to them they might entertain a continuance until we
can really read it.

Chairperson Legalos: | have to agree with Commission Peterman. This document
is 51 pages long. There is no way | could have read this document if | had gotten
here at 6:30.

Commissioner Salvadori: | also agree with the Chair and Commissioner Peterman.
Iitis difficult to get a thick document, especially on an intense item, and know you
are not going to get an opportunity to look atit. | am a little confused about the
inhabited and un-inhabited square footage. The pool is enclosed. Could you, in a
simple form, talk to me about the actual inhabitable space? Then talk about the un-
inhabitable space and what that is in terms of usage and what it is in terms of
square footage.

Marcus Adams: Of course the habitable space is the bedrooms, bathrooms, and
those types of area. The non-livable space would include stairways, terraces, some
of the verandas, the garage breezeway, the entryway, the non-habitable areas.
Roughly 2000 to 3000 square feet would be breezeways, terraces, etc. 11,000
square feet is what is covered if you took a bird's eye view and look down on the
project. The 14,000 would represent anything covered and non-covered.

Commissioner Salvadori: So anything that has a foundation would be included in
the 14,000. The 11,000 does not include the breezeway and the pool.

Commissioner Salvadori: | think you have made it simple but | want to be sure.
11,754 square feet is truly living space. Is that right?

Marcus Adams: No. It would also include the stairs, for instance. They are under
the covered area so that would be included. The garages are part of the lot
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coverage area. They are not considered living area but we do consider them in lot
coverage calculation. In this case there is some living space above the garages.

Don Hazen: | would like to also add, staff when we talk about the 11,000, we do not
call that living space we call it building square footage. We view the building as
area under a roof, typically with enclosed walls. The Zoning Ordinance just talks
about building square footage not habitable vs non- habntable The public will look at
everything and at the mass.

Commissioner Salvadori: If there was a gazebo attached to the building would that
be considered as a part of the 11,0007

Marcus Adams: The gazebo here is detached but we did calculate that as part of
the lot coverage because it is a structure.

Commissioner McConnell: When you reviewed these plans did you give any
specific considerations to sight lines that would be impacted by surrounding
houses?

Marcus Adams: We did give some consideration to the sight lines because that
was brought up by the neighbors as far as loss of sunlight and those types of things.
That was not a major consideration in our recommendation as far as views being
blocked.

Commissioner McConnell: Your recommendation is for a shaller home due in part
to the sight lines of the neighbors.

Marcus Adams: | would not say it was due to the sight lines, no.

Commissioner McConnell: Maybe you can explain your specific recommendation
as to why the footprint should be smaller than what the applicant is proposing.

Marcus Adams: The reason for that is that we looked at the current development
trend for the custom lots there. It is a small trend, only three homes, but you have
to start somewhere. You have to have a base. The average lot coverages are all
under 10%. You have one here that is a low of 17% and a high of 19%. That is
almost double the existing lot coverages on the existing custom lots. We looked at
neighborhood character and neighborhood consistency.

Commissioner McConnell: Hiddenbrooke was developed with multiple
neighborhoods with multiple concepts. When you say neighborhood are you
restricting that to the immediate surrounding area or are you thinking of the entire
Hiddenbrooke valley? _

Marcus Adams: We are looking at the immediate neighborhood. Even though
Hiddenbrooke is a community they are distinctive neighborhoods. They are defined
by themselves, separately.

Commissioner McConnell: This is oriented to the custom lots in the subdivision that
it is located in right?

Marcus Adams: Yes and the custom homes within this subdivision.

Commissioner McConnell: HARC says they are confident that the home is well
designed and correctly sized and is well within the setbacks. Thought it is currently
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the largest custom home in Hiddenbrooke it is in no way out of scale for a custom
home on a lot this size.

Marcus Adams: | would say that is consistent with our findings. It is larger than the
other custom homes that have been built but | would have to say that | do not
disagree with Ms. Clark.

Commissioner McConnell: The applicant has brought in a model of this home.
Have you seen this model before? :

Marcus Adams: | have not. It was not at the community meeting that we had that
was hosted by the applicant and his attorney.

Commissioner McConnell: Is this model consistent with what is being proposed to
us this evening?

Marcus Adams: | will not comment on that because | have not seen the model.

Don Hazen: We do not want to give the impression that our analysis is all about the
numbers either. Neighborhood compatibility is such an illusive thing. You don’t
really know when you have it. That is the purpose of the public hearings. There is
so much more than just numbers. We struggled to come up with some measure of
neighborhood compatibility. | did not want to leave you with an over emphasis on
the numbers.

Commissioner McConnell: | appreciate that because | am not really a number kind
of guy. When you look at this model is the architecture consistent with the
Hiddenbrooke design?

Don Hazen: My .personal opinion is that the building design, irrespective of the size,
has very good form, variations, and helps break up the mass. In the end you have
to make a decision on the building envelope. From an architectural standpoint |
believe that building meets the architectural objectives of Hiddenbrooke. | believe
HARC approved that design as well.

Commissioner McConnell: Have you checked to see if the architecture can be
preserved if the size is reduced?

Don Hazen: That would be a decision on the applicant. If you keep the same
proportions and you shrink it, it is possible. It is the applicant’s decision if that is
something they can live with or not._

The Commission took a five minute break to look at the model.

Commissioner Turley: This house is twice as large as the other houses on Durrow
Court. That being the case perhaps the average square footage in a Vallejo
subdivision today is about 3500.

Marcus Adams: Average for production homes?

Commissioner Tu'rley: Yes.

Marcus Adams: | would say that is on the high side the average is in the mid 2400
—2500.
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Commissioner Turley: Let's say 2500 then. If there was a subdivision where the
builder had a lot and he wanted to build a house there for his mother. Would you
allow him to build a 5,000 square foot house?

Marcus Adams: No, not in a subdivision of production homes. In all areas of
Vallejo, except for Planned Developments, we have infill standards.

Commissioner McConnell: | am trying to read through the memo of the applicant’s
council. | am assuming that you have not had a chance to read that either.

Marcus Adams: | was able to read through that, yes.

Commissioner McConnell: On page 3, paragraph 3, he argues that the proposed
design is approximately 9,568 square feet. Do you agree with that contention?

Marcus Adams: We did not calculate the living square footage. | do not agree or
disagree with that statement.

Commissioner McConnell: He also make the argument that the footprint is 18.84%
of the living space of 21.74%. Have you had a chance to take a position on that?

Marcus Adams: My latest figures show 18.6. He is 18.8. | would riot argue over
.02%.

Commissioner McConheII: You are not attempting to say that this is an infill
development are you?

Marcus Adams: It is an infill development but the infill standards that normally apply
to other communities in Vallejo are not applicable here. We cannot say that they
have to be consistent with homes within a 200 foot radius. Considering that this is
an infill situation in a subdivision that has already been approved and we have
some homes being built there that we use the same process of reviewing it as far as
consistency with existing custom homes and what has been approved.

Commissioner McConnell: You are saying it is an infill project.
Marcus Adams: Yes.

Don Hazen: There is not a regulatory standard that you have to apply to determine
the appropriate square footage of this home. When we are referring to the infill
standards, those are regulatory standards that are in place outside of
Hiddenbrooke. They do not apply to this application. The only issue that we are
bringing forward on this home is, at what point does a home become incompatible
with the surrounding neighborhood. There is not a regulatory standard for that.
This is very subjective. We are putting you in a difficult position tonight, |
understand. That is really the only issue for discussion.

Commissioner McConnell: | appreciate the clarification. Council makes the
argument that Landmark homes have lot coverage of 35% of the lot. The Perez
design is only covering 21.74%. Have you had a chance to analyze the correctness
of that argument?

Marcus Adams: You are saying that the production homes have average lot

coverage of 35.1%. If you take the production homes then obviously this is a lower
lot coverage than the production homes. Is that a fair comparison? Can you
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' compare production homes to custom homes? | would not disagree that the lot
coverages for the production homes are high. :

Commissioner McConnell: Is it staff's position that custom homes should be
different than production homes?

Marcus Adams: My position when we reviewed this is that custom homes should
be reviewed individually and that is different than the production homes regarding
such things as lot coverage and what have you.

Don Hazen: The numbers that are presented by the attorney representing the
applicant appear that they are focusing on the discrepancy in the Assessor’s tax
role vs what they believe is out there. When staff did their research they went
strictly off the building records that we have. It is unlikely that we will ever agree on
the exact numbers because there is so many numbers to calculate on. That is our
response to this packet. We could certainly sit and refute every little thing but the
issue is still can you arrive at a size home that meets with the surrounding
neighborhood. Also, we would expect the lot coverage on production homes to be
higher than the custom lots. We have not compared apples and oranges. When
you walk down the street what is the street scene you see? Production homes are
expected to have a higher coverage because the lots are much smaller.

Commissioner Salvadori: The model was helpful to me and hopefully to others. My
concern about the comments about the neighborhood as it exists today are a matter
of timing. Of the eight lots that are up there three are built on. This is the fourth: if
this were the first one built then it would be totally compatible. The others would be
looked at as substantially smaller. | do not know that we have applications for the
other four lots that are not built. If we got four that were of similar size and scale to
this project, once again the neighborhood would be of this size and scale and those
that were smaller would be the unusual ones. | do not know that we have enough
comparisons to say this is substantially larger. It only happens to be substantially
larger than the first three that were built. | think the letter from HARC is substantive
to me. They seem to like the proposal. | do think it is questionable to say the
neighborhood has a certain characteristic when less than half the lots on just that
street have been developed.

Chairperson Legalos: This is an interesting project. To look at the mass of the
structure | would say that it is out of scale but as Commissioner Salvadori pointed
out and the letter from HARC pointed out this could actually be an asset. This could .
set the trend for the remaining four lots to be much larger, much more expensive
homes. It is not a cut and dried situation. It is not easy to decide. | do think though
that it is not about numbers. There are lots of ways. We could debate these
numbers for another hour and | do not think it would do much to help decide on this.
I think it is more a matter of appearance. Again, | think Commissioner Salvadori’'s
points are well taken.

Claudia Quintana: | was just going to suggest that you open the Public Hearing.
We are sort of diving into the decision making process.

Commissioner Legalos opened the Public Hearing.

Jamie Clark, 1215 Wildwing Lane, Vallejo: Member of HARC for 5 years. I'm going
to start by giving you some background and summary of the HARC approval
process. The Perez's presented their application on 12/4/04. The process for
custom homes is usually a 3-step process, preliminary through final approval
including landscaping. HARC met with the Perez’s 5 times over a 2-year period.
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During this time HARC required the Perez’s to reduce the size and exterior footprint,
including eliminating some exterior patio spaces. They did. HARC required that
they lower the overall height of the house, as well as cascade the home down the
hillside, to break up the mass as well as mitigate the view from the houses below.
They did. HARC required that they design their landscaping in such a way as to
shield the up-slope view, while providing privacy to both the home and outdoor
living spaces, as well as the homes below. HARC also required that they landscape
in such a way as to create a natural sound barrier due to the fact that the production
homes were downhill. They did. HARC required that they take an decorative
architectural elements such as trims, cornices, balustrades, ironwork and
stonework, and bring them to all sides of the home, so that the house was well
designed and architecturally interesting from any angle. They did.

HARC reached a unanimous decision on 6/23/06. A final approval letter was written
and forwarded to the City of Vallejo for their follow up.

Our guidelines encourage variations on the many architectural styles in our valley,
specifically to encourage individuality while creating outstanding architectural
designs that compliment the community. HARC strongly believes that the Perez
home is an outstanding architectural design, which will integrate with our community
while raising the quality of design and construction of all custom homes to come
later. Simply put, the Perez home raises the bar for all custom homes out here in
Hiddenbrooke. There are three other custom homes currently in process, one on
Durrow Court, and two on Bennington and HARC is reviewing those plans to make
sure that they reach up to the level established by the Perez home.

HARC feels confident that the Perez home is well designed for the topography,
correctly sized, and situated on its lot, and will within the setbacks. Although it may
currently be the largest custom home proposed for Hiddenbrooke, it is in no way out
of scale or design for a custom home on a lot this size.

Having a home of this quality, caliber, and design cannot help but raise the value of
the production homes around it. We recommend that the Planning Commission
approve the Perez house as presented.

Margaret Kristof: My thanks to the planning Commission and the Planning Division
of the Vallejo Development Services Department for giving me the opportunity to
speak tonight about my family’s opposition and concerns about the proposed pians
to build a single family home at 1757 Durrow Court. We live directly across from the
lot, and are very upset at how this proposed building complex will affect our quality
of life and property value. | want to express my surprise at finding myself speaking
against the plans of future neighbors in my community, and that we were following
the process of responding to the notification of the proposed plans from the City.
We were never contacted directly by the Perez family nor the Hiddenbrooke
Architectural Review Committee about our thoughts or concerns about the
proposed plans. Although the members of HARC are residents of Hiddenbrooke
they do not live in the impact zone. We have not opposed any of the other custom
homes currently under construction on Durrow Court. The propose structure of
livable and non-livable space is huge and would sprawl down a beautiful hillside,
and it does not fit into the aesthetics of the neighborhood. It certainly does not fit in
with the other custom homes currently being built on the hillside of Durrow Court.
The size will affect the natural lighting of our street and home, as well as the view of
the hillside. We have all wondered what the intent of the complex is. It certainly
appears to be inconsistent with a single family home plan. Will it be used as a
business office? Will More than one family be residing there? Who will be staying
in the guest suites and for how long? Will there be multiple families and/or renters
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living in this complex at one time? Where will these “visitors” park? Where will they
enter the home? Our concerns are that this will increase traffic, noise and cars
parked on our street to gain easy access to the lower levels of the house. It seems
there is potential for use for this structure other than for a single family.

We are also very upset that there are proposed sport courts and a swimming pool
directly across the street from our home. Because the house comes so far down
the hill their backyard is in our front yard. We would see these structures and hear
the noise from their use from our bedrooms and our courtyard. There are all much
used living spaces in our home. | am very concerned that if we were to put our
house on the market, that it would not sell because of the noise form the sports
areas and the size and aesthetic of a huge building sprawling down the hillside.
Who would want to buy a new home that is across the street from a complex that
sprawls down the entire hillside and has more than one noisy sports area?

We've been looking forward to the tasteful development of the custom lots on this
very beautiful hillside in Hiddenbrooke that will enhance our community, and hope
that the Planning Commission will intervene and help to maintain the natural beauty
of this area and also to take into consideration the quality of the life of the
immediate neighbors of this propose structure. Thanks for considering my concerns
and opposition to the currently propose building and sports facilities.

Erick: 1 would like to first take a moment to thank all in attendance from the
Planning Commission and Planning Division. Thank you for your time this evening,
but more importantly, thank you for doing your due diligence in this important
matter. | would like to provide you with the fact that my wife and | are here tonight
because we reside almost directly across the street from the proposed Perez
residence. | want to echo other comments made by my neighbors that are also
speaking in agreement with the Planning Division recommendation. Speaking as a
family directly in the impact zone of this proposed residence, we are disappointed
that this matter has escalated to this level. 1 would suggest that much of this could
have been avoided had the HARC made contact with families living in the impact
zone. Instead HARC, in my opinion, did just the opposite. HARC never made an
attempt to inform us of their consideration or approval of this project. | am aware of
the controversial content. We are here tonight to oppose this project. | would like to
note that we have not stepped forward to oppose any other projects built on the
custom lots of Durrow Court. It is my feeling that the other projects have been
tastefully planned and are compatible with neighboring units. As stated in the
HARC specific-plans, residential units shall be compatible with neighboring units in
terms of architectural design and scale. We find this proposed project to be
inconsistent relative to design and scale, with an emphasis on the overall scale In
fact | find it grossly incompatible with the scale of comparable units. The 1% floor
square footage is 290% larger than the average 1° floor square footage of the other
homes on Durrow Court. The total building square footage is 230% larger than the
same. This is using the revised figures for square footage. | would suggest that
this is not a single family home, but a sprawling compound with the revised lot
coverage of nearly 195. This is highly inconsistent for our neighborhood with the
average custom lot coverage being 5.3%. For us, this is not a simple matter of
looking across the street at the front of another home. This is a matter of this
sprawling compound being built down the entire slope f the lot. By this structure
being build on this slope the visual impact to neighbors looking from the front of
their home is significant. We will be impacted by the total vertical elevation. Other
custom lots on Durrow Court have similar slopes, in fact the Perez’s lot is sloped
less then neighboring lots, and yet the other builders have managed to design
tasteful homes of appropriate proportions. It is important with the entire home being
publicly visible, that it settle gracefully into its site. | do not believe this to be the
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case for the Perez design. We feel that this behemoth structure will be a
neighborhood eyesore, adversely affecting not only the quality of our lives, but also
our personal investment in our homes. In conclusion, we, the three households
directly impacted are asking you, the Planning Commission, to accept the
recommendations of the Planning Division. Thank you for your time and
consideration of this matter.

Lina Nelson: Good evening. | would like to thank the Planning Commission and the
Planning Division for taking the time to hear our concerns tonight. 1 am here tonight
to voice my strong opposition to the proposed Perez residence. Unfortunately the
HARC failed to inform us before approving this massive project. In fact the first time
we heard about this project was from the City. No one else made any effort or

. attempt to check with us, the people who are going to be impacted the most, before
approving this project. There was one meeting that was announced by the Perez's
on 2/22/07. We were informed about this meeting by the City not the Perez family
in the late afternoon the day before. We did not know what the meeting was about
or the purpose of it. During this meeting it was suggested by the Perez Attorney
and the contractor that we were misinformed relative to the square footage of the
property. It is my opinion that the City did its job properly. The attorney was trying
to make a point about the habitable vs non habitable square footage. Frankly this
makes no difference to us. All that we are going to be looking at is the bulk and
massiveness of the house across the street from us. All we will see from across the
street is the total mass. It is going to affect the quality of our life in several different
ways. Our concerns are: The size of the house is not consistent with the rest of the
custom homes in our neighborhood. The Hiddenbrooke Specific Plan, on page 27,
says that residential units shall be compatible with neighboring units in terms of
architectural design and scale. It is our understanding that the Perezs’ area
suggesting that the Planning Commission should use all custom and non-custom
lots within Hiddenbrooke, as well as homes outside of Hiddenbrooke as
comparative data. It is our contention that due to the custom lot design, location,
and a unique grade or slope, our housing development is separate and distinctive
and that it is appropriate to limit the comparative data to the custom lots on Durrow.
We are concerned that the structures will be used for multiple families housing
including renting or business. Living directly across we are concerned about the
noise from the basketball court and swimming pool and that it is going to affect our
daily living. ‘

It is my understanding that when the Perezs’ initially submitted their plans to the
City they were cautioned by the City that the plans would be an uphill battie for
approval based on the size of the project. With this said, the Perezs’ continued
without modifications of any kind. In conclusion, | am please asking you to hear us
out and please help us maintain a beautiful neighborhood. A neighborhood that is
consistent with other custom built home in which we have welcomed and not had
any issues with. We ask that you please accept the recommendations of the
Planning Division. Thank you.

Lynn Honderd: | am a neighbor who is between Margaret and Larry. The HARC
meeting that was held a couple weeks ago did not invite us. Not all neighbor’s .
affected were invited to the meeting. | am concerned about the massive complex
that this project purports. My main concern is the multiple guest quarters, traffic and
noise and the view from our bedrooms. Night lighting is a concern too. There will
be lights on the stairs and the gardens. This just shows how absolutely monolithic.
this is. It does not fit in with any custom home on Durrow Court. It does not fit in
with any of the homes on Landmark Drive that we live in. Please support the
Planning Divisions proposal. Keep the homes consistent. Thank you.
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Larry Seamer: ltis interesting to note how may of us are saying we live directly
across from this project. That is how big it is. | want to speak to the size and how it
fills up the lot. There is only one other house in all of Hiddenbrooke that comes
close to this. That house is on a 166,000 square foot lot. That is four times larger
than the lot this house is on. Those aren’t just numbers, that has real impact. The
other homes around that house are set back from that house. That house has
enough room around it to soften the visual impact with landscaping and other
features. The Hiddenbrooke Specific Plan states that residential units shall be
compatible with the neighboring units. These are the kinds of things | look at when |
decide to invest my life savings in Hiddenbrooke. The scale should be compatible
‘with the houses directly around it. Next the visual impact of this house affects us.
The model is interesting but what you can’t see, and could only see if you got down
on your knees and got even with the bottom level of that house and that is the
cylindrical impact that we will see. We will see this towering structure straight on. It
is @ huge visual impact from Landmark Drive. There are a total of six households
that are directly impacted by this. The other people you are going to hear from live
more than a mile away from this project and you should keep that in mind. Thank
you for your time.

Dave Elias: | am a member of HARC and a resident of Hiddenbrooke. As a

- member of HARC, Vallejo has granted us through the CCR’s, which every single
home in our community has to sign and agree to. | am one of five members of
HARC. One thing we try to do is uphold the high level of Hiddenbrooke. The way
the process works and is laid out in our guidelines is that when any project comes
through it comes to HARC first. No plans can be submitted to the City of Vallejo
unless it has been approved by HARC. There are guidelines in our Design
Guidelines that define lot coverage. We allow for a 2500 square foot home not
counting outdoor living spaces, landscapes, driveways, auxiliary structures. It
defines a MINIMUM not a MAXIMUM. It defines the height limitations which this
house complies with. That is part of our process in the review of this home. It is
within all its setbacks, meets our guidelines, the height is within the guidelines.
When it was first presented to us it was a little bit bigger. We asked them in order to
disguise the house a lot bit better to cascade down the slope to break the vertical
massiveness of the house. They have done that. HARC is to ensure that all the
homes are of high quality and architectural design. We feel they comply with that.
We do not have within our process to notify neighbors. That is not within our
guidelines to do that. Is it something we can do in the future, yes. Is it something
we have done in the past, no. We are not looking for big or small we are looking for
architectural quality and design. We are looking for something that stops people -
from going to Green Valley and Napa. When you tells someone that someone is
investing $6,000,000 in a house in Vallejo they say, “What in Vallejo?” We want to
create a destiny so that people can know Vallejo for what it is worth. We should be
proud of people wanting to invest their money. Vallejo does not offer this right now.
That is what HARC looks for. This is a southern exposure property here there is no
light problem. This is a good investment. These slopes are in excess of 35%
slopes. We take this into consideration and allow for that. This entire project is
landscaped. Once everything is in place and grown that is going to be their view.
HARC has discretionary powers to grant variances. They redesign so they did not
need a variance. Short of saying that they complied with everything in the
Guidelines | do not see how this house can be denied under anything. All the

- custom homes in there we are going to look at based on size. We tell them they
have to meet the Guidelines and the architectural design requirements. If they meet
that then we forward it on to the Planning staff. That is where we are at. We stand
behind our decision. We believe this is a great home for the community. We do not
just represent one neighborhood we represent all 1200 homes in our part of
Hiddenbrooke. We do the best we can to the best of our knowledge. Thank you.

Page 17 '



Vallejo Planning Commission Minutes
March 19, 2007

Orin Wakefield had a 60 slide PowerPoint presentation to further describe the
project in a three dimensional form that would not load. My job is to convince you
as a Planning Commission that the proposed design is in line with the intended use
of the custom lots in this portion of Hiddenbrooke. We worked with HARC for 8
months and then were ready to present to the City’s Planning Division. They were
there for about nine months and came to the February meeting which was
continued to tonight. During that entire process there was never any mention of a
maximum size standard. I do not believe there is one. None of the objections were
presented in a specific way by Mr. Adams or anyone else. There was a very
subjective comment at the very early on stages that it seemed pretty big but they
did not have any problems with it. At least none that he could state or give us any
reason why we should change anything. During the HARC process many things
were brought up and modifications were made to comply. Visual impact and noise
abatement were considered. This is an upscale, quality home that is needed for
this lot. The driveway, circular turnaround, and breezeways minimize exposure of
cars to the street. Because of the juxtaposed design none of the neighbors will see
the house straight on. The main point is that in nearly three years up until two days
before the February 5™ proposed Planning Commission meeting was there ever any
verbiage from either HARC or City of Vallejo Planning Division any specific
concerns with a size limitation or a need to comply with certain guidelines in that
regard. This was all news to us. We were under the impression through the whole
process that HARC was the defining committee for architectural review of this
project and that the Vallejo Planning Division would pretty much fall in line with
Hiddenbrooke’s recommendation. We redesigned the portion needed for a variance
so we did not have any discretionary uses. Everything complies with what is on the
books. All the other concerns that are raised are very subjective.

Chairperson Legalos: Mr. Wakefield we still have two more items on our agenda
this evening and it is getting qmte late can you make your presentation without the
PowerPomt'?

Orin Wakefield: Not really. All the visual effects are in the PowerPoint.

Claudia Quintana: | was going to suggest that we give the applicant a choice to

have the Commission take the matter under submission now or to continue it for
another hearing. It depends on whether the applicant thinks they can make their
case now or whether they feel more time is needed to complete the presentation.

Jason Buckingham: | am council for the owners. | know Orin spent over a week
working on the presentation and it is a pity that you will not be able to see it. But |
think he has spoken to the technical aspects of the design and of the process that
he went through and that the owners went through. 1 want to apologize that you did
not get the document presented to you earlier. | brought it into the City at noon
today. | wanted to have it last week but | do not know if that would have made any
difference. ltis really a five page memo and the bulk of the pages are supporting
documentation. Just to speak on some of the regulatory aspects, there are a
couple of things | want to point out. The Specific Plan goals for Hiddenbrooke was
to provide upscale housing opportunities that are not otherwise available in Vallejo.
The Specific Plan recognizes the value of flexibility in reviewing future development.

Chairperson Legalos: Excuse me Mr. Buckingham. The specific question that Ms.

Quintana asked is would the applicant want the Commission to consider this
application tonight or to continue it.
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Jason Buckingham: After | am done speaking on behalf of the owners we would
like it taken under submittal this evening. We would just like to speak to the
regulatory aspects of our position.

Chairperson Legalos: Thank you for clarifying that.

Jason Buckingham: On page 12 of the Specific Plan it says that as residential
development is dynamic and evolving there may be future housing concepts, not
design yet, but appropriate to the future of Hiddenbrooke and Vallejo. On page 23
the development standards for residential development is Hiddenbrooke it states
that there is a need to maintain flexibility in the future as residential areas develop.
That is exactly what is happening right here. This is the fourth house on a court that
has eight lots. There is a trend that we can look at as far as custom home
development in Hiddenbrooke generally to build bigger and build better. | do not
know under anyone’s estimation of things that can be a bad thing when you look at
what the current housing market is doing. The best way to preserve value is to
have the highest quality of construction as possible. That is exactly what this
proposed design represents. Infill Standards for the rest of the City do not apply to
Hiddenbrooke. There is a section in the Specific Plan that states that we should not
have such a ridged method of looking at things. There are a couple projects in
Vallejo. One in Torrey Pines Court with a 9000 square foot lot and a house that is
7300 square feet built in 2006. The square footage of a persons house is the
amount that you can tell a buyer is living space. It is the amount that the assessor
will tax you on for local property taxes. Torrey Pines was approved under infill
standards. On either side of that house are houses that are half its size. Thereisa -
35,000 square foot house on a 9,000 square foot lot and on the other side is a
36,000 square foot house on a 9,000 square foot lot. If that house met the
standards then this project certainly would meet the standards under the Specific
Plan and as HARC has already spoken too. The other project is 2934 Redwood
Parkway. You have a 52,066 square foot house on a left over lot. To the left you
have condos and to the east you have Hunter Ranch. The four Hunter Ranch lots
that touch this property range from 1500 to 2000 square feet. This project was built
in 2003. It defies logic from our position that those projects could meet the stricter
requirements and our home with the exemptions give under the Specific Plan and
-the fact that it does not touch any of the neighboring lots on Landmark Drive. We
have Specific Plan goals that are supposed to encourage custom home building. If
these other project met the General Plan standards then certainly this project meets
the Specific Plan standards. That sums up our position in a nutshell. Mr.
Buckingham showed some photos of the two other mentioned projects. These
owners need to have the ability to maximize the value of what is understandably a
very large investment. All we are asking for is this same flexibility.

Chairpersbn Legalos closed the Public Hearing.

- -Commissioner Peterman: | notice that the person who did not speak, Mr. Allen,
lives on the same street as the other people. | was wondering if he was in
opposition to it or favor of it. He lives on the same street as they do.

Mr. Allen, 1852 Landmark Drive: | will not be able to see the residence from my
home. | can understand their concern about the visual impact but | am neutral. |
am an alternate member of HARC and came into the process late. 1 think it would
be unfair for me to make a comment on that.

Commissioner Peterman: It seems to me that we have a couple of issues going on

here. One is the house and how it looks and how it is perceived by the neighbors.
The other is the HARC. It seems to me that the CCRs set HARC up to be the
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defining body as to what is built there. In my CCRs we have those kinds of things
built in too. For years | was on the committee that equates to HARC for my area. |
understand what the people in Landmark are saying but in the CCRs HARC is given
that power and | am having trouble deciding what should be the deciding factor.

Commissioner Salvadori: The model is very helpful to me. Although from an aerial
view this home might look very massive it strikes me that from Landmark Drive
looking up that just the front part of that building would have the same visual impact
because a good deal of the house is hidden behind it if you were standing at ground
level at the bottom of the lot. We have not heard a lot from staff or the architect
about things that were taken off but | did like the comment about the fact that there
is going to be a great deal of landscaping that would buffer the visual impact. There
is something to be said for having the nicest house on the block. | live in an over
100 year old area of the City in a very small house: Three houses down the street
there is a house that is four times the size of the house that | am in. we co-exist
pretty well in the neighborhood. | think we should take to hart the fact that the
owner and his representative and the architects have done everything that they
were asked to do to meet the requirements of HARC. They have done everything
that the City has asked them to do save making the house smaller. | cannot find it
within my heart to say no your house does not belong here because it is the nicest
and largest house in what is already a very upscale neighborhood.

Commissioner Manning: | understand the concerns of the neighbors but a process
was followed. There is no rule for the maximum. | cannot come up with an arbitrary
number of what is should be reduced by. It is a beautiful design. Itis in a custom
home lot. | did go out to Hiddenbrooke and look at the area. Obviously this is going
to be a-very distinctive home. It is going to be landscaped. The courts down below
were taken out and some things were modified. The process was followed. There
are no setback or height problems. 1| do not feel like | have information that says it
needs to be reduced. [ would suggest that HARC, when they do have large designs
like this, that may be controversial, that they do go out of their way to send letters to
people in the neighborhood so people do feel like they have a voice. | know it is not
in the guidelines to do that but it is a suggestion. | will support this as it was
submitted and not with the staff recommendation. | think they have done everything
that they were supposed to do and HARC has approved the design.

Commissioner McConnell: | want to make sure | understand staff's position and |
am looking at the recommendation. You recommend approval on the basis that the
home not exceed 8% lot coverage with a maximum ground floor area of 3200
square feet, and for all buildings a square footage of 6400, exempting non-covered
buildings.

Marcus Adams. Correct. There is a table with some alternatives. We are not
wedded to our recommendation. There are some alternatives that could be looked
at.

Chairperson Legalos: | am looking at the letter from Jamie Clark who was a
member of HARC for five years. | cannot agree with the statement that the home is
correctly sized and is in no way out of scale. | think it is way out of scale. However,
I think it is a beautiful home and an asset to the community. | too would support
going forward with the original design.

Commissioner Salvadori: | move to approve the project as it was submitted without
any change in square footage and as presented by the applicant.
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Commissioner Manning: How can you translate the table furnished by staff into this
home. Do they take out one wing? | do not see how that is a workable suggestion.

Marcus Adams: There would be two ways you could go about it. One would be
that the applicant work with staff to save the design and rearrange it so they could
keep same architectural detail. There are ways you could preserve some of the
elements and still reduce the size of the home. They could have also on their own
come up with a new design. That is how we would have went about it.

Commissioner Manning: | believe they have been working on this for three years.
They have followed all the procedures. They have obviously put a lot of money into
this. Now they have hired legal council on this. We do want homes of distinction in
Vallejo. We do want people to come into our community and | don't think it is the
right thing to send them back to reduce the floor plan. | am in support of this
proposal as the applicant has submitted it.

Claudia Quintana: | wanted to remind the Commission that there is actually a
resolution in your packet. | wanted to encourage you to look at that. if the
consensus from the Commission is just that the design is appropriate in terms of
size. Council staff to remove that from the conditions of approval but not to
abandon the other conditions that have been placed in the staff report.

Commissioner Salvadori: | move to approve the project as it was submitted without
any change in square footage and as presented by the applicant but with the other
findings and conditions of approval put forth by staff.

AYES: McConnell, Manning, Legalos, Turley, Salvadori, Peterman.
NOS: None.
ABSENT: Engelman.

Motion carries.

3. Use Permit 546A, Appeal of Staff determination concerning Rose Imports
located at 1605 Solano Avenue. Continued from the meeting of February 21, 2007.

Staif recommends the planning Commission DENY the appellants appeal and
AFFIRM the Planning Division’s determination that the used auto sales occurring at
1605 Solano Avenue require use permit approval, as stated in Section
16.22.040(B)(3) of the Vallejo Municipal Code.

The Planning Commission made the following decision after a discussion which
included: The site is Rose imports on Solano Avenue. Marcus discussed the
photographs that Kathy Ghavimi had provided for the Commission’s edification.
1970 is a key year because that is the year that use permits started being used for
used car dealerships. In order to legally grandfather in a use it has to at some point
been legally established. The zoning on lot 18 is LDR and has always been so.
1605 would also need a use permit to be legally operating. Lots 18 & 19 were
never legally established as a used car dealership. The Commission’s job tonight is
to lay out a process for the appellant to follow.

Chairperson Legalos opened the Public Hearing. Kathy Ghavimi, Molly Levitt, and

Doug Northrop spoke at the Public Hearing after which Chairperson Legalos closed
the Hearing.
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AYES: Manning, Turley, Salvadori, Peterman.
NOS: Legalos, McConnell.
ABSENT: Engelman.

Motion carries.

4. Use Permit 04-0022 for a self-service refueling center, fast food and sit-down
restaurant on a vacant parcel fronting on Sonoma Bivd. Proposed CEQA Action:
Mitigated Negative Declaration. Continued from the meeting of March 5, 2007.

Staff recommends adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration and Monitoring Plan
subject to the findings contained in the attached resolution.

Staff recommends approval of Use Permit 04-0022 subject to the findings and
conditions.

Commissioner Salvadori recused himself as he has a business relationship with the
applicant. '

The Planning Commission made the following decision after a discussion which
included: the applicant responding to CalTrans letter; the City Engineer reviewing
the response and letter; Commission given three letters from surrounding neighbors
with over cencentration and noise, smell and loss of night sky concerns as well as
fuel leakage and emergency access to Meadows Drive concerns; the Mitigated

Neg Dec, the Mitigation and Monitoring Program and the conditions of approval deal
with many of these concerns. The tanks are double walled and have sensing
devices. State and Federal EPA requirements guide this. Cleaning of the surface
was discussed. Design enhancement was also discussed.

Chairperson Legalos opened the Public Hearing and Pet Tobin, and Steve Epstein
spoke. Chairperson Legalos then closed the Public Hearing.

After the Public Hearing the Commiission discussed: public walkways and public
protection; enhanced landscaping; colors on the materials board; breakup of the
long line of roofline; parking; cars coming in off the highway; homeowners feelings
about the project; cleanup of surface spills from everyday use; 24 hour usage;
buffering abilities of vegetation against noise; sound walls; and project affects on
human heaith.

Commissioner Peterman: | move that we approve major use permit 04-0022 with
the Resolution and the findings and conditions.

Commissioner McConnell: | would make a friendly amendment that the City staff
and the applicant will continue to work on the architectural design; will increase the
interior landscaping of the parking area including adequate pedestrian pathways.
Commissioner Peterman: | will accept that friendly amendment.
Don Hazen: Can | get clarification on the architectural. Commissioner McConnell '

- you had mentioned the towers. Are you looking for vertical variation or pop out type
relief.

Commissioner McConnell: 1 want as much as | can get in quality of style. It would
be desirable if we could have both. 1 do not like to see the straight line, cell block
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looks. 1 think we can do better and it is small enough that it will not take that much
money.

AYES: Manning, Turley, Salvadori, Peterman, Legalos, McConnell.
NOS: None. :
ABSENT: Engelman.
Motion carries.
L. OTHER ITEMS
None.
M. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS
None.
N. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned a£ 11:00 P.M.
Respectfully submitted,

Uk Woichd/

(for) DON HAZEN, Secretary
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April 2, 2007
A. The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.
B. The pledge of allegiance to the flag was recited.
C. ROLL CALL:

Present: Commissioners McConnell, Manning, Legalos, Turley, Salvadori,

Peterman, Engelman.

Absent: "None.
D. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES.

None.
E. CONSENT CALENDAR AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

‘Don Hazen asked that ltem F2a be moved to L1.

Commissioner Peterman made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar and the

Agenda with the revision. Motion passed unanimously.
F. REPORT OF THE SECRETARY

1. Upcoming Meeting of Monday, April 16, 2007

a. Code Text Amendment 06-0004 Screening and Landscaping Regulations.
Continued from the meeting of February 5, 2007.

b. Inclusionary Housing Ordinance workshop/timeline. Continued from the
meeting of March 19, 2007.

c. Use Permit 07-0002 for a storage yard located at 107 Couch Street.

d. Use Permit 07-0004 for a new mausoleum at Skyview Memorial located at
200 Rollingwood.

e. Tentative Map 05-0004 to create six residential parcels at llinois and Fern
Streets.

f.  Minor Use Permit 07-0003 to expand a treatment facility located at 200
Peppercorn Court. .

g. Tentative Map 07-0004 to create two parcels for commercial development on
Mare Island.

Commissioner Turley: | was under the impression that we were going to have a meeting
that only had Inclusionary Housing on the agenda.

Don Hazen: At the last meeting the item was continued for staff to being a timeline. You
were not going to take action on the item simply looking at an outline for including the
public in the process. After that when it comes back you will be ready to conduct
hearings again. This really does not count as a hearing it was just to present the
timeline.

Commissioner McConnell: There are seven items on that calendar, two of which |
consider controversial. Are we overloading that night?

Don Hazen: We talked internally and we believe that some of these items are well suited
to become consent items. You can take those in mass unless the Commission or
someone in the audience wants to pull them off the Consent Calendar. We hate to be
the ones to tell an applicant they have to wait to the next meeting because we have too
many things on the agenda. You really never know until you get into your meetings how
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swiftly you will be moving along. If you feel that you cannot get to all the items they can
be continued.

Commissioner Salvadori: Maybe the Inclusionary Housing should be under the OTHER
ATEMS rather than a Public Hearing. it is only to hear the timeline.

Don Hazen: We were proposing to keep that as a Public Hearing item so the public can
see where it is intended to go from this point forward and can weigh in at this stage rather
than at the culmination of the entire process. We would want to limit the public testimony
to input on the timeline only. '

Commissioner Salvadori: Trying to define what they can or cannot talk about can prove
difficult. 1 think it will be a pretty big meeting.

John Nagel: There is the legal part and then there is the practical part. If indeed what is
before the Commission is simply the timeline then under the Brown Act all that people are
permitted to talk about would be the timeline.. However, anyone that wished to come to
that meeting can speak at Community Forum on items not on the agenda. If they wanted
to speak on the entire Inclusionary Housing Ordinance they would be permitted to do so.

Chairperson Legalos: Once someone has submitted a card and taken the podium it is
hard to limit their language and keep them focused on the issue.

Commissioner McConnell: | believe if we are going to rely on the Brown Act to limit
subject matter then we should disseminate information on the Brown Act to the public. |
can envision heated comments if staff tries to curtail comments by the public at a
Planning Commission meeting.

Commissioner Salvadori: That is why | believe it would be better placed in the OTHER
ITEMS. | know the public can speak on Other Items but they do not get the sense that it
is a public hearing.

Commissioner Turley: | am not a bright at the end of a meeting as at the beginning. |
would sure like to see you pare two or three of these items off. Maybe we should have
an extra meeting.

Don Hazen explained the ‘Consent Calendar process including .a full staff report in the
packet.

Commissioner Salvadori: Then we would have 3 or 4 items on Consent and the
Inclusionary Housing would be moved to Other ltems. That would leave three items on
the Public Hearing calendar. That sounds reasonable to me.

G. CITY ATTORNEY REPORT
None.
H. COMMUNITY FORUM

Commissioner Salvadori: | step out here because | have something | want to talk to the
Commission about, not as a Commissioner, but as a citizen. It has to do with the Fourth
of July parade. Donate 500 dollars and build a float. The Times-Herald will act as a
collection agency for the funds and report on the progress. The organization putting on
the parade will draw from the funds. Any excess funds would be carried over to the next
year. We are looking for any and everyone and group to be represented. | have got my
check and it will go to the Times Herald tomorrow and | challenge the Commissioners

Page 2



Vallejo Planning Commission Minutes
April 2, 2007

and City Departments and people watching. Let's find 99 other people and we will have
a fund that will be for quite a long time for this parade. | ask for your help. Thank you.

Commissioner Turley: Does that include the parade and the symphony?

Commissioner Slavadori: | can’t answer that question. This money is for the hard costs
to put on the parade. It is not for fund-raising. It is for things that you absolutely have to
pay for. :

Commissioner Peterman: | encourage people who want to donate $5 to $25 dollars to do
so. Itall counts and adds up. Everyone can be involved in some way.

l. REPORT OF THE PRESIDING OFFICER AND COMMISSIONERS

Commissioner Salvadori: Should this Commission want to show their civic pride | am
willing to make my contribution to the Commission also.

J. LIAISON REPORTS
1. Council Liaison to Planning Commission
None.
2. Planning Commission Liaison to City Council

Commissioner Peterman: On March 27, 2007 at City Council, dealing with the
lllinois Street 16 house project, we had unanimously recommended that the City

~ Council approve this. They had some of the same concerns and questions we
did about manufactured housing. | assured them that it was not going to be giant
cargo bens stuck in the middle of the property. Don and Brian did a great job
explaining what those kinds of houses were. The City Council approved the
Resolution but they wanted the developer to bring the final plans back to us
before the project moved forward. They want us to look at the plans and make
sure they are what we want them to be and approve them again.

K PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Site Devleopment 06-0045 for a single-family home in the Residential View
District located at 516 Hichborn Street. Proposed CEQA Action: Exempt.

Staff recommends approval based on the findings and conditions.

Commissioner Legalos: Before we begin this application | want to talk about an
item on the last agenda. It is being appealed. The basis for the appeal was that
there was a feeling that the Commission had indicated bias by making comments
either pro or con on the project before all of the testimony had been heard by the
public. We need to be aware of that and to take care not to make comments that
could appear to be bias before we have heard all of the input from the pubilic.

The Planning Commission made the following decision after a discussion which
included: the building being set into the hillside to minimize the height of the
building; project being set back from the street; Katherine Donovan did a _
PowerPoint presentation; steepness of the slope; architecture fits in and adds
character to the neighborhood; application started out at two story and was revised
to one story; neighbors pleased with new design; Vallejo Heights Neighborhood
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Association review project and thought it would fit in well with the neighborhood;
side setbacks will be 5 feet and 5 feet; landscaping; energy efficiency of the project;
planner inspects project for consistency with what was approved before final
occupancy; residential driveway slope maximum of 15%; this project is 12.5%.

Chairperson Legalos opened the Public Hearing. Harland Grizwald spoke and
Chairperson Legalos closed the Public Hearing. He stated that he was not notified.
The Commission asked if he was notified. Katherine Donovan produced the list
used to notify and his address was on it. Apparently the County had not changed
the name from a former owner yet but a notice did go to the house.

After the Public Hearing was closed the Commission discussed: rear setbacks;
privacy of one neighbor; building is one-story and can’t be made lower than that;
height of the building at the back.

Chairperson Legalos reopen the public hearing so the Commission could ask
questions of the applicant. Harlan’s lot is on the down slope. It is on the very back
corner of the lot. He is more closely aligned with the 25 foot setback. We are going
to plant vegetation on the back fence line in the form of bamboo. That should grow
tall enough to cover the building itself. There is a six foot fence there now and the
building is 10 feet tall at the back elevation. Itis a flat roof. There is only one
bedroom window that faces Harlan’s house. Chairperson Legalos re-closed the
Public Hearing. '

Further discussion by the Commission included: that it was unfortunate that there
was a lag by the County in changing names and Harlan did not get the notice; he
did get some information; change is difficult; we are only talking about one bedroom
window.

Commissioner Salvadori: | move that we approve SD 06-0045 with the findings and
conditions. :

AYES: Engelman, Manning, McConnell, Salvadori, Legalos, Peterman.
NOS: Turley.
ABSENT: None.

Motion carries.
L. OTHER ITEMS
1. Preview of new staff report template.

Don Hazen: Processing time for applications has to be drastically cut down. We have
performance standards that will be implemented August 1, 2007. There are very
ambitious time frames. Staff was instructed to look at our internal processes and
streamline them where possible. One of the things that | developed at my last job was a
staff report format that | believe takes less staff time to prepare then the current format
we are using. | wanted to bring samples of the new reports to you tonight so | could
leave them with you so that in the next few days you can e-mail any comments that you
might have. Staff recommendation is in the very beginning of the report along with CEQA
recommendations. Staff can really save some time in filling in the blanks on those. We

_ grouped them into headings that eliminate a lot of repetition that we have in the current
report format. The conclusion with the repeated recommendation are at the end of the
report. | believe it will not only save staff time but help you and the public. It really cuts a
lot of fat out of the current report format. | am open to any suggestions or feedback that
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you might want to provide in the next few days. We want to go to this format within the
next month or so.

Commissioner Peterman: | applaud your getting rid of the repetition.
Chairperson Legalos: | second that enthusiastically.
M. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS
None.
N. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 7:50 P.M.
Respectfully submitted,

Uk Wockt/

(for) DON HAZEN, Secretary
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A
B.

- The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.

The pledge of allegiance to the flag was recited.

ROLL CALL:

Present: - Commissioners McConnell, Manning, Legalos, Turley, Salvadori,
Engelman. :

Absent: Peterman.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES.

Commissioner McConnell moved that the minutes of Feb‘ruary 21, 2007 be approved.
They were unanimously approved with Commissioner Engelman abstaining.

Chairperson Legalos Community Forum is Item E and has in error been listed as Item i
also. We need to remove Item |. :

Commissioner Salvadori moved that the minutes of March 3, 2007 be approved. They
were unanimously approved with Commissioner McConnell abstaining.

COMMUNITY FORUM

Members of the public wishing to address the Commission on Consent Calendar items are
requested to submit a completed speaker card to the Secretary. Any member of the public who
wishes to speak as to any consent item may do so at the public comment period preceding the
approval of the consent calendar and agenda. Any member of the public may request that any
consent item be removed from the consent calendar and be heard and acted upon in Public
Hearing portion of the agenda. Such requests shall be granted, and items will be addressed in the
order in which they appear in the agenda. After making any changes to the agenda, the agenda
shall be approved.

CONSENT CALENDAR AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

All matters are approved under one motion unless requested to be removed for discussion by a commissioner
or any member of the public.

1. Use Permit 07-0004 for a new mausoleum at Skyview Memorial located at 200
Rollingwood. Staff recommends approval based on the findings and conditions.

2. Tentative Map 05-0004 to create six residential parcels at Iilinois and Fern Streets.
Staff recommends approval based on the findings and conditions.

3. Proposed Process ' Timeline, draft Inclusionary Housing Ordinance.  Staff

recommends that the schedule be approved.

Commissioner McConnell moved the approval of Consent items 1 & 3. They passed
unanimously.

Commissioner Salvadon moved the approval of Consent item 2 and the agenda as modified.
They passed unanimously with Commissioner McConnell abstaining.

REPORT OF THE SECRETARY

1. Upcoming Meeting of Monday, May 7, 2007
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a. Specific Plan Amendment 98-01C and Code Text Amendment 06-0006 for
Mare Island Specific Plan Il and CTGA to Architectural Heritage & Historic
Preservation Ordinance.

b. Use Permit 05-0026 to restore abando9ned commercial use in residential

area and substitute another use. (Consent)

C. Revision of Chapter 16.70 Screening and Landscaping Regulations.

Continued from the meeting of April 16, 2007.

d.  Site Development 07-0002 appeal of a telecommunication facility located in

the Catalina Circle Neighborhood.

H. CITY ATTORNEY REPORT

None.

J. REPORT OF THE PRESIDING OFFICER AND COMMISSIONERS

Commissioner Salvadori: | would like to remind the Commission of something that |
reported on at the last Commission meeting related to raising funds for the parade. |
would challenged this Commission and other commissions as well as City department if
they would or could get together and raise $500 so we could be represented in that
parade. | am willing to do that. If there are other Commissioners willing please talk to
me. Thank you.

K. LIAISON REPORTS

1.

Council Liaison to Planning Commission

None.
2. Planning Commission Liaison to City Council
None.
L. PUBLIC HEARINGS

1 Code Text Amendment 06-0004 to revise the Vallejo Municipal Code,

Chapter 16.70 Screening and Landscaping Regulations. Proposed CEQA Action:
Exempt. Continued from the meeting of February 5, 2007.

Continued to the meeting of May 7, 2007.

Major Conditional Use Permit 07-0002 for a tow storage yard located at
107 Couch Street. Proposed CEQA Action: Exempt.

Staff recommends approval based on the findings and conditions.

Marcus Adams: This regards Arrow Tow Service located at 107 Couch Street. It is
at the intersection of Sonoma Blvd and Couch Street. Marcus gave a short
PowerPoint presentation. Tonight on the dais you were given a memo from staff
and a petition. The memo dealt with some condition changes which | will get into
later. The petition was in opposition of the project from neighboring property
owners. Marcus showed pictures of the exterior and interior of Arrow Tow Service.
They are already operating at this location. They got a temporary Administrative
Permit from staff back in January on the condition that they submit a formal
application for permanent use at that location. That is what is before us tonight.
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Marcus showed pictures of the adjacent properties. There was a paint and body
shop to the south and a restaurant in front of the proposed site. There is a
transmission shop to the east and to the west VSFCD pump station. There are
some railroad tracks in between that and the site. Some of the issues are: site
lighting. Crime prevention asks that the applicant provide light for crime prevention
purposes. The applicant is going to ask relief from that lighting condition. He
believes the lights on the adjacent lot could sufficiently light the site. The officer
who imposed the condition is on vacation but another officer said that he did not
believe these lights would be sufficient. He does agree that if the applicant could
- show that these lights are sufficient he would be willing to waive this condition. Staff

feels the same way, if indeed the current lights satisfied the police department. The
other issue is the VSFCD pump station. There is a representative from VSFCD
here tonight who is going to speak so [ will let him deal with the access issue.
Briefly, currently VSFCD accesses their pump station from Sonoma Blivd. That
access has been a temporary position. There is no time limit on how much longer
CalTrans is going to let VSFCD use that access. It is VSFCD’s desire that in order
for them to continue to access this site they need access through the subject
property. The final issue is the screening of the site. Staff reviewed this proposal
very carefully because we realized that although it is zoned Intensive Use and is in
an industrial district it is visible from several points and is in a commercial corridor
that we hope to see improved. Zoning does allow for this use but staff takes
particular interest in the screening. The current screening does not get the job
done. The landscaping, of course, would take time to grow but the wall wouid
immediately take care of the screening issues. Marcus showed a picture of the
cyclone fence with slats from Couch Street and Sonoma Blvd. One other point that
was brought to my attention, in the staff report | stated that in the 70s and 80s there
was a car lot at the site. The car lot was approved but never built. Any questions?

Commissioner McConnell: One of the conditions submitted by the Police
Department, condition 3, is that fencing shall not obstruct the view. If we require an
8’ masonry wall how can we reconcile those two conditions?

-Marcus Adams: In the memo that you received tonight that is the condition that |
stated would be removed.

Commissioner McConneli: My recollection is that a couple years ago the City spent
considerable time, money and effort on the beautification of Sonoma Bivd. How do

we reconcile the beautification of Sonoma Blvd with what is a tow yard and storage

facility on Sonoma Blvd?

Marcus Adams:- The proposed wall and landscaping is how we are dealing with that
issue. The landscaping we recommended goes far and beyond what would
normally be required in the IU zone. Instead of two feet we asked for five feet. We
asked for landscaping not only in the front but all the way around. The Code allows
for a chain link fence with slats. We asked for the wall. We limit the size of the
vehicles that can be stored there. Nothing can be beyond 8’ tall. It is our contention
that with these measures you can have a use there that is allowed in the best way
possible without changing the zoning or denying a use that is allowed there.

Commissioner McConnell: Your recommendation is for a solid wall all the way
around with gate openings. Yet we are going to require lighting to shine down into
this lot.

Marcus Admas: My understanding is that they want light, because they will have
access to this property, and if they have to go in they don’t want it to be dark.
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Commissioner McConnell: Tow yards are required to take City tows in order to be
on the City approved list. Yet one of our concerns has been that some of the tow
yards have oversaturated their tow yards. This is not a particularly large lot.
Shouldn’t we be considering a limitation of the number of vehicles that can be
stored at this facility, as well as other facilities in the City?

Marcus Adams: They state that they have a capacity for 30 vehicles. We can ask
that the spaced be demarcated. If 30 is too many we could put a condition that
limits the number of vehicles that can be stored.

Commissioner McConnell: ‘| think we wouid need some information that would
provide that kind of meaningful information in order to make a meaningful decision.
Currently there are some RVs out there that you can certainly see over the top of
the fence. That type of vehicle would no longer be permitted at that location?

Marcus Adams: They are over 8 feet tall and therefore would not be permitted.

Commissioner McConnell: The drainage out there, | believe your report
recommends that there be storm drainage no matter what, right?

Marcus Adams: | would have to look that up but once again there is a VSFCD
representative here tonight who could definitely respond to that question.

Commissioner McConnell: Where does runoff from that lot go?
Marcus Adams: | will let the VSFCD representative answer that question.

Commissioner McConnell: | am envisioning a rather elaborate drainage system out
there to gather any hazardous runoff. That might be a prohibitive factor for a lot of
this size. | would like to hear something about that as well. Finally there is an
adjacent neighborhood and | think we would have to consider some sort of
restrictions at to the timing of the place. Yet | know that these guys get called out at
all hours of the day and night for tows. They have to tow the vehicles because the
City requires they do and they want to stay on the tow list. We would need to limit
them if they were approved at all. No vehicle entrance between 10 or 11 PM and 7
or 8 AM. | would like to hear some addressing of those concerns throughout the
presentation.

Commissioner Turley: Is this a lot for placing vehicles that have a traffic ticket on
them and the police order the vehicle picked up and towed into storage or are these
inoperable vehicles?

Marcus Adams: From what | have seen it has been operable vehicles but | am sure
the applicant can speak better to that question.

Commissioner Turley: Currently there are two RVs in there that are about 9 to 10
feet high. If this was approved those would be illegal and have to be removed, is
that correct? :

Marcus Adams: Correct.

Commissioner Turley: Will the curb and gutter be replaced?

Marcus Adams: That is a condition of approval, yes.
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Commissioner Turley: Will an opening be prepared for an entrance and will the
sidewalk be replaced with perhaps 6’ concrete instead of 4 12"?

Marcus Adams: | am not sure on the 4 % compared to 6 but they are going to have
to replace that and a standard City driveway be installed.

Commissioner Turley: Alright. If this was on a back street somewhere | would not
have much of a problem with this. But on Sonoma Blvd a lot of our visitors to
Vallejo just might very well take Sonoma Blvd. | do not think this would make
Vallejo more appealing. Number 10, second paragraph, you mention that staff did
receive three inquiries. Two were with stated opposition. Two people, one a
neighboring individual, stated that a towing yard which is visible from both Couch
and Sonoma should not be the type of use that the City would allow on this site
based on the operating characteristics of such a use. Number 12, third paragraph,
staff has received comment is opposition of the project. After they get through
using that lot they would be leaving a lot of toxic waste in the form of gas, oil and
diesel. It would have to be removed probably very expensively.

Commissioner Salvadori: | did not see anywhere in the report a sunset clause or
time limitation on this use at this location. Was that something that you discussed?

Marcus Adams: Myself and the Planning Manager did discuss this. | believe the
City Attorney has a comment of the ability of staff to add a sunset clause.

Claudia Quintana: You cannot do that.

Commissioner Salvadori: So the choice of the Commission is to deny the
application or to approve it in perpetuity. .

Claudia Quintana: Yes. Use Permits run with the land. You approve a use permit
and the conditions and they run with the land whether or not it is sold it would run
with the land. You can reasonable limit the condition of use. You could put hours. |
am not sure if the applicant might speak to his hours but you can reasonably set
hours of operation.

Commissioner Salvadori: [f the expectation is that the City would want to change
the zoning in that area. If the use permit is approved at this point it is there for as
long as it is an active use. You cannot change the zoning and disallow the use
permit.

Claudia Quintana: You could ask for a rezoning.

Commissioner Salvadori: | could ask for it but there would be no way of preventing
the use as long as it was in use.

Claudia Quintana: That is correct.

Commissioner Salvadori: My second question has to do with runoff. The plot plan
calls for the retention of gravel and not being paved. If it were paved then at least
there would be a better opportunity to collect runoff and mitigate any potential spills.
There is no talk about requiring paving at this site. '

Marcus Adams: Actually there is talk about requiring paving. Public Works asked
for a minimum of 50 feet depth and 16 feet wide paving. They were more
concerned with gravel on the street than with runoff. | ask that we listen closely
-tonight to our expert who is here to address that issue.
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Commissioner Salvadori: Did ydu discuss the possibility of paving the entire lot.

Marcus Adams: | did discuss that with the owner but with the cost and so forth that
is not something that he was amenable too.

Don Hazen: Condition 4C from Public Works is actually requiring that a 2" compact
base be required on the remainder of the lot. Compact base is the minimum
amount of pervious surface that you need to support the weight load of the vehicles.
It is the next best thing to permanent paving. As the City’'s economic development
efforts, over time, improve staff feels that ultimately there might be a higher and
better use of this site. | think Public Works is taking that into consideration.

Commissioner Salvadori: | thank you for that. | think that is what the issue is
coming down to for me. If there was a way to insure the City that there would be an
opportunity for a better use in the foreseeable future then you can be a little more
lenient in certain areas but the guidance given by the City Attorney basically is that
this could be there 50 years from now upon acceptance of the use permit.

Don Hazen: With one caveat that the terms of the lease or something known
between the owner and the tenant. We have to at some point allow for the fact that
the free market will sometimes take care of those issues. From a City enforcement
standpoint that is correct, a use permit as long as it is operating within compliance
of the conditions cannot be revoked. The free market does sometimes have a way
of solving those issues. ‘
Commissioner Salvadori: Before someone from VSFCD comes up was there any
discussion of any compensation for the property owner for the granting of this
easement or is it just something that they would like to have?

Marcus Adams: With so many attorneys in the house | am a little nervous on
answering that. But, yes.

Commissioner Salvadori: Thank you.

Commissioner Turley: In regard to the base that you mentioned, that would be very
absorbent. Whatever hit that base would sure go right through it and into the sub-
grade. The other thing that really bothers me a lot is that it is the same as someone
wanting to build a house. Then they think gee maybe we should get a permit for
this. Well someone is coming in here tonight to ask permission to store cars when
the cars are already stored. That bothers me.

Don Hazen: We might ask our staff person from VSFCD to use this opportunity to
possibly address the drainage issues if it would be helpful for the Commission.

Rolf Ohlemutz: | am the District Engineer at VSFCD. This is a permanent use
permit for this particular property. When we built the pump station on City land
adjacent to this property in the late stages of construction we ran into problems with
CalTrans. They did not want our maintenance people to access this pump station

- from Sonoma Blvd. With the pump station already in place we went into some
intense negotiations and came up with a temporary permit form CalTrans for access
from Sonoma Blvd. We had to promise CalTrans that in the future we would pursue
alternative access to this pump station. That would be through the applicants
property. For that particular reason we put a double wide gate on the back fence of
Mr. Saqueton’s property. He was very cooperative through the entire process. He
granted a temporary construction easement during construction. | assumed that our
relations with Mr. Saqueton would stay good through this entire process. Due to the

Page 6



Vallejo Planning Commission Minutes
April 16,2007 ‘

temporary status of our permission from CalTrans to access from Sonoma Bivd and
the permanent nature of the use permit | am obligate to be on record with a request
that when we talk about the ultimate use of this property that we desire to purchase
an easement through the property from Couch Street to the double gate in the back
for access to our pump station. That access would have to be an all weather road
and it would have to be open and accessible at all times.

With respect to the drainage issues there is pavement planned for this area. |
would request the plans be sent to the District because we would have to charge a
connection fee that is charged per square foot of impervious use. The applicant
would have to prove that at some prior time there was pavement on the lot to get
relief from the connection fee. In terms of the disposal of the drainage, | have not
studies the application carefully, but the drainage could go to the curb on Couch
Street or to the back to a ditch along the railroad. Disposing of the drainage would
be no problem. We would request that there be some kind of filtering of runoff to
prevent hazardous materials from getting into the storm drain facility and ultimately
out into Austin Creek..

Chairperson Legalos: There have been a number of comments about the
appearance of this facility from Sonoma Blvd., do you know of any plans to improve .
the looks of the pump station. It is not an attractive element. The masonry wall

behind the pump station would only accentuate the presence of the pump station.

Rolf Ohlemutz: The pump station itself has been through a review by City staff.
When we did the design we made sure that most of the features were below
ground. What you see right now is what we intend to be there. | am not sure if the
City would open up this case again.

Chairperson Legalos: The fences and landscaping are particularly unattractive. Is
there any reason why the station could not be hidden from view entirely?

Marcus Adams: | am not sure about entirely. Rolf and | have worked closely on
many projects. With the Commissions thoughts tonight | am sure we could work
together to put some slats in the fence to try to soften that some. We would need to
discuss the landscape further.

Rolf Ohlemutz: We would certainly work with you.

Chairperson Legalos: In my opinion the slats only accentuate the chain link and
makes matters worse. If some landscaping could be done that would be a great
improvement. T

Commissioner Salvadori: | would like to go back and address the runoff issue. If
this entire lot were paved you would recommend some type of filtering system. We
would have to require that in the use permit. However, if a soft substrate is allowed
then those chemicals would just soak into the ground and there would be some
level of runoff but would there be no requirement for filtering?

Rolf Ohlemutz: That is correct. It would be the problem of the owners. If the
contamination stays on site it would not be our concern.

Chairperson Legalos opened the Public Hearing.
Tim Jones: | am an attorney representing both the applicant and the land owner. |

have a few comments that | want to clarify concerning the proposed use of this land.
First of all, this is intended to be a tow yard. Itis a tow yard primarily for operable
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vehicles. The poor people who have tickets and had their vehicle towed or parking
in a handicapped area and had their vehicles towed. There is no anticipation that
those vehicles are going to be there for a long period of time. It certainly is not a
place where vehicles are worked on. The application does not request that. The
use permit would not include that. The concerns about chemicals coming out of
these cars is no more serious than you would find in a parking lot or along the street
curb where the cars park. | want to be sure that we separate a lot where there is a
mechanic who strips cars apart as opposed to this lot which is for storing primarily
cars that are in good working order and would not be presumed to put our any more
chemical emissions than the average car. Obviously the overriding concern for both
the applicant and the owner is the cost that are going to be incurred in allowing this
project to move forward. We are talking about a parcel of land that at maximum can
house thirty vehicles. This is not a high rent district nor is anyone building an
expensive building here. The amount of money available for improvements is
limited. If this project goes forward the amount of money that is available we want
to use for the best purposes. | am not sure that a Cadillac fix can be afforded at this
point. [ would like to directly speak to Commissioner Salvadori and his concern with
a-sunset provision. This is designed by the applicant to be a temporary use. He is
currently looking for a permanent position in which to house these vehicles. Given
the right conditions for this use permit we are willing to stipulate to a reasonable
sunset provision. This is something we can do voluntarily. That is certainly
something that we are willing to offer up. There would be a reasonable period of
time then this application would have to be rereviewed or sunset automatically. The
biggest concern right now for the landlord and the applicant is the cost of building a
8' masonry wall around this entire lot. It is an incredible cost. Masonry and/or
stucco is the most expensive form of construction. We understand the purpose
behind this. We are sympathetic with the purpose but an 8’ masonry wall that
encloses a really large rectangular lot, | am not sure it is going to accomplish what
staff is setting out for, that is to insulate the lot from outside view. It would create a
concrete behemoth that would be used for tagging and even though the police
concerns have been removed from the report they are certainly still there. No one
can see inside this facility. In compromise we are willing to offer some sort of
obscure fencing on the areas of the property that are of primary interest to staff and
I believe that would be the area of the property that backs up against the pumping
station that is visible from Sonoma Blvd but not from Couch St. Properties along
Couch would suggest that the chain link fencing along with the vinyl slats might be
adequate for that. It would be possible to install an obscure barrier by the pumping
station that would completely shield the lot from view. That might be a lot more
economical than asking that an 8’ masonry wall be built around the entire project. If
the lot is completely obscured from view | am not sure that lighting serves any
purpose whatsoever. In any event we have no objection to installing lighting. |
would suggest that that would be something that the applicant and landlord can
work with staff to determine if the existing lighting is sufficient for the purpose, if it is
not we don’t have a problem with installing reasonable lighting. One of the other
major concerns however, is landscaping and irrigation. There is no water hook up.
The cost of hooking up to the water system in order to irrigate ground shrubbery is
astronomical compared to the amount of rent that can be rendered from the lot. In
mitigation, what we propose is planting two trees in the front of this lot. One on
each side of the gate that is used to access the lot. Those trees would be of a
variety that would be subject to negotiation between staff and the applicant. They
can block, if not all, then a lot of the view. They can be supplemented by drought
tolerant shrubbery. It is not the planting or the five feet back that is the problem it is
the installation of the irrigation. That is because of the hook up requirements that
that would entail. That is a major expense and we think we can work around it by
using drought tolerant shrubbery and by using trees that do not need the irrigation.
We are hoping that that will be sufficient mitigation, particularly on the Couch side of
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the street; on the side of the street with the round restaurant and on the other side
where the auto body paint shop is located. Any questions?

Commissioner TUrley: This yard is proposed for 30 vehicles, is that correct?
Tim Jones: Correct.

Commissioner Turley: Did you know before tonight that the Engineer with VSFCD
wants an easement down the middle of that?

Tim Jones: Yes.

Commissioner Turley: With that easement would there still be room for 30
vehicles?

Tim Jones: No. The easement issue is really not on the table regarding the use
permit because it is private property. The District can condemn and easement and
certainly can take an easement, no question. If they do it would probably void the
lease by the applicant. The value of that easement is the only thing that would
potentially be in dispute but the VSFCD'’s ability to get that easement, when and if
they need it is without question.

Commissioner Turley: With the easement how many cars could you park there?

Tim Jones: With that easement, the gate was put dead center, given the width of
that double gate, if that is the size of the easement they want to take it would pretty
much eliminate the ability to use that lot for parking cars. There would not be
enough space left to make it worthwhile.

Commissioner Salvadori: Would there be anything that lot could be used for with
the easement?

Tim Jones: With that easement possibly a drive through espresso stand. | don't |
know because it cuts the heart out of that property. There would not be much.

Commissioner Salvadori: To start with the types of cars that are likely to be towed
here, the way you were describing them, would eliminate any cars that were
damaged or in any kind of collision. ~

Tim Jones: | can't tell you that they would not be towed there. | can tell you that
they would not be there for an inordinate amount of time. | can't limit what the
applicant tows there as a tow truck driver but it would not be the intent to store long
term any vehicles on this lot.

Commissioner Salvadori: My concern is the leaking of chemicals. They are more
likely to come from vehicles that are damaged.

Tim Jones: From my years of working on cars, back when you could work on cars,
I would agree with that statement. However, 1 think that the City Attorney would
agree with me that if there were any chemical runoff, any contamination of the soil,
the applicant and the land owner are both strictly liable for any damages that flow
from that. .

Commissioner Salvadori: That is frue. You said that you could voluntarily request a
sunset clause. Do you have any sense of what a reasonable time would be?
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Tim Jones: Given your comments | quickly asked the applicant and | threw out the
number of ten years. He had no problem with that. We could certainly talk about
that.

Commissioner Salvadori: OK. As you described the masonry fencing it sounded
like it would be a nice looking touch. You are right you would be building,
effectively, the walls to a castle. Have you any suggestions of a type of fencing that
would be more reasonable, more economical, that would equivocally screen the
site? Something that is not chain link.

Tim Jones: We had talked about installing redwood fencing. Cost is the overriding
reason for that. Redwood is attractive. Most of us have it around our homes. It
would obscure the view of what is behind it. It can be done economically. Also that
fencing is way easier to remove when and if down the road there is another use put
to this property that would require the changing of those fences. It is an easier
material to work with and much less expensive.

Commissioner Salvadori: You would put a six foot redwood fence with a two foot
decorative top on it and have eight feet.

Tim Jones: Yes but we think an eight foot fence is somewhat untenable given that
the VMC generally does not allow a fence over six feet tall. We would rather have a
restriction on the height of the vehicles to six feet than build an eight foot fence. An
eight foot fence does add to the cost dramatically because nothing comes standard
eight foot tall for a fence. Right now there are two motor homes parked there that
are over eight feet tall. We are ok with limiting no recreational/motor home type
vehicles in there that reach that height.

Commissioner Salvadori: If you limit it to six feet then you would not be able to put
some of the SUVs in.

Tim Jones: That might be too much of a limitation.

Chairperson Legalos: You mentioned putting in some drought tolerant trees. How
would you propose watering those during the first year or so. Even drought tolerant
trees need care until they get established.

Tim Jones: Obviously if you need to plant trees and water them for the first year
until the roots take hold potable water is going to have to be brought in to do that
.with. | do not know of another way to do it. However, that would be way cheaper
than having to hook up to the City water system to irrigate a couple shrubs.
Chairperson Legalos: You would be willing to do that?

Tim Jones: Yes.

Chéirperson Legalos closed the Public Hearing.

Commissioner Turley: | hate to get lengthy letters on our desk right at the start of
the meeting because just simply cannot read them thoroughly. There is one here
from Marie Saqueton who is the land owner and wants the project granted. She
would like it put into the record.

Chairperson Legalos adjourned the meeting for five minutes to read the letter.
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Letter submitted by Marie Saqueton: The access gate at our property located at
107 Couch Street will render said property unrentable and useless, because no
tenant would want a dominant tenement go have free access to their business
premises at anytime, for security reasons. It will also limit the usable space of the
small lot, because the clearance that will be required for access will take most of the
property area. Most importantly, the tenant will never be able to get a business
liability insurance coverage with such an easement in place, allowing strangers free
access to the premises at anytime without the knowledge of the business owner. In
my 30 years experience as insurance broker, no standard or non-standard
insurance carrier will underwrite such a high risk exposure. Therefore, with such an
easement we will never get a tenant in that property and that would greatly deprive
us of our planned retirement income. When we granted free usage of that property
to the Vallejo Sanitation Engineer no easement gate was ever granted. Then
suddenly it was installed without our knowledge. | don’t know if this was done with
malicious misrepresentation on their part or not.

As for any objection coming from the Nino Brothers, not to approve the use of this
tenant, that is without merit because that is just out of spite and personal revenge
against us, because they tried many times to buy that property but we would not sell
to them. The reason is what they did to me and my real estate client a few years
back which was underhanded, unethical and downright in bad taste.

You see, my husband and | formerly owned the whole three lots in that corner of
Sonoma Bivd and Couch St. We sold the two front lots years ago to the operators
of the restaurant, Mr. & Mrs. Jesus Magallanes. Unfortunately, the couple passed
away and the children wanted their share of the inheritance. They hired Attorney
Loren E. Straughn to handle the probate and they hired me to do the real estate
listing. | am a licensed California Realtor. The listing period was from 5/1/03 to
11/1/03. The asking price was $350,000 as give to me by the probate lawyer. |
listed it in the Muitiple Listing Service of the Bay Area Real Estate Information
Service (BAREIS) to which | am a bonified member. All members of BAREIS have
access to the information, including daily status updates, if it is sold, pending or
withdrawn from the market. We are required by BAREIS to make updates within 48
hours or else pay a $100 fine per day for non-compliance. This information is
relevant to the action timing of the Ninos in acquiring the two lots on probate sale.

On June 13, 2003 | found a willing and able buyer by the name of Chong Ly and his
wife, Meang Ly, who owned a Donut shop on Sonoma Blvd. They offered $300,000
cash and | sent the offer to the probate lawyer. | was informed by the lawyer that all
offers will be presented at the same time and after the published public notice of the
probate sale is satisfied. | informed my clients about the probate pr9ocess and
they were willing to wait. 1 kept in touch with the lawyer’s office the oldest
beneficiary for updates. They gave me the impression that we will win the bid.

On July 2, 2003 we got the acceptance much to the delight of my clients. The
probate lawyer said that we just have to wait for the court calendar hearing of the
formal confirmation. We were informed that all inspections should be done by the
clients and escrow should close no later than August 19, 2003, right after the
confirmation. My clients were agreeable and we opened escrow with North
American Title Co. in Vallejo, with the required deposit. The escrow officer was
Leslie Cron (now Mrs. Stewart) and the escrow number was 56104-04218626. | did
that as instructed by the office of the lawyer. According to the secretary of the
lawyer, the beneficiaries were excited about the offer and would like to close escrow
ASAP. | ordered all necessary inspections including natural hazards and
environmental inspection which was done by LGS. | was acting as the buyers and
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sellers agent so | had to protect both their interests. Both parties were aware of my
dual representation from the very start.

The confirmation hearing was set for August 19, 2003 at 8:30 AM at the Hall of
Justice in Fairfield. The lawyer told me that it was not necessary for me and the
buyers to be present at the hearing because it was just a matter of court formality
procedure. The Friday before that Monday hearing | received a call from a real
estate agent by the name of Earl Trumble, who wanted to know if the property is still
available. I told him no because it was already in escrow. He asked when it was
closing. | said as soon as we get the formal confirmation from the probate court.
He was so sweet on the phone, and even said, “By the way sweetie, when is the
confirmation hearing?” | honestly answered, “on Monday.” Knowing that this man
is old and had been in the business for a long time | presumed that he would be
ethical, professional and would adhere to th code ethics of realtors. Was | wrong
about him.

The next thing | learned from the probate lawyer was that an offer came from the
floor just before the Judge pounded ins gavel to confirm. The offer came from the
Nino Brothers just a few dollars over my client’s offer. Earl Trumble was their agent.
The Ninos had all the time to make an honest offer while the bidding was publicized,
but no they waited until the last minute to steal the deal from under us with just a
few dollars over our approved offer. | was so upset that | called Mr. Trumble and
told him how unethical and unprofessional he was by taking advantage of my
honesty. His reply was, “It's a dog eat dog world in this business and | had to act in
the interests of my clients.” My reply was, “I| hope you can sleep well at night with a
clear conscience, but from now-on | will watch out for you. May God forgive you,
and peace be with you.”

I had to order cancellation of our escrow. My clients were refunded their deposit by
the title company. That was a very sad awakening for me to know that there are still
some business people who are devoid of decency, character and don’t even know
the meaning of goodwill.

Sometime last year, Earl Trumble finally realized that we still own the adjoining
property to 105 Couch Street and we even have a recorded easement on that
property for years. He started calling my real estate broker, Arnie Patton and
wanted him to convince me to sell the lot to his clients. Mr. Patton knowing what
Trumble and the Ninos did to me in the past, told him to call me directly, he never
did. Then the Nino brothers started calling my husband asking to buy the lot, and
they even came to see us in person many, many times. | told them how | felt in the
way they acquired 105 Couch Street which left a bad taste in my mouth. They
denied having to do with the probate sale and blamed it all to Earl Trumble. They
even said a lot of bad things about Earl Trumble and his brother, but | knew they
were just trying to get my sympathy. | told them that if | was a vindictive person, |
would have reported Trumble to DRE for some disciplinary action on him, but |
leave people like him to heaven, they will get their last judgment at the end. | was
very adamant not to sell to the Ninos and my husband backed me up.

I later found out that the developer who had been talking to us about developing
that corner, was the same guy that was dealing with the Ninos. My husband even
went to the extent of offering the Ninos a large profit if they would sell in turn their
parcel, so we can have the corner developed, but they refused. Our offer was even
more generous than their offer for the lot. We really wanted to have that corner
developed but bad blood was started by the underhanded action on the Nino
brothers in the first place. We have been in numerous business ventures in Vallejo
since 1965, and we have never encountered a bad experience such as this.
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This is my honest and documented account of things.
Chairperson Legalos reconvened the meeting and reopened the Public Hearing.

Eddie Nino, 1357 Swinson Court, Vallejo: Me and my family own quite a few
parcels around this particular property. The use on this property will impact our
properties and also what the City would like to see on Sonoma Bivd within the next
few years. | have talked to landowners adjacent to this parcel and everyone is
objecting to this tow yard. | think it is an eyesore to Sonoma Blvd. It is going to
effect all the businesses around. If you look closer at the way this thing is located it
is almost at the entry level of Sonoma Blvd. From previously talking to City
Planning and Public Works they want to enhance Sonoma Bivd. They wanted our
participation in doing extra landscaping. Everyone was up for it. Everyone was
willing to pay into putting some of the electrical underground. Now you are turning
this place into a junkyard. Some of the cars on this lot have been there since
January. The two mobile homes have been there since January. There is not even
one car that is less than $1000 to $1500 bucks. There is definitely going to be
chemical leakage. If there is not proper drainage it is going to affect our property.
Some of this leakage is going to spill on our property. We want you to reconsider
your decision and give a big thought about what they are trying to do here. | am for
enhancing Vallejo and making Sonoma Bivd a better street. Why are we turning it
into a junkyard? Thank you.

Chairperson Legalos reclosed the Public Hearing.

Commissioner Turley: A minute ago | was complaining about getting a two page
letter on the desk tonight and we just don’t have the time to read these things and
understand completely what is going on. Now since | have said that | was just
handed a seventeen page document about one of the projects we have tonight. |
object to this because | want to do my best up here. | can’'t do my best unless | get
all the information. | have a problem with things like that. In the last paragraph of
the City of Vallejo memo dated April 16, 2007, the last paragraph, fencing should
not be obstructed in such a way that prevents police officers or citizens noticing
activity inside. The next page, second paragraph, says they have not obtained their
permit yet and the improper maintenance and deteriorating condition of the yard is
already visible. Such a tow yard should not be permitted on a main street. We
were told by Public Works for the last few years that there is a major plan to
landscape and enhance Sonoma Bivd and we were asked by Sammy Gonzalez in
Public Works to participate. The environmental impacts of such a yard are severe.
How long will the vehicles be there? [ think the attorney said not very long. Yet, it
seems that the vehicles that are there now have been there since January WhICh is
four months back. | am not going to be able to support this tonight.

Commissioner Salvadori: There are still a lot of questions in my mind and at this
point the overriding one is, and although it is not officially connected, | think by my
comments already you know that | do not think this is the best use for this property.
| was glad to hear the attorney for the applicant say that they would be willing to
consider a sunset clause. If there is truly a belief that VSFCD takes the easement
necessary to access their pump station this use could not even exist on this lot. 1
really think that has to be addressed first. Why put the City in the situation that it
has approved a use, which we may not agree is the best use, to find out it can’t be
used for that anyway. | would certainly like to see the applicant and VSFCD come
to some kind of agreement before we are put to the test of accepting this. In
addition | would like to see a sunset clause accepted and made as part of the
application. | would like to see a proposal of fencing. | do think that the applicant's
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attorney did have a good point with regard to the masonry fencing. | am concerned
that if it was only a six foot fence, and | do not agree that you wouldn't see a 6’8"
SUV over the top of the fence whether it is from Sonoma or Couch St. There has to
be some thought process into what that fence would be and how tall it would be in
order to accommodate the use as well as the screening. The landscaping is
another issue. | think there is plenty to keep talking about with regard to this lot.
The first thing being whether or not it could truly be used in this fashion if it had an
easement of the size that is being talked about. My position would be to move to
continue this and allow the conversations to continue to provide something that is
much more defined with a sunset clause, with reasonable expense in terms of
fencing.

Don Hazen: | consultation with the City Attorney we would want to recommend that
you actually delete the condition of VSFCD that is requiring the easement as a
condition of approval. The matter before you this evening really has no relationship
with that easement. There are State laws that govern how governmental agencies
can acquire easements if they need it. Really the issue before you this evening is a
request for a use permit for a tow storage yard. That is a separate process the
Commission does not need to get in the middle of. Our recommendation is to
remove that as a condition. Commissioner Salvadori's concern that that might be a
hang up in the project we would just advise you to review the project on its own
merits irrespective that a special district might be negotiating with the property
owner or pursuing imminent domain proceedings at a later date. They currently
have access to their pump station. It is a more preferable access so it is not like
public health is at risk because we do not have access to a pump station.

Commissioner Salvadori: | take umbrage with that. it is ludicrous for me to accept
the idea that we will approve a use on a parcel that could not possibly sustain that
use knowing that another agency is moving in that direction. Why can’t they have
those conversations first before we are forced to make the decision on this? We all
pretty much agree that this is not the best use for the property. Why pass a use
permit if it is never going to be used for that?

Claudia Quintana: | think what | am trying to do is separate the issues because
there are different findings that need to be made in order to justify each action the
Commission takes. If we take out the issue of the easement then the Commission
is free to concentrate on whether or not this is the correct use of property by looking
at the resolution and looking at the findings that need to be made. If the
Commission can’'t make those findings then at least we can look at what is
necessary and articulate it in terms of whether or not this is a use that would fit
within the geography of Vallejo.

Commissioner Turley: | sure agree with Commissioner Salvadori. it seems to me
we are getting the cart before the horse. It seems like that if VSFCD was going to
require an easement and they brought that to the applicant and the applicant says
then | can not do it, then why have it before the Commission.

Commissioner Manning: Even if we take out the easement potential | really think |
am getting mixed messages from staff on what is being proposed because masonry
walls are a very expensive thing to do and | have some concerns that it could be a
home for the homeless and not be safe for people in the community. It could be a
place where people could hide. When | look at all the conditions that are here it
leads me to believe that staff also feels that there are problems with having
something like this in this location which is Sonoma Blvd. So hearing from the
attorney representing the owner and applicant they have raised a lot of concerns
about the costs of such a thing. | do not think this is the right use for this space. |
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think staff sort of feels that way too. Yet we have a recommendation to approve
this.

Marcus Adams: Could there be a better use there a use that was more aesthetic or
pleasurable, more than likely yes. However, the zoning does allow for the use and
so | thought what was the best way to accommodate this allowed use and preserve
the aesthetics needed in this area. | realize these conditions would be expensive
but this is a site that is critical in it location. It is a case of if you want this use at this
site you may have to take some steps that maybe you would not have to at another
location, particularly an industrial zone that is not so visible to the public. That is
why some of the conditions that may seem greater in terms of the cost were put in.
The fencing is required in the zoning. For tow yards you will often see fencing that
is taller than six feet it is a requirement that they can be up to eight feet. Staff is
already seriously increasing the amount of landscaping at tow yards because we do
have a number of complaints from the public about tow yards keeping up their
appearance.

Commissioner Manning: We are still struggling as a community and we definitely
want to have more business here. We don’t want to make it so onerous that small
businesses can't afford to have their locations here. We want to do the right thing
for the community in keeping it beautiful but we don’t want the owners unable to
break even. | think with all the things it would take to mitigate Sonoma Bivd and
with the concerns of the neighbors that this is not the right use at this location and |
think it would be better served if staff could help the applicant find another location
that would be better suited for this use.

Commissioner McConnell: | move that we deny the application. This City spent a
lot of time, money and effort trying to devise a plan to beautify Sonoma Blvd. We
heard comments tonight about why this is not the right type of activity at this
particular location. We have heard opposition speak to the eyesore. | tend to agree
with them there are just too many problems with this particular location for this type
of activity. | think the applicant would be ill served by trying to address the costs of
such compliances that would be put upon this lot. When | see something that calls
for parking of up to 30 vehicles and | hear opposition based upon eyesore from
property owners who have some types of activities up there | have to agree with
them. More expectantly | firmly expect them to make that position consistent.

When we have applications along Sonoma Bivd that will address parking for much
more that 30 vehicles at that time. The same argument would apply then as it does
tonight. The idea of using this as a stop gap method of income for the City is
understandable given the economic consideration of this City. But | think that is
being penny wise and pound foolish. | would hope that staff would discourage such
thinking in the future. My motion is to deny the application.

Chairperson Legalos: | am going to support Commissioner McConnell's motion.
The police do tow damaged vehicles if the vehicle is unlicensed. If there are
infractions those vehicles are likely to be there for a long time and likely to cause a
problem with toxic waste. It seems like what is being proposed by the applicant is a
bare wooden fence with no landscaping and no irrigation in an area that is an entry
to the City. | am going to support the motion to deny.

Claudia Quintana: If the thought is to deny the application perhaps you could make
reference to the language that is in the resolution to be able to properly support the
decision. As you know if you did approve a conditional use permit you would have
to find that the use would be compatible with the buildings, uses and structures
giving consideration to size, scale and bulk and density. If you are proposing to
deny it that you give some thought to how it does not fit. If the vote results in denial
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you can direct staff to come back with a resolution that reflects the findings that you
are making. -

Commissioner McConnell: | will make that request of staff and | will articulate that
the site is incompatible with the nature of the area. There are no other parking lots
or storage yards in this area. The conditions that would be placed in an attempt to
comply with this usage would be unreasonable at best because of the types of
restrictions that would be necessitated, by the sensitivity to the area, by the
easement constraints, by CalTrnas, by the presence of White Slough, it is not
compatible from an ecological standpoint or the environment in that area as well. |
move to deny.

Marcus Adams: Staff in preparation for potential denial will ask that the use
discontinue within 30 days of the Planning Commission decision unless of course
there is an appeal filed. They were under a temporary permit which would expire.

AYES: 'McConnelI, Manning, Legalos, Turley, Salvadori, Engelman.
NOS: None.
ABSENT: Peterman.

Motion carries.

3. Minor Use Permit 07-0003 to expand a drug and alcohol treatment facility
from 6 to 8 persons located at 200 Peppercorn Court. Proposed CEQA Action:
Exempt.

Staff recommends approval based on the findings and conditions.

Don Hazen: This is a request to expand the number of occupants in an existing
residential treatment facility from six residents to eight residents. State Law allows
up to six residents without any local requirements. The push from six to eight does
require a minor use permit. During the initial review of this and notification to the
owners we received some feedback from residents that indicated there might be
some opposition to this proposal so we decided to bring the application to the
Commission. It would normally be a staff decision. The facility will be under the
regulation of the State. In your packet there is a very expanded description of the
use. There would be no alteration of the existing home to the exterior. We
understand that they are eight females that would be residing in this facility primarily
for recovery from alcohol and drug use. They would not have cars. We have also
recommended a condition of approval in case that were ever to change that sets the
area we feel would accommodate that parking so there would be no overloading of
parking on the street. We have identified the garage, the driveway and two spaces
in front of the home that would be the maximum allowable parking for this
residence. Staff was not able to identify any negative impacts associated with the
use primarily because the sites are managed and also under the regulatory
inspection of the State. Various departments looked at the application and it
complies with all the regulations. Staff is recommending approval with the attached
conditions of approval.

Commissioner Salvadori: The staff compares this house with a large family. This is
10 adults. That is the strangest family | have ever seen. | don't think it equates to a
large family. Also itis a four bedroom house. | am guessing that one of the
bedrooms would be occupied by a staff member. That would leave three bedrooms
for the eight residents. :
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Don Hazen: What staff meant by that was that there would be nothing to prevent 10
people from living in a four bedroom home. It is not a violation of any building code
standards. So we equated the occupancy of a drug and alcohol residency with 10
people living there as a single family home.

Commissioner Turley: The manager has her own bedroom. | would like to refer to
the letter we received from the Glen Cove HOA. We should always put ourselves in
the other guys shoes. No one objects to rising property values. But when you have
a home such as this in your neighborhood it is going to affect your property values.
The Board said that the master plan of Glen Cove is for single-family residences.
Group homes do not fit in this plan. We have had problems with other group
homes. CCRs for Glen Cove specifically exclude group homes and boarding
houses. They ask us to deny this application to expand an already out of
compliance residence. We have a letter from 215 Peppercorn Court recognizing
that the State allows these homes with six or fewer beds.

Commissioner McConnell: Glen Cove CCRs were recorded in May 1979. Do
CCRs prevent any type of care home or does State Law override CCRs.

Claudia Quintana: The HOA may have a case against the homeowner if they
wished to pursue it.

Don Hazen: We are bound by our City Zoning Ordinance and we do not enforce
CCRs. State Law says they can have a house of six or less and that is what we go
by. We also do not want to lead an applicant down the path that might lead to
litigation or eviction. This might be something we would wish to ask them. In the
end we are asked to judge this in conformity with City jurisdiction not CCRs.

Claudia Quintana: There is something that | would like to add to that. Currently by
State Law group homes with six or under are excluded from the definition of group
homes and are treated as families. If you bump them to eight you take them out of
the exemption. Currently it is a permissible use by all standards.

Don Hazen: It is a use listed in our Zoning Ordinance as requiring a use permit.

Commissioner Engelman: The first year | was a Commissioner we had several
situations where the CCRs did come up. To my memory the Commission always
went by the CCRs. In one case the person had converted his garage to a room and
we made him tear it out. Since the group home is in compliance in my opinion if we
bump it up to eight then you are going to bump it up to legalities that | do not want to
getinto.

Commissioner Salvadori: My recollection is similar to Commissioner Engelman’s.
One thing that came up was since the Commission could impose the requirement to
have CCRs we had at least a responsibility to respect those CCRs as we went
forward. | thank the City Attorney for clarifying the definition of a group home not
being a group home. It was very helpful because even though it appears that the
CCRs are written to exclude such a facility under State Law the semantics of it
would allow it. To go beyond that would exceed the CCRs.

Claudia Qunitana: At the very least this is evidence of the findings you have to
make to approve the application that it is compatible with the neighborhood or to
deny it that it is not compatible with the neighborhood. | do want to stay away from
saying that this is the law of the land because it is not.
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Commissioner Manning: | was just going to suggest that we open the Public
Hearing.

Chairperson Legalos opened the Public Hearing.

June Cummings: | am the Director of Emani Incorporated. When we first moved
into the residence at 200 Peppercorn Court we made the owner fully aware of the
type of facility that we intended to open. She was in favor of our program being in
her property. | heard someone say that it would bring down property values. The
new owner of this property was aware of our program and he purchased that
property at full value. We have been in that residence since May 2004. We have a
track record of being respectable neighbors and of being quiet. We keep good
maintenance and well kept landscaping. Some members of the Commission came
to look at the property. The house has four bedrooms, two of which are master
sized. There are two smaller bedrooms. The house manager lives in one of these.
The original owner added on a 600 square foot studio downstairs. That is why it
would not be too crowded to have 10 people in that house. We have 24 hour
staffing. With 2 additional people we would be allowed to have one more full time
person. That would make sure that the program continued as hit has for the last
three years. It would ensure that none of the women would act inappropriately in
the neighborhood. It is a voluntary program. You are volunteering to come in and
we are volunteering to let you stay there. If you cannot follow the rules and
guidelines then we cannot allow you to stay there. If there is disruption in the
neighborhood, if people are smoking out front, is people are socializing in the front
of the building we do not allow any of that. We do not have a lot of visitors. The
only people that come and visit are the children of the women that are in our
program. Often times they have not seen their children for a very long time. Our
women do not have cars and the ones that do are not allowed to bring them to the
house. The only spaces we use are for staff in the garage and the two spaces out
front are for case managers. When you take women who's whole life has been in
and out of prison and you show them a new way of life and you reunify them with
their children and teach them how to become gainfully employed and you reduce
the rate of crime that improves the quality of life of our clients and the other citizens
of Vallejo. | realize that there are CCRs from 1979. Do 30 year old CCRs dictate
everything that goes on with this Commission and this City. | understand that we
want to respect the CCRs but | also feel that what we bring to the neighborhood is
much more important. if we were a problem or the police has ever been called to
our house | could understand. We have not had those issues. We have invited
neighbors on two occasions to come to an open house. We had the neighbors on
both side show up and they were both in favor of the program. | went and asked
neighbors and eleven signed that they were not opposed to us doing this. We had
one that is really against us and eleven for us. You have the signatures right there.
Whatever the Commission decides we will go along with. | would like the
Commission to take into consideration that we have been very good neighbors. We
have a three year track record. The benefits to the community outweigh the
complaints that they have against us, which are none really. Thank you.

Chairperson Legalos: At your current size of six you are offered protection by State
Law. Should your application be approved you may be exposing yourself to
litigation. Are you aware of that?

June Cummings: Yes.

Chairperson Legalos: And you wish to continue.

June Cummings: Yes.
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. Commissioner McConnell: - You have two staff members there now.
June Cummings: We have two daytime staff and one nighttime staff.
Commissioner McConnell: If approved you would add one additional staff person?
June Cummings: The new person would work 8:00 AM to 4:00 or 5:00 PM.
Commissioner McConnell: Your nighttime staffing would remain at one.

Ju~ne Cummings: Yes. We also have an alarm system. Our program is voluntary.
If they want to leave all they have to do is say.so. They do not have to sneak out
during the middle of the night. People come there because they want to change
their lives.

Commissioner Salvadori: The new property owner knows what you are doing?
June Cummings: Yes he does.

Commissioner Salvadori: He signed the CCRs when he bought the property. He is
the one at risk and in violation of the CCRs if the count goes up to eight. Do you
think he would give the answer that it does not make any difference?

June Cummings: [ don’t know. | would have to ask him but he did write you the
letter in support of us.

Commissioner Manning: | drove by the property and it is a lovely neighborhood and
I never would have known that there was a care home there. It is very well taken
care of. | applaud you for doing this type of work in our community. It is lovely that
women have a chance in such a nice neighborhood to turn their lives around. Why
do you want to add two women?

June Cummings: The demand for treatment is what is driving us. The people who
place women in our programs are saying that they need more beds. There is only
one program that provides treatment specifically for women in Vallejo outside of us.
There are co-ed programs but not specifically for women. We are also different in
that we will deal with women that take medication. Some of our women have health
issues some have mild to moderate mental health issues. When someone is sick
they need their meds.

Commissioner Manning: Have you had a program in Vallejo before 2004?

June Cummings: No, but | have been working with care homes since 1989 in San
Francisco, Berkeley and Oakland. We recently opened a program in Benicia.

Martin & Marilyn Silverstein, 215 Peppercorn Ct, Vallejo: My name is Martin
Silverstein and this is my wife Marilyn. We have owned our residence located at
215 Peppercorn Court in Vallejo for 28 years. We would like to present our opinions
regarding the expansion of the community based drug and alcohol treatment facility
operated by Emani, Inc and operated at 200 Peppercorn Court. This facility is
located less than 50 feet, across the street from our residence.

We understand that the State of California allows community based health care
facilities such as this to be established anywhere if there are 6 or fewer beds in the
facility. It is only when the facility expands to more than 6 beds that the local zoning
laws come into play. Therefore, we do understand that we are not able to do

Page 19



Vallejo Planning Commission Minutes
April 16, 2007

anything to stop the existence of this facility, but would like to present our concerns
regarding its expansion.

Our concerns for ourselves and our neighbors include the following:

e We are very concerned about what this expanded facility will do to our property
values. We must disclose the existence of this facility to any potential buyers.
How many people will want to purchase a home in this proximity to a house
whose residents are ex-convicts with substance abuse issues? The residents
take group walks through the neighborhood, and their appearance can be
intimidating. :

o What it the maximum number of residents that this facility will be allowed to take
in?- Visitors and staff will all need access to the facility. What does that number
do to the vehicle and foot traffic in our court of only 14 homes?

e We have already seen examples of inappropriate behavior in a family
neighborhood. Women in their housecoat giving back adjustment and
massages in front of 200 Peppercorn Court. Side shows in the middle of the
night at the intersections of Wildberry and Peppercorn Courts. This is right in
front of 200 Peppercorn Court. Cigarettes were dropped over the fence for one
of the women living in this house. We should not have to be subjected to this
type of behavior.

e This house is owned by an absentee landlord and is not currently being
maintained. When my wife spoke with June Cummings she indicated that there
was no money to do the maintenance. This eyesore is not in keeping with the
established standards of our neighborhood.

e The residents are basically transient, having no vested interest in the
neighborhood.

We also have concerns as to how the expansion of this facility will affect the City of
Vallejo. We understand that Vallejo is “trying to change it s image” and talks about
improving the quality of life. The development of these centers in not improving the
quality of life of the residents of Vallejo. There are currently more than 50 such
community based rehabilitation homes (per COV Planning Division maps) in
operation in Vallejo. Allowing these homes to expand, to bring more transients into
our community will do nothing to improve the quality of life for the tax paying
residents of our neighborhood, our development, or our City. It is our fear that it will
cause depreciation of the value of our home and those of our neighbors. This in
turn will do nothing to help uplift Vallejo and its image in the Bay Area. Thank you
for allowing us this opportunity to present our views.

Ruth O. Fisher: My name is Ruth O Fisher, and this is the fourth consecutive year
that | serve as the Chair of the Glen Cove Community Association. During my term
of service, this is the only request | have ever seen for an increased number of
residents at a licensed group home located in the Glen Cove neighborhood.
Planning staff member Deborah Marshall, earlier this evening, distributed to each of
you, a GCC Board of Directors’ letter written by Stacey Kennington. Please note it's
not the 17-page one that you have gotten from someone else - emphasizing that
Glen Cove master plan stipulated single family residences only. The property at
200 Peppercorn Court is situated in the Glen Cove Hills development and, as
already indicated, the CCRs, originally prohibited any sort of group business
operation at the private residence. Certainly as laws change and neighborhoods
mature, our mostly single household community is dotted with other licensed group
home facilities. Some of these residential operations have blended in smoothly
while others have existed in an undesirable manner. Questionable activities,
excessive vehicles, and disruptive behaviors have warranted routine notice to the
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Vallejo Police Department, the Vallejo Fire Department and other additional
agencies to achieve corrected actions and improve the situation. This evening you
have heard from a Glen Cove resident voicing their concerns regarding the
operation at 200 Peppercorn Court. On behalf of the Glen Cove Community
Association, | respectfully encourage you to object to the Planning Division's
recommendation to place two more individuals into this four bedroom, two and a
half bath house. Hopefully your meeting packet does include an updated copy from
the State of California, Department of Alcohol and Drug Program license and
certification as the one submitted in January, displayed an expiration date of March
31, 2007. It does seem inappropriate for any Vallejo residential neighborhood to be
burdened by an excessively populated group home. Thank you for your
consideration.

Margaret Plump, 129 Stonewood Ct, Valiejo: Good evening. My name is Margaret
Plump. I live in Glen Cove Hills in Vallejo and | was actually the third family to move
in Glen Cove and | have been there for 28 years. | am opposed to the expansion of
the facility. 1feel that it is in the midst of the residential area, and | think that there
are several hundred homes in this area, and | do believe in the program. | think that
it is a good program. | just really think that it is in the wrong place. And, the second
point | would like to make is that in the 28 years that | have lived there, | have seen
more fire trucks and police cars in my neighborhood in the last year than | have in
the last 28 years. And so, | am here tonight to ask the Commission if you would
delay approval of this. | would like to have the opportunity to present information as
to just how many times police and fire have been to the facility. So I would like to
be able to present that information. Thank you.

Chairperson Legalos closed the Public Hearing.

Commissioner McConnell: Thank you Mr. Chairperson. | am going to move to
deny the application. 1don't think it's consistent with the neighborhood. More
especially, there are some group dynamics that always change when you increase
a group size from six to eight, and by keeping a one-person staff on duty at night,
you substantially alter those group dynamics, and it is a question of control. |
believe that Emani has an excellent program. The comments from the neighbors
and supporters are very impressive and | think you are accomplishing a wonderful
amount of good work. Rather than expanding by one-third, the size of the
operation; my preference would be that you develop a second location. | think it
would be much more advisable and in the end analysis, much more profitable. So,
Mr. Chairperson, my motion is to deny the application as being inconsistent with the
neighborhood. »

Commissioner Turley: | would just like to make a comment for a moment please,
about the CCRs. It so happens that | live in Glen Cove and the CCRs may be 30-
years-old but from the observations that | have made, they are probably more
effective today than they were years ago because of the Glen Cove Homeowner's
Association. They are a very strong and dynamic association and | wouldn't at all
be surprised at what the CCRs, the way the Glen Cove Homeowner's Association
are going, | wouldn’t be at all surprised a hundred years from now, that the CCRs
will still be very strong. Thank you.

Commissioner Manning: Oh, | just want to — | can't say how hard it is to do this, so.

But, 1 just want to say, I lived in Glen Cove for 12 years and it is a beautiful

community and [ really applaud what you are doing there. | remember a time when

Mare Island closed and there were so many empty homes and there were people

that were just trying to rent out to anybody and we had a crack house on our street,
~ and my house was like a seven or eight-year-old neighborhood and | would love if
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they had a facility like yours on my street any day as opposed to people in trouble
like that and people buying drugs. Again, | really want to applaud you. | also did
hear from the community and the neighbors concerned, and | am also worried for
you that if you do go outside of the six-family-unit number that you really open
yourself up to some possible problems with the CCRs. Anyway, | just wanted to
share that and again applaud you and thank you for the hard work that you are
doing in our community. It really makes a difference.

Chairperson Legalos: | would like to second Commissioner Manning’s comments. |
visited today and | was very impressed with how well managed the place was and
how clean it was and in fact | wanted to know who your housekeeper was. And,
obviously you are doing a very important job and doing a good job of it, but | do
think if we were to approve this, you would be putting yourself and your program at
risk, so | am going to support the motion to deny also. If there are no further
comments, please vote.

AYES: McConnell, Manning, Legalos, Turley, Salvador, Engelman.
NOS: None.
ABSENT: Peterman.

Motion carries.

4. Variance 06-0001 to modify an existing shopping center sign at Redwood Plaza
to permit for 5 tenant signs. Proposed CEQA Action: Exempt.

Staff recommends approval based on the findings and conditions.

Marcus Adams: OK, | have been admonished to make this as short as possible, so
| will do my best here. This is indeed a variance request to modify an existing
shopping center sign located at the Redwood Plaza. 1 have a very short couple of
slides just to orient you with the location and with the sign itself. So here on this
slide we can see the, looking at the plan, we can see the existing sign. It may be
hard to tell, but if you cannot see the sign, you are familiar with it so hopefully you
got a copy of the proposed sign — a color copy rendering along with the example
which | will go into a little bit soon. But the existing sign is indeed a wood sign with
some wood letters on this pedestal. Here is another view of the sign — both of these
taken from opposite directions on Admiral Callaghan. The sign currently right now
is not illuminated so at nighttime it's not really visible. And then, here is the slide of
the different buildings here in the shopping center. | wanted to include this slide so
that you could see the situation that the shopping center has as far as tenant
identification of its stores that are not on some of the pads out there. If you did go
out to the site, that there are some pads that are closer to Admiral Callaghan which
are fine for their clients — Kinko's, the Qil Changers, and a couple others but for the
most part, most of the shop stores are set back quite far from Admiral Callaghan
and are not visible, and even Safeway, itself, is set back. As noted in the staff
report, the applicant has been very patient working with staff. He came to us a few
- years ago asking about modifying the sign. At that time we had just recently had
the situation with Vallejo Plaza. If you remember that would be Dee Dees. There is
the shopping center sign there and | told Commissioner Manning, | hope you
remember, that | did mention to you that it was our hope that staff would amend the
sign ordinance so that we could address the situation because currently the code
does not allow for any type of identification on a shopping center sign. Needless to
say, | haven't had the opportunity to amend the sign ordinance although it is getting
closer to where we are starting to work on some sign ordinance amendments. Be
that as it may the applicant decided that instead of waiting for us, to amend that he
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would go through a variance procedure and because he did work closely with us as
far as coming up with what we think is a very attractive sign, the staff was able to
support this and the reason being: 1. The type of sign, they limiting the panels to
just four which we know because an excessive amount of files including the main
anchor there, Safeway, and the type of signage that they are going to be using
there, the halo letters are something that you don't see a Iot of here in Vallejo and it
is kind of-a new trend in signage which I think will be very attractive and fortunately,
he was able to give us an example of, for the tinted panels. The staff was
concerned that they would just be kind of a hard plastic or Plexiglas panel that went
in and out so we told them to come up with something that would not have that, kind
of, for lack of other word, “cheap look”, and so they came through with what they
call push through letters. We have an example here tonight where you have this as
your base and then the panel pushes through and there is a % inch gap there so
you will have that halo effect even on the tenant panels, so you will have the halo
for Safeway, the Redwood Plaza, and then even the tenant panels are going to
have this look that you see here which | think is very attractive — something that we
don’t have on any of our other shopping center ID signs so the staff felt that we
were able to make the variance findings which are in the staff report, and we think
this could be a fine example or model for when we do amend the sign ordinance,
how we would like to see our shopping center ID signs that include tinted. As far as
who would be on the tenant panels staff will leave that open for the management
but in speaking with the sign company tonight who brought this proposal forward
and there was a representative here if you had questions about the sign itself but
more than likely you are going to have the tenants with the larger spaces on those
panels. Itis just going to be, you know there will be a service price that you will
have to pay to be on those panels and normally those who can afford it are some of
the larger tenants. Maybe not the pads because they are already visible from
Admiral Callaghan but some of the shopping units that may have a couple of
spaces there in the back. So, with that, | am open for any questions.

Commissioner Salvadori: Thank through the chair. Mr. Adams, | am very much in
favor of putting signage so that people can see where there is to shop in the center.
The one concern | have is that it is current and accurate and so we don’t have the
signs of businesses up on a shopping center sign for months when there is a vacant
space there and | didn’t see anything in the variance that would preclude that from
happening, and I'd like to. | think the variance is an excellent idea so that people
traveling on Admiral Callaghan can truly be aware of what is in the center and |
know that the owners of the center don’t want to have any vacant spots, and not at
this particular center, but | can tell you | have experienced pulling into a center and
finding out the place that is on the sign is no longer there so that if there is a way we
can, we can address that, I'd certainly appreciate it. Short of that, it is a pretty good
looking proposal.

Commissioner McConnell: Thank you Mr. Chairperson. If | may through the Chair.
How tall would the sign be?

Chairperson Legalos: Let me take a look and see if it's on the plan here but the
only extension of the current sign would the Redwood Plaza arch there so. | would
be guessing to give you the exact height but it is going to be an additional,
approximately an additional 2 feet from the existing.

Commissioner McConnell: Okay, so it's not much larger than what we have out
there already?

Chairperson Legalos: Correct.
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Commissioner McConnell: But it will be eliminated tonight?
Chairperson Legalos: Correct.

Commissioner McConnell: And the candle power will not be so large as to cause
distractions or glare on the freeway?

Chairperson Legalos: That's one of the really nice things about the halo signs is
that the light intensity is not bad.

Commissioner McConnell: Well, one of the concerns | have, not with that shopping
center, is the fact that CalTrans has seen fit not to erect a barrier hard rail out there
and we have had at least two or three cars come through there near Target that |
know of, and | would urge the City to put whatever pressure they can upon
CalTrans to erect a guard barrier along Interstate 80. | think it's badly needed but
the sign’s a great idea. Thank you.

Chairperson Legalos: If there are no further comments or questions from the
Commission, | will open public hearing. Does the applicant wish to address the
Commission? | have a card here from Mr. Ronald Boatman from JSJ Electric
Display. Are you speaking for the applicant, sir?

Ronald Boatman: I'm speaking for the applicant, sir. Good evening, my name is
Ron Boatman. I'm with JSJ Electrical Display. We are a manufactures in Benicia,
California and | am the manufacturing representative for the company and | am
representing the AKT Development which is the owner of the Redwood Plaza, and
I'd like to just take a couple of moments to kind of address a couple of issues that
had came up. 1. The current sign right now is illuminated. The Redwood Plaza
does illuminate. There’s lamps in there but the sign is so disarray that it doesn't
work so it hasn't been illuminated for a number of years because there’s birds
nesting in there because of the wood on the front fascia is been dilapidated and its
fall apart and it has not worked for a couple of years but there is power there
currently and it is, was currently illuminated at one time. The background is a T-111
currently which is a wood siding with the Redwood Plaza which is routed out so just
the letters would light up if it did light. What we are proposing is just to add about
two feet to the top of the sign and where the Redwood Plaza is right now that would
be aluminum face so it wouldn’t be a sign cabinet with a plastic face that would just
blast out white light. It would be opaque background. The Safeway letters would
be eight individual halo-lit letters, which means the light would come out the back of
the letter instead of in the front. Each one of the tenant panels as Marcus has
demonstrated there, that is an aluminum panel that is routed out. We use a % inch
thick piece of plex that comes through so that low light comes around the letter —
just the letter itself lights up so it looks like an individual letter on there, so which is
the next step up from taking a white plex space and putting vinyl on it because that
makes it look like a regular sign cabinet. These look like all individual letters at .
night. All the background of it would be the same color as the buildings in the
background. Safeway is going through a remodel. AKT is spending a lot of money
on to upgrade the center — one of the things that they had come to me a couple of
years ago, about two years ago, upgrade the sign, and we have been waiting for the
City to come up with a Code Text Amendment to do that to allow tenants on the
signs but there is other signs right there up and down. Admiral Callaghan does
have tenants. | believe they have gone through a variance. To kind of answer your
question about the tenants having a blank panel there, there just happens to be
about 18 tenants other than Safeway in this shopping center. There is only 4 tenant
panels available. They actually have a waiting list of tenants that would want to get
on there as soon as somebody would go out of this list that would go on there, so
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immediately and they are going to be charging a fairly nice little decent rate to be on
there, so they do have a waiting list of tenants to go on the sign if a tenant does
move out so the chances of a vacant panel there would be pretty much null and
void because of the largeness of the center and the amount of tenants that are
waiting to get on the sign. Do you have any questions?

Chairperson Legalos: Commissioner Turley?

Commissioner Turley: Thank you Mr. Chairperson. One question. If there is a
waiting list of tenants wanting to get on that sign, can you, because | am very
curious, can you tell me why you don'’t expand the size of the sign so that anybody
that wants to get there can get on there?

Ronald Boatman: That is a good question and | would like to answer that. The size
of the sign right now has x-number of square footage. The x-number of square
footage determines the wind load upon the footing of the base of the sign. To
enlarge the sign to put more tenants on it, you would actually have to rip the sign
out, do a bigger base, a bigger footing, to have more tenants on there which would
increase the wind load so to keep the costs down — they are only spending about
$25,000 just to refurbish the sign as it is right now. To do away with it — to put a
new sign up, you're probably looking in the neighborhood of $60,000 to-$70,000 to
add maybe four more tenants, so dollar-for-dollar it's not worth it to change the wind
load, the amount of the square footage, so what we have done, is, we have taken
the Redwood Plaza, the amount of square footage there, made that into five tenants
and just added on top just a small little Redwood Plaza. It's only 2 feet high but it is
not a solid surface. There is an opening at the bottom as you can see so there is
not a wind load pushing against that sign so we wouldn't have to change the footmg
details as far as the engineering and structural of the sign. Okay. '

Chairperson Legalos: Thank you. If there are no further speakers, | will close the
public hearing and bring the matter back into the hands of the Commission. | would
also like to make a comment related to Commissioner McConnell's. It seems to me
there must be something that distracts drivers around that area. | was stopped at
the stop sign at Evergreen when a very large car flew off 80 and spun around in the
intersection in front of me. A few weeks after that, another car came through that
same intersection and | was not there at that time, and- a few months after that,
there was a third one and | was just wondering, what is distracting people at that
point and if some attractive sign might not exacerbate that situation.

Commissioner McConnell: Thank you Mr. Chairperson. I'd like to respond to your
comment. | have been in discussions with Assemblywoman Marian Evans about
the possibility of having CalTrans erect a guardrail there. She and her
administrative assistant Veronica has indicated to me that while they are interested
and desirous and think it's a good idea, they need to see City and local support for
that so | would urge anyane who has an interest in pushing this or seeing that
happen to write to your legislators, petition the mayor, petition the traffic engineer,

- but something has to come out of the citizenry or it probably won’t happen. Thank
you. :

Chairperson Legalos: Thank you Commissioner Mc ‘Connell.

Commissioner Turley: Thank you Mr. Chairperson, and | recommend that we
approve the variance permit 06-0001 subject to the finding and condltlons contained
in the staff report.

Chairperson Legalos: Miss Quintana?
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Claudia Quintana: Could I ask you whether you also need to approve the resolution
that's attached to the staff report?

Chairperson Legalos: Yes. Commissioner Turley, would you like to restate your
motion with the change suggested by the City Attorney, please?

Commissioner Turley: Recommend approval of the variance permit 06-0001
- subject to the finding and conditions contained in the staff report and what?

Claudia Quintana: The resolution that’s attached.
Commissioner Turley: Yeah, in the resolution.
Chairperson Legalos: Thank you. Please vote.

AYES: McConnell, Manning, Legalos, Turley, Salvadori, Engelman
NOS: None.
ABSENT: Peterman

Motion carries.

5. Tentative Map 07-0003 to create two parcels for commercial development on
Mare Island. Proposed CEQA Action: Exempt.

Staff recommends approval based on the findings and conditions.

Deborah Marshall: L-5 is tentative map 07-0003 to create two parcels for
commercial development on Mare Island. Proposed CEQA action is exempt. Staff
recommends approval based on the findings and conditions and Michelle Hightower
will present this item.

Michelle Hightower: Good evening Commissioners.

Chairperson Legalos: As Commissioner Turley pointed out we have been handed a
17 page document here and can you tell us which items have been changed so that
we don’t have to read this entire document?

Michelle Hightower: Yes, | apologize for that. We did have an issue with conditions
D-9 on page 12, and it occurred at a condition that referred to residential
development and that is not applicable as well as the Vallejo Sanitation and Flood
Control District No. 23 which | believe is on page 16 and | believe also not
applicable and | just wanted to provide a clean copy of what you agreed to be
considered this evening.

Chairperson Legalos: Okay, so those are the only changes?

Michelle Hightower: Correct. |

Chairperson Legalos: Thank you.

Michelle Hightower: Okay. Lennar Mare Island is the master developer of Mare
Island as you know, and they are proposing their first nonresidential subdivision that
would be south of E Street as part of the redevelopment of Mare Island. This

particular project is located on the south side of Connelly Street and Railroad
Avenue and Walnut Avenue as shown on the first map — the top map. The bottom
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map just shows clearly that this area is located in the developed area of Mare Island
with a lot of buildings surrounding the site. The existing site contains three historic
buildings. Building 257 is in the corner of Railroad and Connelly. it is currently a
vacant warehouse building. It is approximately 57,000 square feet. It has four
general rooms. Building 237 is in the center. It is also vacant and itis
approximately 62,000 square feet and is a two-story building, and lastly; building
253 is located in the corner of Railroad Avenue and Connelly Street. This building
is actually currently being used for a warehouse and storage facility for an antigue
dealer. ltis actually a three-story building with approximately 60 feet in height and
36,000 square feet. The current lessee in this building has expressed interest in
purchasing the building from Lennar and actually negotiations have been initiated
for the sale. As shown one can see that the particular property does not have a
stripe parking lot, no vegetation, and no curb and gutter. The proposal is to retain
building 253 on this site and then to demolish buildings 237 and 257. This particular
property is located in the Mare Island Historic District, and in order to demolish
buildings of notable significance, a terms analysis and a relocation analysis is
required and that analysis was submitted to our Mare Island historic preservation
consultant, and it was determined that the proposal to demolish this has met all of
the criteria. The proposal is to create two parcels. Parcel 1 would include building
253 and a parking lot and Parcel 2 would accommodate a future construction of a
commercial building. Now in order to create a parcel that actually conforms to our
zoning code with respect to parking, the staff has included a condition of approval
for Parcel 1 and that requires the demolition of building 237 which is in the center as
shown, and then also the construction of the parking lot has to be done prior to
recording the final map. The design of the parking lot would require a Certificate of
Appropriateness from the Architectural Heritage and Landmark’s Commission and a
unit plan from the Planning Division. Also for Parcel 2, the future construction of the
new building and parking lot would require a Certificate of Appropriateness and a
unit plan. The subdivision also includes street improvements for the surrounding
roadways. The Public Works Department has allowed these improvements to be
deferred and constructed as planned in the Mare Island Infrastructure Phase-In
Plan. And, that calls for the improvements on Walinut Avenue and Connelly Street
to be constructed by the end of 2009 and improvements on Railroad Avenue to be
constructed by 2010. As | mentioned, there are changes in the conditions of
approval. | pointed out earlier the condition number 9 for the one division included a
residential reference as well as a sanitation and flood reference. The staff is
recommending approval. We believe that the project is in compliance with the Mare
Island Specific Plan, the zoning of it, and the subdivision ordinance. ,
Representatives are here this even to answer any of your questions, as well as our
City engineers. Thank you.

Chairperson Legalos: Commissioner Salvadori.

Commissioner Salvadori: Thank you. Through the chair to Miss Hightower. First of
all, | want to say “Yee Hah!” | just want a clarification on something that you said.
The requirement is that the parking lot next to building 253 is completed. Prior to
the road improvements — that sounds like there will be double building and | am
sure a representative from Lennar can discuss that but before the subdivision will
be approved, the parking lot has to be built and | would assume that would happen
before the need in 2009 for the street improvements. Is that consistent with what
you said?

Michelle Hightower: That is consistent. What we are doing on Mare Island in
absence of the road improvements, is putting in a firm asphalt berm and that would
provide the border for the parking lot, and then striping, so we are allowing a
temporary parking lot to be provided on the site.

Page 27



Vallejo Planning Commission Minutes
April 16, 2007

Commissioner Salvadori: Okay, thank you.
Chairperson Legalos: Commissioner McConnell.

Commissioner McConnell: Ms. Hightower — the language in the staff report
indicates that this is a conceptual design of the parking lot. Am | correct in
understanding that the final design will be subject to review by both the Planning
Division and possibly the Planning Commission?

Michelle Hightower: The Mare Island Specific Plan allows that property that has
been parcelized — that the construction of it in design that would take place after the
parcelization has been approved by the Planning Commission to be approved by
staff. So, a unit plan can come forward as long as it's consistent with the map that
has been approved by this body, and the staff would resume the design .

Commissioner Salvadori: My concern with this and with all parking lots is one that
addresses the safety of pedestrians and the adequacy and the extent of
landscaping. Eventually no doubt, and hopefully, there will be lots of cars parked
out there with employees who at the end of the day will hop into their cars on a
summer day and have to turn on their air conditioners unless there is adequate and
substantial shade trees. We have been delaying and delaying our landscaping
ordinance so | would like to have a requirement in this particular application to
include adequate and sufficient shade trees and adequate and extensive setbacks
for landscaping purposes and | would prefer they actually be done in the final
application because | see the applicant wants to delay this until 2009 and though |
can live with that, | don’t particularly want to waive the right to demand a high
standard for appearance for this parking lot, particularly on one of the very first ones
out there. | do note in the staff report that they wish to delay construction until the
end of 2007, which we are almost there, and Railroad Avenue to be completed by
2009. What's the reasoning for that delay?

Michelle Hightower: | believe the reasoning is because parts of the street have not
been cleared completely by DPSC, however;, the City Traffic Engineer can answer
that question more appropriately.

Commissioner Salvadori: Okay.

David Kleinschmidt: Good Evening Commission — David Kleinschmidt, City
Engineer. We discussed with the applicant the timing of the infrastructure
improvements and it was staff's opinion that constructing a project that was more
contiguous instead of breaking it up into small sections was a better decision and
we felt it would be more appropriate to allow the applicant to defer the construction
of that segment of right-of-way both on Connelly, Railroad, and the other fronting
street until they were ready to construct a much longer segment and had it
completely designed. We have got the securities necessary to insure that that work
does take place in the future and we’re protected from an economic standpoint in
making sure that we design it in a complete manner from end-to-end of the project.
It is more appropriate to do it at a later date.

Chairperson Legalos: That's fine. Is it the intent to have thlS 60-foot high
warehouse used for storage of antiques?

Michelle Hightower: | believe that would more purposefully be answered by Lennar,

but currently the antique dealer is using the building and plans to retain the building
for that use.
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Commissioner McConnell: | see inconsistency with the general plan. You indicate
that this purpose is to generate employment and | am wondering how much
employment are we going to generate with a warehouse for antiques?

Michelle Hightower: Well, we also have with the parcelization, the accommodation
of a future commercial building on the opposite site. Also, the Mare Island Specific
Plan called for the retention of this building. It was anticipated that many of the
warehouse buildings would be used for those purposes and we would like to
maintain the historic setting of Mare Isiand by allowing some of these buildings to
remain and to be used for the purposes that they were originally built for.

Commissioner McConnell: That's fine. I'm just interested in seeing as much
employment positions out that as we can possibly generate and if we are only going
to have an antique warehouse storage facility, | am somewhat skeptical as to how
many employment positions we are going to generate by that. My concern
principally is the landscaping of this parking lot and the holding of the applicant to a
relatively high standard in this case. | believe | can support this application as long
as there is some reservation to the Planning Commission to review the actual
landscaping, setbacks and shade requirements that are going to go into this when
that time comes. So, those are my comments. Thank you.

Chairperson Legalos: Commissionér Manning.

Commissioner Manning: Thank you. | have a procedural question to ask. Mr.
Hazen, maybe you can help me with this. We are approving this tentative map and
part of that approval is the tearing down of two historic buildings. Is that correct?

Don Hazen: | will defer to Michelle on that but | believe that decision has already
been made on this subdivision of land.

Commissioner Manning: When was that decision made, and by who?

Michelle Hightower: The Mare Island Specific Plan was approvéd in 2005. As part
of that specific plan, Lennar had environmental plans for the demolition of 183
historic structures.

Commissioner Manning: Okay. And these two were on the list?
Michelle Hightower: Yes.

Commissioner Manning: Was that reviewed and approved by the Architectural
Heritage and Landmarks Commission?

Michelle Hightower: That is correct and the project approval included the
completion and approval of a deterrence analysis and relocation analysis that has
been submitted to our City Mare Island Historic Preservation Consultant who has
reviewed those documents.

Commissioner Manning: | am just surprised that wasn't in the staff report that that
had taken place, and my other question is: This wouldn't typically go to the
Architectural Heritage Commission first because it is in the historic district and then
come to us? 4

Michelle Hightower: We actually have a Settlement Agreement that was approved
by City Council in April of 2006. Part of that Settlement Agreement was the clause
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of buildings within 2A, 3B and 3A, (and this particular area is 3B), that the approval
of the demolition as long as deterrence allowance was submitted and approved by
the Planning Division — that a demolition can take place. It did not require approval
of the AHLC. '

Commissioner Manning: Okay. Then regarding the parking lots. The requirements
for the parking lot and the sizing — is that based on historic area guidelines or is that
just general commercial guidelines?

Michelle Hightower: The Mare Island Specific Plan has its own set of parking
standards. The standard single house use is 1 per 1,800 square feet and that is the
standard that was used for calculating the parking requirement for building 253.

Commissioner Manning: Alright. Thank you.

Chairperson Legalos: If there are no further questions, | will open the public
hearing, and | have no cards. Probably no one wishes to address this item, so [ will
close the public hearing and bring the matter back into the hands of the
Commission.

Commissioner McConnell: Thank you Mr. Chairman. | will move the approval of
the resolution approving the Tentative Map 07-0003 subject to conditions provided
in the resolution with an additional requirement under Planning Division Item No. 7
that the developer shall obtain a Certificate of Appropriateness from the
Architectural Heritage Landmarks Commission and a Planned Development Unit
Plan from the Planning Division for the design and construction of a parking lot on
Parcel 1, adding the words “subject to further review and approval by the Planning
Commission of the parking lot design.

Chairperson Legalos: Please vote on Mare Island Association.
Don Hazen: Just for clarification on that. Are you actually saying then when this is
subject to review, are you suggesting that it be a mandatory Planning Commission
Review or just at the discretion of the Planning Division at that time you are made
aware that we have an application? '
Chairperson Legalos: That the Planning Division will submit a report to the
Planning Commission for review and approval of whatever is being submitted at that
time so that we have the final authority on design concerning landscape, setbacks,
safety in the parking lot for pedestrians, and trees for shade purposes. Please vote.
AYES: McConnell, Legalos Turley, Salvadori, Engelman
NOS: Manning
ABSENT: Peterman.
Motion carries.

M. OTHER ITEMS

1. Development Agreement 07-0001 for the Annual Review of the Lennar Mare Island
Development Agreement. Continued to the meeting of May 21, 2007.

N. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

None.
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O.  ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 9:45 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

(for) DON HAZEN, Secretary
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A

B.

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.

The pledge of allegiance to the flag was recited.

ROLL CALL:

Present; Commissioners McConnell, Manning, Legalos, Turley, Salvadori,
Engelman, Peterman.

Absent: None.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

None.
REPORT OF THE SECRETARY
1. Upcoming Meeting of Monday, June 18, 2007

a. Reminder that the meeting of July 2, 2007 has been cancelled.

b. Use Permit 07-0004 is a reconsideration by the Planning Commission in lieu of
an appeal to the City Council.

¢. Use Permit 06-0019 and Lot Line Adjustment 06-0011 use an existing building
as a church. '

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT
None.

REPORT OF THE PRESIDING OFFICER AND MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING
COMMISSION AND LIAISON REPORTS

1. Report of the Presiding Officer and members of the Planning Commission — None.
2. Council Liaison to Planning Commission — None.
3. Planning Commission to City Council

Chairperson Legalos: The Council reversed the Commission’s decision on the large
family home up on Dell Court in Hiddenbrooke by a vote of 5-to-2. The main concern
was that the style of the structure was felt to be out of scale with the other structures in
the area. | had made the point and | had agreed with Commissioner Salvadori’'s
observation that since there are only two completed structures and one under
construction, we shouldn’t necessarily take those as a standard for future construction in
the area. The only member of the Council that agreed with that position was Mayor
Intintoli, and the vote was Mayor Intintoli and council member Culier voting to deny the

- appeal. | believe council member Culier’s reason for denial wasn'’t that he wasn’t

approving such a large structure up there. | believe that he wanted an even smaller,
lower limit, than what was included in the Council's motion but they did reverse it 5-to-2.

COMMUNITY FORUM

Members of the public wishing to address the Commission on Consent Calendar items are
requested to submit a completed speaker card to the Secretary. Any member of the public who
wishes to speak as to any consent item may do so at the public comment period preceding the
approval of the consent calendar and agenda. Any member of the public may request that any
consent item be removed from the consent calendar and be heard and acted upon in Public
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Hearing portion of the agenda. Such requests shall be granted, and items will be addressed in the
order in which they appear in the agenda. After making any changes to the agenda, the agenda
shall be approved. ’ :

Robert Schussel, 2559 Shade Tree Circle, Vallejo: 1 live in Hiddenbrooke, and I would like
to talk about the Lennar report. I think it needs to be much more vigorous in a few
explanations and include a summary of what Lennar is planning to accomplish over the next
year. Right now, none of that is in there and there needs to be criteria in there to determine
whether or not Lennar’s objectives were met, and I really feel Lennar needs to apologize for a
D- performance on Mare Island which is really hurting our community. The goal of what
Lennar is supposed to be doing is to bring in jobs and Lennar’s efforts so far are woefully
inadequate. Lennar does not have a strong incentive to speed up commercial development on
Mare Island. The former Planning Director, Al De Silva continued the pattern of giving away
everything that the City likes to do. Mr. De Silva only required that a good faith effort be
made. Unfortunately no definition of what is good faith was spelled out, and Lennar’s
definition of doing good faith is doing the minimum that they have to. The agreement
rewards Lennar for building homes which is their strength and where the real big money is —
easy money. Now that Lennar has Toro Station down in Orange County and it has Hunter’s
Point in San Francisco, there is much less incentive to fast track commercial development in
Mare Island. Let me just say that Lennar has not met its obligations despite what it said about
commercial development. The report has kind of sophomoric explanations and Lennar
blames everyone except itself for all of its delays. In the last three years I have noted in a
charge you will see later, the number of jobs in Mare Island has been stagnant and this
stagnant situation is due to the lack of effort by Lennar and its policy of turning away
employers. Lennar says that it is due to the lack of growth. The real reason is Lennar’s
unwillingness to work with employers and maybe Mr. Salvadori could talk about that. They
have turned away about 500 new jobs in the last couple of years, and about half of the jobs in
Mare Island are government or education, and Lennar didn’t have to raise a finger to get those
people. So, they really haven’t done much. I would compare this to what Touro University
did where they have been actively trying to develop on Mare Island. In the last year Lennar
brought in one new business with 40 employees. Lennar says that the housing starts may be
delayed due to the Navy. It is actually due to the housing market, and I would like to know
what the report of the EDC findings are and what their recommendations are about Lennar
and Mare Island. Please don’t let Lennar continue to be an entitlement to economic
development on Mare Island. Thank you.

J. CONSENT CALENDAR AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Consent Calendar items appear below in section K, with the Secretary’s or City Attormey’s designation as such.
Members of the public wishing to address the Commission on Consent Calendar items are asked fo address
the Secretary and submit a completed speaker card prior to the approval of the agenda. Such requests shall be
granted, and items will be addressed in the order in which they appear in the agenda. After making any
changes to the agenda, the agenda shall be approved.

All matters are approved under one motion unless requested to be removed for discussion by a commissioner
or any member of the public

Commissioner Peterman: With Item K1 on the Consent Calendar, | move that we
approve the consent calendar and the agenda. Please vote.

AYES: Commissioners McConnell, Manning, Legolas, Turley, Salvadori, Engelman,
Peterman.

NOS: None.

ABSENT: None.

Motion carries..
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K.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. [Consent] Resolution of Intention directing staff to amend Chapter 16.38

of the Vallejo Municipal Code to address projects within the Mare Island Historic
District as part of the Mare Island Specific Plan Amendment !l project.
Proposed CEQA Action: Exempt. Staff person: Michelle Hightower 648-4506.

. Amendment to the Downtown Master Plan and Downtown

Specific Plan regarding temporary uses in the Georgia Street Corridor.
Proposed CEQA Action: Exempt (Section 15301 — Negligible or no expansion of
uses). Staff recommends a recommendation of approval to the City Council. Staff
person: Don Hazen 648-4328.

Commissioner Manning had to recuse herself from this item because she has
property in the affected area.

Don Hazen: Thank you Mr. Chair, members of the Commission. | will give a brief
overview of the project beginning with back in 2005, the City Council approved the
Master Plan for Downtown which included the adoption of the Downtown Vallejo
Specific Plan. That Master Plan had envisioned the Georgia Street Corridor as
being a primary retail corridor for the City and the Downtown, and as a result, the
uses for the on the ground floor were primarily retail. The action before you this
evening would be to recommend to the City Council that the plan be modified on an

- interim basis to allow select specified non-retail uses on the ground floor. I'd say

staff's effort on this began about a year ago or so when we were responding to
concerns by the downtown business owners and property owners that the current
retail market was not supportive of implementing those specific plan regulations and
they had asked for some relief from those requirements and so this item K2 in your
City packet is a proposal that the City Council on April 17, passed a Resolution of
Intention, recommending that you examine the Specific Plan and look to see if there
are alternative uses that could be considered on an interim basis. Let me just kind
of refer you to Page 2 of your Staff Report. Those uses that are being proposed are
listed at the bottom Page 2, and while they are not directly considered retail, they
nevertheless would have some secondary economic benefits in at least
encouraging pedestrian traffic downtown and some additional retail sales of existing
businesses down there. The framework of this Resolution of Intention that was
adopted by the Council was that they would essentially have this window of
opportunity open for two years for the people wanting to initiate these uses and they
could then go to the Planning Department and apply for an Administrative Permit.

The second part of the City Council action was that they would like to re-examine
the retail market 12 months into that two year window of opportunity, if you will, and
reserve the right to modify the regulations for shorter periods of time or even a
longer period of time, depending on the health of the retail market.

Thirdly, after the two year window of opportunity closes, unless otherwise modified,
those businesses that are established during those two years would be allowed to
continue for up to an additional six year period. The maximum number of years that
someone could come in would be for eight years if they went right after this action,
at the beginning of the two year period. Your staff report also contains what is
called a Draft Land Use Agreement that our City Attorney’s office has prepared. We
feel from a legal standpoint, when you allow an occupant in a building, they could
make a claim that they have a permanent, vested right to occupy that building and
so one of the legal mechanisms to be sure that the terms of these Temporary Use
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Regulations are adhered to, is that there would be the requirement for a three-way
land use agreement between the City, the property owner, and the tenant, all
acknowledging that this is a temporary nature of the use. When such time as this
agreement term expires; the occupant would have to vacate the premises and
leave. The plan would then be that the Specific Plan regulations would become
fully effective once again. In front of you this evening is a handout from the City
Attorney’s office which outlines your options before you this evening as well as a
revised resolution. The zoning ordinance actually references the Planning
Commission and the City Council of approving specific plan amendments but in
effect what you are doing is that you are taking action on whether you feel that
specific plan amendment is warranted or not and then you are passing that consent
on to the City Council for them to kind of alternately ratify your decision. Claudia
has proposed some minor wording changes that supersede the resolution that is in
your staff report packet. As | mentioned, the City Council has looked at the basic
framework on the Resolution of Intention back in April and gave staff the direction to
move forward with that, and they are looking for us to bring something along those
lines back to them. We have already scheduied it for the June 12 meeting in an
effort to minimize time delays between Planning Commission action and City
Council review just because of the health of the current market and the need to offer
relief for building owners downtown right now. | would be happy to answer any
questions that you might have and just kind of cut it off at that point.

Chairperson Legalos: Commissioner McConnell.

Commissioner McConnell: . Thank you Mr. Chairperson. Mr. Hazen, does this
proposed amendment apply to any streets other than Georgia Street?

Don Hazen: Strictly the Georgia Street corridor.

Commissioner McConnell: And, under the definition administrative and
professional, would that include tattoo shops?

Don Hazen: Give me just a moment to verify that.

Commissioner McConneil: Mr. Hazen, while you are checking, can you also check
whether massage parlors would be allowed?

Don Hazen: Okay, let me just quote briefly out of the code, and as you know, the
code sections that | provided in the staff report refer to the Zoning Ordinance where
it offers a more expansive discussion of what those uses would be. Under
Administrative Professional Services, it says: “The use type refers to offices of
private firms or organizations which are primarily used for the provision of
professional, executive, management or administrative services. Typical uses
would include administrative offices, legal offices or architectural firms.” So, | would
say, clearly, massage and tattoo parlors would not be permitted under that use
category.

Commissioner McConnell: Would they qualify under some other subcategory such
as a medical office or a fitness club, studios — dance, etc. section?

Don Hazen: Okay, give me just a second to verify that before | give you a quick
answer. Okay, the first one that you had asked about was medical services, and
that’s 16.06.405 and that is “primarily for prevention, diagnosis and treatment or
rehabilitation services provided by physicians, dentists or similar practitioners but
excludes those classified as any civic use type or as medical services”, so if the
massage was licensed by the state as a facility for legitimate uses of massage
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therapy, it is my opinion that they would qualify as a rehabilatative type service
provided by a practitioner that is licensed by the state. The other use category you
wanted me to look at is what?

Commissioner McConnell: My concern is tattoo. | believe they are puncturing the
skin. | think they have to be licensed. '

Don Hazen: Yes. | am not seeing anything in here that would allow a tattoo parlor
to be established under these Interim Regulations.

Commissioner McConnell: Do they require a license from the Board of Medical
Quality Assurance? ‘ '

Don Hazen: | don’t know that answer but | see John . ..

John Nagel: Just as a point of clarification, when you look at 16.060.405, it says:
“Treatment rehabilitation services provided by physicians, dentists, or similar
practitioners . . . “ So, | don't think that either a tattoo artist, whether they are
licensed or massage, would fall under that same practitioner, especially because it
specifically excludes medical services, and medical services are “treatment and
rehabilitation services provided by nurse or other health professionals” and so when
you take a look at that; it is clear that those two categories are looking at doctors at
one level and then other health practitioners at a second level. | don't think a
massage parlor or tattoo parlor would fall under a medical practitioner or even under
medical services. :

Commissioner McConnell:  What about an indoor category such as fitness clubs,
yoga, or martial arts?

Don Hazen: Clearly not. That would be for gyms, health clubs and those things.

Commissioner McConnell: Can we get an Opinion Letter from Council to that
effect? It would be made a part of the findings in this resolution.

John Nagel: We could certainly do that, or the minutes would reflect the fact that
you had asked those questions and we concurred that the Zoning Ordinance does
not allow those uses.

Commissioner McConnell: Thank you very much.
Chairperson Legalos: Commissioner Salvadori:

Commissioner Salvadori: | have a second question in response to Commissioner
McConnell and Chairperson Legalos. Religious Assembly — are these categories
approved in any way about the requirement for this its Use Permit?

Don Hazen: No. These regulations would not provide for church use.

Commissioner Salvadori: The next question is — One of the important reasons that
we wanted to maintain Georgia Street as a retail center was retail feeds on retail.
The best way to kill a retail environment is to have half or two-thirds of the buildings
closed. Can we require that any of these businesses have a minimum set of hours?
Like — 10:00 to 5:00, Monday through Saturday? That way, at least the doors are
open in most of the buildings on Georgia Street.
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Don Hazen: My response to that would be that at one of the earlier City Council
meetings, it was discussed whether these uses should be allowed with a
Conditional Use Permit or as an Administrative Permit, and only through the
Conditional Use Permit process would we be able to regulate the hours. We would
have to find a nexus or the need to specify hours to achieve some type of a goal or
objective. The City Council felt that the Use Permit was too cumbersome and not
necessary for these uses and so their direction to staff was to pursue that as an
Administrative Permit. So, the long answer to that is that you would not be
establishing hours of operation — minimum hours — through the Administrative
Permit process. We would not have the legal mechanism for doing that.

Commissioner McConnell: This is an Amendment to the Downtown Specific Plan.
Could that be a requirement of the Specific Plan? Other cities do it; how do we do
it?

Don Hazen: What we would need to do, if that is your recommendation this evening
is to tie in the goal that you are trying to achieve by establishing the minimum hours.
| see where you are going with that.

Commissioner McConnell: | think the goal is pretty clear. If you end up with three-
quarters of the businesses on Georgia Street fitting under these categories, which
certainly helps the people who own the property and it is a good thing to do, but; if
all the doors are closed five-days-a-week, except for an hour or two; it doesn’t do
anything for the retail businesses that are there. If more and more retail businesses
locate there, the need for this is less and less and less. If we build in a situation
where it is self-defeating, then in a year or two years from now, the Council is just
going to have to say, we need to extend this because we are still in the retail
business. | would encourage us to put some language in here that would require
some minimal level of open door.

Chairperson Legalos: Commissioner Turley:

Commissioner Turley: Thank you Mr. Chairperson. Just to make sure that we talk
about each of these items and it is spelled out very clearly, there wouldn’t be any
possibility of a drug rehabilitation space being rented. Would that be correct, Mr.
Hazen?

Don Hazen: | would have to see under Medical Offices. Under Medical Services,
the way the Zoning Ordinance defines that is that again, it talks about “the treatment
or rehabilitation services provided by nurses and other health personnel as a
provision of medical testing and analysis”, and this includes “clinics, blood banks,
and medical or dental laboratories.” Some drug rehabilitation uses, depending on
the type of treatment they were actually given, could potentially fall under Medical
Services, in my opinion. There is some drug rehabilitation that actually administers
medicine by registered nurses or physicians, and so those would clearly fall under
that. If it was a kind of a half-way house for living and rehabilitating that way, |
would say then the answer would be “no.” They would have to be administering
some type of medical treatment for health purposes.

Commissioner Turley: Are we in the position to decide among us that some of
these places will not be acceptable like the drug rehabilitation place, for instance?

Don Hazen: What would happen with a prospective tenant is that they would come
to the Planning Department and say: “I want to file an Administrative Permit for this
use.” Then what we would do is find out through a written statement about what
that use is and then we would match it up with one of these categories that would
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be listed as a permit. Then, we would make a determination whether we thought
that it fit into that or not. We would consult with the City Attorney’s office if we had
to, and then we would make a determination so if, in the case —~ (using the worse
case scenario) like a half-way house; we would say, “I'm sorry — that is not a
permitted use.” Of course they have the right to appeal that determination. They
could bring it back before the Planning Commission on an Appeal of a Staff
Determination. We would basically evaluate each prospective use and determine
whether it fits into these use classifications. | think that’s the purpose for the Zoning
Ordinance to have these. This will give more guidance as far as what is the typical
type of uses that would be permitted. We would use that guide. | think we could
actually do a pretty good job.

Commissioner Turley:' You probably want to discourage any kind of business that
might attract people that would go in there for drug rehabilitation.

Don Hazen: Right. Unless it was actually drug treatment, we would have to say
“no, that's not permitted.”

Commissioner Turley: This would probably also include marijuana, legal distribution
space? : '

Don Hazen: On that, | believe that the City has a moratorium in effect on that
because of the conflict between federal and state law.

John Nagel: We never adopted the moratorium. The position of our office has
always been that under federal law, marijuana dispensaries or whatever term you
want to use for them, are illegal. Therefore, you can’t give a Use Permit or any
other sort entitlement to an activity that is illegal, and so that would be our position.
As a Plan clarification, it is tough for anybody to look at the definitions on the spur-
of-the-moment and try to figure out all of the different possibilities. When you look
under “Medical Services”, it talks about rehabilitational services by nurses and other
health personnel but then it says that it excludes those classified as any civic use
type. When you go to “Civic Use Types,” one of the listings is “Clinic Services”, and
when you go to “Clinic Services”, it talks about “the clinic services use types refer to
providing nonprofit medical services to persons affected with bodily or mental
disease or injury without provision for on-site residence or confinement.” | think that
you could make an argument that a Methadone clinic or some-other sort of drug
rehab clinic that has no residential component would be a civic use type and would
be a clinic, and therefore; it is excluded under the “Medical Service”. The thing that
gets a bit awkward, in the next sentence, under the definition of “Medical Services” ,
it says: “Typical uses include clinic, blood banks, and medical service”, so it is not
the clearest statute. | would think you could make the argument that those sorts of
clinics would not be included as a medical service under this definition.

Chairperson Legalos: Commissioner Peterman.

Commissioner Peterman: Thank you. Mr. Hazen, there is no provision for the
percentage of stores or buildings that could be leased under this?

Don Hazen: That was one of the early alternatives that staff presented to the-
Council for-discussion. They discussed it briefly but in the end, decided that it
would be too difficult to administer and they felt that the reevaluation clause in the
proposed ordinance was the way to go.

Corhmissioner Peterman: | remember when our Georgia Street in downtown
Vallejo was like Benicia's First Street, and we used to have things like the
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“Christmas Walk”, and things like that. | have seen stores that were wonderful
come and go here in the last few years, and my concern is that if we fill everything
with services, we will be doing ourselves a disfavor and not encouraging retail, and |
think that one of the ways, as Commissioner Salvadori said, to get people down
here to shop, is to have stores to which they can go. | have a conflict that if they all
become service places, then, what is the point of somebody coming down here.
You may come down for your doctor's appointment or you may come down to have
your taxes done, but would you really stay here and shop. That is just a concern
that | have. Also, | have a concern with the six-year extension. You said that will be
reviewed after twelve months, right?

Don Hazen: Right, and even your first comment about the worse case scenario and
we have too many of the non-retail uses in there — that could be part of the purview
of that twelve month re-evaluation. So, you open it up for twelve months without
any regulations. At the end of those twelve months, haif way into that two-year
window, we would be presenting a report that assesses just how many new tenants
we received during that twelve month period, what does that work out to in
approximate percentage of the number of tenants on Georgia Street Corridor, and
that could be something that couid certainly be considered as part of the re-
evaluation to avoid exactly what you are talking about.

Commissioner Peterman: Then we also have the issue — somebody has come in
and they have established themselves. They have been there for a year. In twelve
months we decide there are too many services. Who do you move out, and how do
you decide that? :

Don Hazen: Well, | can say that at the Council meeting there was a lot of
discussion about what was an appropriate length of time that you should allow a
non-retail tenant to be able to stay in given the initial investment in the building that
they had to lay out. | think, based on that discussion, | think what the preference of
the re-evaluation is, is to examine whether that window of opportunity is one year,
two years, three years, or more, but the six year, | think, was kind of the secondary
thing that they would analyze, and whether it even needed to be longer. | think just
based on discussion of the Council, there would not be support at this point of
shortening that time frame to be less than six years. | think you control it at the front
end as to how long you allow these tenants to come in. 1 think the spirit of the intent
of this for the ones who have been established was to allow the full six years, or
longer, if necessary.

Commissioner Peterman: Then my other thought is that suppose | wanted to open
up chiropractic services on Georgia Street. Would | really want to do it if | knew that
I would only be there for two years? We discussed that issue that there is a
possibility that people may not wish to come in because that is only a two-year
commitment and, as you say, we would have to put in some infrastructure, remodel
buildings, efc., and if they are only there for two years, might that be a deterrent?
Thank you.

Chairperson Legalos: Mr. Hazen: As | understand the review — the tweive month
review process and the two year review, it doesn’t allow for moving someone out
who is already in. It simply is done to determine whether or not we are going to
continue to allow renting to non-retail uses. If in the first twelve months, the
Corridor is filled out - whatever is there is going to be there for eight years, as long
as the tenants want to stay for those eight years?

Don Hazen: That is correct. The City would be forced to honor the Land Use
Agreement that is signed, and under this Proposal, it is the two plus the six. If they
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came in the first twelve months, they would have a Land Use Agreement that says
they have six years from the time that this window expires. If the Council were to
shut it down in twelve months, they would still have six years beyond that under that
Land Use Agreement.

Chairperson Legalos: If there any practical way to influence the mix of businesses?
We could end up at the end of twelve months with a kind of unbalanced
representative mix of non-retail businesses which we would then have to allow for
eight years?

Don Hazen: | don’t think anybody realistically is thinking that we are going to have
an onslaught of new applications at the initial opening of this time frame. The
twelve months, | think, would be pretty optimistic — maybe unrealistically optimistic,
that you would fill everything up in the first twelve months prior to the evaluation
period. But, | can say that the uses and these lists of uses in your Staff Report were
actually presented to us from the various Downtown associations; they felt ‘
comfortable with this mix. In our meetings with them Downtown, there was not any
concern on their parts that we needed to start differentiating between what
percentage or what proportion of each of these uses we should have. | think the
Council felt comfortable that twelve months is a fair time frame to give this a chance
to work and see where we are after twelve months. Again, | don’t think anybody is
envisioning a scenario where you have got all of these filled up after the initial
twelve month time frame.

Chairperson Legalos: Thank you. After the twelve months, if it looked like there
was an imbalance, for example, say there were primarily financial service
businesses there; | still don’t see anything that would allow imposing any kind of a
mix.

Don Hazen: Not unless it was the decision of the Council ultimately after the twelve
months to start imposing that, but they would stili have to honor those previous
Land Use Agreements.

Chairperson Legalos: Thank you. Commissioner Salvadori.

Commissioner Salvadori: Thank you. Mr. Hazen: As | was partially listening to my
fellow commissioners and thinking about what you said with regard to the hours of
operation, it strikes me that since one of the attachments here is the Land Use
Agreement between the three parties, and there is a Section 4 that talks about
operating and maintenance standards, that maybe if it is the pleasure of the
Commission to impose a minimum operating hours, that might be the place it could
be added so that it is very clear to everyone that there is an expectation that the
doors will be open during the prime retail hours. As | look at most of these
businesses, where they exist in other areas; they are open. This is just a very
strong suggestion and reminder that, for the benefit of the businesses around them;
they need to be open.

Chairerson Legalos: Thank you. If there is no further discussion from the
Commission, | will open the Public Hearing. We have two speakers. The first
speaker is Judy Schilling.

Judy Schilling, 410 El Dorado, Vallejo: Thank you commissioners and staff. The
Downtown Retail Corridor Task Force has been working very closely with the
Planning Department and with great cooperation from the Planning Department, in
recognition of the difficulty the building owners are having right now in attracting
retail businesses to a corridor where retail businesses have failed, and failed, and
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failed over the last ten years. There were references made to wonderful businesses
that came in, and we don’t have the foot traffic to support them. The purpose of the
Retail Task Force was to designate higher end, client-oriented businesses that
would bring people into our Downtown. They could go to a doctor’'s appointment
and stop for lunch, or shop in a store. They would bring their children downtown for
karate lessons and hang out for an hour and shop in the Downtown. We need to
have people coming into our Downtown, whether visiting their accountant, their
insurance agent, their title company, their realtor, and shop, and eat, and stay, |
didn’t plan on talking tonight but the Commissioners have raised a number of very
interesting points and | think that we need to bear in mind that our Downtown
building owners have put literally millions of dollars into their buildings and many of
them are sitting there now with beautiful renovated spaces that they can’t rent
because they can’t attract a retail tenant. They are turning away good tenants that
would be a benefit to the Downtown. So, please, do support the Staff
recommendation and let us take this to City Council and relieve our building owners
from a burden they have been bearing for over a year by turning away good
tenants. Thank you.

Chairperson Legalos: Next speaker is John Sylvain.

John Syivain: Good evening Planning Commission and Staff. | would like to speak
to a couple of the issues that were brought up. | remodeled a building in the
Downtown. | have a store that is sitting empty. Most of the applicants that we have
downtown are not for retail business. They are for such things as schools for
children, the State Farm Agency. The State Farm Insurance Agency was turned
away from my spot because it is the first floor on Georgia Street — a place that the
woman wanted to have her agency. The retail restrictions as they stand in the
Specific Plan, are a little two restrictive. The town is not prepared to have retail only
down there. We need a mix of services. We need to be able to get people who will
draw young families down, will draw professionals down, and do just as Judy said:
Come to appointments, go to eat at the restaurants, and the restriction on retail has
hurt us because we are not getting the retail applicants. A karate studio came to
me and was not allowed. They will bring people downtown. They will bring parents
and children. They will bring professionals. We will have more foot traffic, and
eventually it will build it up to an area that has sustained more retail, and more retail
businesses will want to come down to it. | appeal to you to approve the Staff
Recommendation here and give us this relief for a specific short period of time.
Personally, | believe you should have a wider mix permanently downtown but we
are willing to work with the Staff and the Downtown together on it, and we would
appreciate your consideration in passing this. Thank you.

Chairperson Legalos: Thank you. The last speaker is Dave Manning.

Dave Manning: Good Evening. Dave Manning. | have a couple of store fronts
down on Georgia Street. | have done some research on this, and every other city in
Solano and Napa County all have something like this. Nobody disagrees that we
need to control the kinds of businesses that are downtown to get the people that we
need down there. At the same time, everyone of those cities has a certain amount
of flexibility at the front desk to make the kind of micro-decisions that need to be
made on a case-by-case basis. The main thing | am adding to what has been said
tonight is that this has been kicking around from one Commission to another for six
months. Don't kick it back to staff again. Just approve it and the details can be
worked out later.

Chairperson Legalos: Being no further speakers, | will close the Public Hearing and
bring the matter back into the hands of the Commission. Commissioner Salvadori.
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Commissioner Salvadori: Thank you. | would like to add a requirement in the Land
Use Agreement of minimum hours of operation — of being open. It strikes me
“hours of operation” does not necessarily mean the doors are open - to ensure
exactly what the speakers have been talking about takes place. If the hours for
these businesses are inconsistent with the hours of the retail businesses, then this
all falls apart. | don’t know if 10:00 to 5:00 is right or not. | would suggest that staff
might be in a better position to choose those hours but | would like to add to the
Land Use Agreement under “Section 4, Operating and Maintenance Standards”,
that the businesses shall be open for business during a minimum of - | will say at
this point, 10:00 to 5:00, Monday through Saturday, or as suggested by staff and |
would like to offer the Staff Recommendation Approval to the City Council of the
Madification to the Specific Plan and the attachments based on the findings and
conditions of the Staff Report.

Chairperson Legalos: Commissioner Turley.

Commissioner Turley: Thank you Mr. Chairperson. Through the Chair to
Commissioner Salvadori. Mr. Salvadori, what | don’t understand is — if someone is
going to rent space to do business on Georgia Street, aren’t they automatically
going to keep their doors open? Why pay rent and close the doors? Would you
respond to that please.

Commissioner Salvadori: Sure, | would be happy to. They are not going to close
the doors but they might decide that they want them to be open between 4:30 and
6:30, Monday through Friday, and not at all on Saturday. One of the problems
perpetually with some fitness or karate clubs is that they want to be open in the
evenings and not during the day and that, | guess from my perspective it is-not
consistent with the desire to build a retail business. Granted this is not a shopping
center but we are looking at it as the potential of a shopping environment. | come to
this determination after having spent a number of years in Benicia and watching the
Main Street push within Benicia suffer through this. When people would walk down
the street there would be two doors locked; one door open, two doors locked; one
door open, and people don’t shop that way. They get very frustrated with the fact
most places aren’t open. | began looking at the types of businesses we are
suggesting here. | would agree with you. One would expect them to be open but |
think maybe we can go a little beyond that and we can ensure that they will be
open.

Commissioner Turley: In response to that, Mr. Salvadori mentioned the karate club.
If all the kids that study karate are in school until 3:00 o'clock in the afternoon,
maybe we might be doing a disservice to the business community downtown by
putting the time in because a karate teacher would have to pay someone to keep
the doors open from 10:00 in the morning until 3:00 in the afternoon, knowing that
there wouldn’t be any business, and it might even discourage him from coming
downtown. That is just a thought — that’s all.

Chairperson Legalos: Commissioner McConnell:

Commissioner McConnell: Thank you Mr. Chairperson. If | may, | would like to
pose a question to the Chair to our Legal Counsel. If we recommend the adoption
of operating hours and restrictions — make it applicable on Sabbaths, Friday,
Saturday, and Sunday. Are we running afoul of the Religious Freedom’s Act or are
we leaving ourselves open to an allegation of discrimination? What if we have a
Seventh-Day Adventist doctor who wishes to close and not have his office open on
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- Friday, or a Jewish doctor who doesn't wish to have his office open on Saturday.
What do we do about that?

John Nagel: | don't think it would cause problems normally, and Don can correct
me. Usually the hours of operations don't specify the days of the week. They
usually specifically some morning and evening time in which they are not going to
open before or not stay open after, and then they allow the business itself to
determine whether or not it is a seven day operation or five day operation. 1 think
regardless of any of the questions that you pose, | think it would be more flexible
and more meeting the needs of the Downtown property owners to have one which
just talks about hours of operations, rather than days of the week. | don't know how
Don feels about that.

Don Hazen: Actually, when John is done, | would like to throw out the issue of
hours in general and kind of offer some staff analysis on both sides of the issue to
help frame this discussion, recognizing that we have motion that is in the process of
being made.

John Nagel: That would be my comment that as | understand our Code and
application that we only put time restrictions on and not days of the week
restrictions. | think it is just inconsistent. The only other thing that | would note is
that If the Commission were to consider making an error in posing that obligation,
you wouldn't be able to do it through the Draft Land Use Agreement because that
action isn’t before the Planning Commission, and what you would need to do

is the following. 1. You would have to make a new finding that would go into the
Resolution that would support the reasons why you are doing that and in that you
feel it is consistent with encouraging retail us. Then, | believe you would have to
amend and add a clause to Attachment A which is essentially the Proposed Land
Use Regulations that would actually spell out whatever you were going to impose
upon the future land uses.

Don Hazen: Mr. Chairperson — If | may, | would like to address the discussion that
you are having on the setting of hours. The whole emphasis behind this regulation
is to stimulate economic development of Downtown. A couple of thoughts on that.
1. | think we have to assume that somebody that is paying a pretty good lease
down there will want to capture the market down there and | will also preface that by
saying that the City Staff, and | would like to give Annette Taylor, our Senior
Economic Development, an opportunity to approach the Commission if she would
like to add to this as a staff person. But | think one of the keys to economic
development in Downtown is to broaden the hours of activity to not just be daytime
but evening as well, and | think that theatre goes a long ways into planting that
seed. If you look at the Land Use Agreement, you will see that we are potentially
talking about going out to the year 2015 with this. [ think a tremendous amount of
economic development can occur downtown between now and 2015, which will
cover not just the daytime hours but the evening as well. So, on one hand | just
wanted to throw out the market forces at work versus someone’s attempt to make a
profit on their investment, and, looking long-term, not only to what we see today.

On the other hand if you feel that you need to emphasize the hours of operation, |
would encourage you to not set specific hours or days but maybe you use a generic
term such as the minimum hours that are typical of retail uses in the Downtown area
so it takes into consideration all of the other businesses without being overly
specific, and | know Annette had just mentioned to me a few seconds ago about the
fact that there are no businesses in Downtown — or very few — that are openon -
Monday. '
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Annette Taylor with the Economic Development Division: | listened to your
conversation. Currently there are no set hours of operation in the Downtown for any
of the businesses. We may be imposing something on this category but it is not in
the Downtown currently. That is part of why this might be considered. Also having
businesses open in the evening would help with shared parking. As you know as
the Downtown develops, there will be a concern for parking and areas we are
looking will have mixed uses so there can be shared parking both day and evening,
using the Empress Theater as an example. Foot traffic in the evenings, so the
restaurants that are down there will be utilized for lunch and perhaps maybe dinner
sometimes. | just wanted to bring that to your attention. Right now there is a
percentage of the buildings, and | don’t know what, that aren’t open on Mondays. A
lot of the Downtown businesses aren’'t open on Mondays, Sundays and Mondays,
so | want you to take that into consideration if, in fact, you are going to impose, or
try to impose, time, a set of hours and a set of days that they are open.

Chairperson Legalos: Perhaps Commissioner Salvadori can correct me if |
misunderstood, but | understood your suggestion about hours to be a minimum not
a suggestion that the businesses would not be open at night. Is that correct?

Commissioner Salvadori: That is correct.

Chairperson Legalos: | want to respond to something Mr. Nagel said about the
days of the week. Are you saying we could specify a number of days of the week
but not specific day of the week? We could say 6 out of 7 days, or not?

Don Hazen: The more specific you get the more difficult it is to tie it back to the
findings and the findings that are referenced in your documents in your staff report
essentially revolve around the Downtown Specific Plan goals and policy to
encourage an active pedestrian corridor. That does not really say during the day or
during the night or Monday or Thursday. [f you feel you really need to nail that
down your job becomes much more difficult to put into the record what is the basis
or the finding that makes you go to that level considering that we are not doing that
anywhere else in the Downtown.

Annette Taylor: In the Downtown Development and Disposition Agreement we
have funding once the project is started for business development and marketing.
One of the areas we have been talking with the Downtown organizations about is
needing standards for the Downtown. Standards for hours of opening, standards for
hours of operation, marketing, things of that nature. We have done a discussion
with the Downtown property owners and businesses. We want to meet with them to
schedule a standard. We have not done that yet but it is something we will do and
they want to do. | do not know if your suggestion now of imposing something would
be ahead of what we would decide to do.

Chairperson Legalos: | am very glad to hear it is already being considered. A
couple of weeks ago | was down at one of the restaurants in the evening. |
‘happened to take a window seat. It was frightening seeing the people who are
down there at night. If we have to do some extra work to change that situation |
think we should do it. 1 am glad to hear that the Downtown building owners are
moving in that direction and considering developing some standards. We certainly
need them.

Commissioner Engelman: | was on the CCRC Board, President for two years, and .
was on the Board for over ten. | was the first President of Main Street actually
helping to bring that program here. Over those years there has been numerous
hours and hours, | would say months and years, of discussion about hours and the
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types of tenants and everything that you want Downtown. 1 know from my personal
experience that the more people you have downtown the more that the less
desirable people will go away. Caockroaches like the dark to do their thing. To be
able to help Downtown | believe that we need to give flexibility to the owners
because they are the ones right now that put their money and their lives and their
stock in our Downtown. I think we should make it easier for them to rent their
buildings. We have the same goals. They have the goals to clean-up Downtown,
make their property marketable, bring good businesses Downtown. | believe a
restriction on time is very difficult to accomplish. We even tried it on the
Wednesday Night Celebration. A ot of people wanted to stay open a lot of people
could not because a lot of people are mom and pop organizations. Plus the fact
that we have on the books a possibility of an Arts and Entertainment District. Which
means if we want to get high scale, upper end restaurants, they don’t usually open
until the afternoon. They don’t do breakfast and they don't do lunch. They
concentrate on dinner and after dinner crowd. Although | understand where
Commissioner Salvadori is going | think we need to trust a little bit more in the three
organizations that are working in the Downtown: Main Street, CCRC, and the
Merchants Downtown Assaciation. They all have the same goals. That is not to
mention the building owners who, of course, want to make their buildings profitable.
| would hate to put any kind of language in this recommendation that would hamper
their ability to rent their store fronts and to be able to turn a profit. | do not want to
see more people loose their buildings or have it go into receivership or anything
else. | want to see a profitable Downtown. | know what you are saying but | believe
that we need to let that be managed by the three organizations that are now
working down there. Trust me, they meet once or twice a month. | know they are
working very hard and trying to get the foot traffic but also we have to remember the -
long-time goal of making it an Arts and Entertainment District. Some art galleries
are not open during the day and have evening hours only. | think we need to look at
the broader picture. | hope you can see where | am coming from Commissioner.
Thank you.

John Nagel: | wanted to add a point of clarification about what | said earlier about
time. 1did a quick perusal of Title 16. Most of the time limitations we are placing on
businesses and their hours of operation is one in which we are excluding them from
operating during certain times. Adult businesses, bars, restaurants would be
examples. That is either to make sure there is not noise, traffic that would disrupt
the residential neighborhoods that might be around, or to deter crime. if you kind of
look at what the rational basis.would be for requiring people to be open during
certain periods of time | think it would be really hard to say how we would be able to
support that. It would be hard to determine that an art gallery would be open
Monday through Saturday where it could make all the money it needs to make by
being open Friday, Saturday and Sunday only. | think the Commission would be
opening itself to challenges that it may not be able to win. | think it you want to
consider it, it would be more prudent to ask staff to take a look at it and maybe
come back with a future amendment that you would then recommend to the City
Council but to go forward on this basis, | think there may be too many open
questions.

Commissioner Salvadori: | will take deference to that in three places. Number one:
Almost every large retail center requires that the businesses are open some period
of time. In cities where there is a strong retail area in the city center, there is a
requirement. It is not done by code, and that’s why | suggest that it would be done
something similar to a Lease Agreement which is the Land Use Agreement. The
potential tenants know going in. Again, | have said it a couple of times already, |
saw the failure in it in Benicia, and | saw the success in it in Benicia. If a third of the
businesses are open 6:00 to 10:00, four days a week, another third of the
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businesses were open 10:00 to 3:00, and then the other businesses are open 9:00
to 5:00, four days a week; you have absolutely no staying power for bringing people
downtown because when potential customers walk by, any time of the day, two out
of three businesses will be closed. | am really happy to hear that the Downtown
Business Associations are talking about that. I think that is very encouraging,
however, there is absolutely no way they can implement that except by agreement.
Here is an opportunity of going into this and making some changes to truly help the
people who have made some investments downtown by opening a rider available
group of businesses. | don't think that we should miss the opportunity to let those
businesses know that there are expectations. The reason that they are there is to
not only to help them do business but also help the other businesses downtown do
business. | can look to more than half of these and say they could easily have a “By
Appointment Only” sign on the front door for these businesses, and that wouldn’t do
anything for walk-in traffic. There were be a destination where someone would
come in at 8:00 in the morning or 2:00 in the afternoon, or 8:00 at night and never
see anything else. Mr. Hazen: | did like your language that was much more flowing
and much more consistent with what my thoughts were. | can’t remember it exactly,
but it was to the extent that it would meet the typical retail requirements. In other
words, if one business wants to be open Tuesday through Sunday because they do
most of their work on Sunday and another wants to be open Monday through
Saturday, or whatever; our staff can implement that but | do, at least from my
personal perspective, think that it is important that we let any new tenants
understand that part of the reason they are there is to generate walk-in traffic for
other people and other businesses on the street.

Chairperson Legalos: Mr. Nagel.

John Nagel: Just one point of clarification because we are talking out loud, trying to
work through this issue. Two things. One: The Draft Land Use Agreement is not
before the Planning Commission this evening. The actions that are noticed by the
Brown Act have to do with the approval and recommendations to the Council
around the Specific Plan Amendment and the Master Plan.

Second: When you look at what the purpose of what the Regulatory Agreement is,
it really is a creation of a document that is going to be recorded. It goes on title so
that it is constructive notice to anyone who is interested in that property and that the
land uses that are being permitted on a temporary basis are, indeed, a temporary
basis and are being imposed because of the Downtown Specific Plan and Master
Plan. When you look at the recitals of the Regulatory Agreement, you will see
pursuant to the City of Vallejo's Amendment to the Downtown Specific Plan and
Master Plan, and then it makes reference to the attachment - “the above use may
be allowed after obtaining an Administrative Permit,” so essentially; this agreement
is really a governmental action. It is just evidence of the action that the Planning
Commission and ultimately the City Council will take as allowing temporary uses. |
do agree that if it was just a lease between private parties, they could impose any
sort of requirements. | don’t think that this agreement would be the vehicle for it. |
think it would have to be through the Specific Plan — the Master Plan, and that
would be problematic, especially without doing any research on it to include it at this
time.

Chairperson Legalos: Thank you. Commissioner Engelman.
Commissioner Engelman: Exactly what does this mean? Does it mean that

Commissioner Salvadori’'s recommendation is not under our purview right now, or is
it language that we could make recommendations that in the future we can have
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recommendations to the owners or whatever? What language are we to follow as
far as the legal opinion?

John Nagel: As I understand Commissioner Salvadori’'s motion, it was really a
motion to make a recommendation as to the Land Use Agreement, and that was not
noticed, so that motion would not be able to go forward. That is why | mentioned
that if the Commission wished to consider something like that, that it would have to
be in the body of the Specific Plan Amendment and so that it would be language
incorporated in both Attachment A that would talk about hours of operations, and
there would have to be findings made within the Resolution that would support that
and be able to ensure that we have adequate findings and that we have sound legal
ground for the hours of operation. At this meeting it would be something that |
would caution the Commission from considering. One thing that could happen is
that the recommendation could go forward and of course the Planning Commission
has every right to do a Resolution of Intention to amend the Specific Plan as a
separate action and to take it forward to City Council and make a Second
Amendment to it. If the Commission is wishing to entertain some sort of hours of
operation provision, | would encourage it to consider it through a secondary
process. That would be my recommendation.

Chairperson Legalos: Mr. Hazen.

Don Hazen: Just another note | would add onto this discussion, and we have not
yet really taken a polling of the Commissioners to see how much support there is
behind the Commissioner’s motion, but we certainly plan on taking any
recommendations of the Planning Commission and making that part of the
presentation to the City Council next week. If they concurred with that
recommendation — if that in fact is a majority opinion of the Commission, then they
certainly could direct the City Attorney’s Office to do the additional research so that
we could, like John had mentioned, come back and make that part of that — like a
Secondary Amendment, but we are required by code to take Resolutions of
Intention back to the initiator’s, | believe, within 90 days. We would be remiss if we
didn’t bring this back to the Council in an expedited manner, but we certainly would
be willing to make that part of the presentation if that is the majority opinion of the
Commission.

Chairperson Legalos: Thank you. Commissioner Salvadori:

Commissioner Salvadori: Could | restate my motion? | will say that | am confused
with Mr. Nagel's assessment because the Resolution has two attachments to it —
Attachment A and Attachment B. Attachment B is the Land Use Agreement

And so from what | am understanding, we can vote on the Resolution but not on the
Attachments. To expedite this, what | would like to suggest is that we move to pass
the Resolution approving the amendments to the Downtown Specific Plan
recommending to the City Council , the adoption of such Amendments and
recommendations. | would recommend the approval of the Amendments to the
Master Plan regarding Interim Temporary Use Resolutions for Georgia Street, and,
in addition to that, a message to the City Council that this Commission believes it
would be advantageous for them to consider some minimal level of open operating
hours for the businesses that locate in that retail section. So, not make it part of the
approval of a resolution but simply pass along a recommendation that they consider
that in their hearing.

Chairperson Legalos: Are you withdrawing your original motion?

Commissioner Salvadori: | am modifying it to that use.
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Chairperson Legalos: Thank you. Commissioner Peterman.

Commissioner Peterman: When Mr. Manning spoke, he talked about how at a
Planning Department level, deciding what businesses would be there, and | would
like to somehow put in a Friendly Amendment encouraging the Planning
Department to consider what businesses are there when they approve a new
business so that we don’t end up with “accountant alley” or something like that but
with a mixture of businesses.

Chairperson Legalos: Commissioner Salvadori.

Commissioner Salvadori: Thank you. | would defer to legal counsel because | don’t

. think that we can do that. | don’t think we can decide whether we have too many of

these or too many of those, even though it does make good common sense. |
guess | don’t need to defer to the counsel. I am not comfortable with it. Too many
Starbucks. How many is too many? Right?

Chairperson Legalos: Please vote.

AYES: McConnell, Legalos, Salvadori, Engelman.
NOS: Peterman, Turley.

ABSTAINING: Manning.

Motion carries.

L. OTHER ITEMS

1.

Development Agreement 07-0001 for the Annual Review of the Lennar Mare Island
Development Agreement.

Michelle Hightower: Good Evening Commissioners: As you know, Lennar Mare
Island LLC is the master developer of Mare Island and they are required by their
Development Agreement with the City of Vallejo to prepare an Annual Review of the
status of their project and to determine or to provide information stating that they are
in compliance with the Development Agreement. The DAR states that the
Development Services Director is to determine whether or not they are in
compliance and summation is acceptable and if so, that information is forwarded to
you for their acknowledgment. Tonight we have Lennar Mare Island here to present
their Annual Review and your action tonight is to acknowledge the receipt of this
notification. Lennar is here and will present their information to you. Following their
presentation Lennar staff and | will be available to answer any questions regarding
their Annual Review. Thank you.

Dina Tasini: Good evening. My name is Dina Tasini, and | am the Foreward
Planning Manager for Lennar Mare Island. | will give you a brief overview of where
we are today and then | will ask Wanda Chiahak, Senior Vice President of L&R, our
partner — our 50 percent partner with Lennar — to come up and speak a little bit about
the questions and comments made earlier tonight regarding the jobs and our
development. [ think it is important to note as we are going through this development
at Mare Island, what we really have to do. If often looks easy. You have this piece of
property — do something with it. What we are challenged with is working with the
state and federal regulators to clean up the property. Once we clean up the property,
put all the infrastructure into the streets, and, at one time we actually thought we
could re-use that infrastructure. It has come to our unfortunate awareness that we
have replaced everything. We spent close to one hundred million dollars — ninety
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plus million dollars on infrastructure, and we will continue to do that, and as we go
forward this year, we will see some more major roads and infrastructure going into
the ground. In addition, we have worked tireless hours on the Specific Plan with staff
and have gotten to an agreement at this time to conform with our Second
Amendment so that Specific Plan that was only adopted last year with respect to
historic resources, and the steps need to take prior to either reusing a historic
resource or demolishing a historic resource, which also takes a great amount of time.
So these processes basically have slowed us down by approximately one year at this
time. We are moving forward. We have put a lot of effort into commercial
development this year. We have had our first Tentative Map for two parcels, one
which is Building 253 on Walnut Avenue and then we went forward with what we call
deterrence Analysis to get approval of demolition of two of the buildings to then put a
new building on that site. We do have that map in place but in order to do that, we
have probably six to eight months of infrastructural work on two streets surrounding
that piece of property. That has to be done prior to us building a new building.
Although we would like to come here and tell that it was all done because it wouid
make us very happy and my job a lot easier. It is a long, arduous process, and we do
want to bring you business, this year, we do try to bring this, this year, and | think that
might be, would you like to speak on that Wanda? A little bit - then when you have
questions | can fill in other gaps for you, you do have the DA, | know as well as some
other attachments. If you have any other questions after that, | will hang out up here.

Wanda Chiahak: | am Wanda Chiahak, Senior Vice President with L&R Property
Corp. and | really had not planned to speak tonight but, after the comments the
gentlemen made earlier, | think it is necessary to clarify a few things. First of all,
Lennar Homes is not the developer of Mare Island. It is a Joint Venture called Lennar
Mare Island. Itis a Joint Venture between Lennar Corporation and L&R Property
Corp. L&R Property Corp. is a very large commercial developer. We have offices
throughout the U.S., and that is our major focus. | transferred up here approximately
a year ago because we were also extremely frustrated that the commercial
development is not happening quick enough. | have been here a year. There are
incredible challenges on Mare Island which | am sure we are going to overcome.
Since | have been here, we have started the mapping process. It is something that
needs to be done if we are going to attract new businesses who want new buildings
to this island. 1 have a map that is into the City now for 83 acres. At the same time
we are processing the map, we are doing remediation of that property so that it will
be clean and infrastructure can be installed at about the same time as, hopefully, we
get the map approved. We will have about 23 acres there to market for new
development in addition to some buildings that can be sold to users to try to bring
more businesses in. This year, since January, we have added approximately 115
new jobs to the island. There was a significant drop in the last half of last year as the
Forestry Service laid off about 130 employees or moved them elsewhere. | am not
sure what the story was on it and Touro cut their part-time employees dramatically
from about 160 to about 60 part-time employees. At maximum part-time employees
count as a half of an employee for jobs. We did bring about 140 new jobs last year
but we lost significantly more than that so that really impacted the numbers. This
year, as | mentioned, we brought in about 115 new jobs, five new businesses — not
just one — and we have also renewed seven tenants that retained about 48 jobs on
the island by keeping those tenants on the island. My biggest challenge, of course,
has been the remediation. It stops me from doing a lot that | want to do on the
island. | looked at the buildings wherever we want to put tenants in. As a matter of
fact, there is one building we have that | have been working to bring a tenant there
for the last seven months, and | am still struggling to get that deal done. We spent
quite a bit of money just on legal fees and design consultants, and we actually went
to the Architectural Heritage Commission to get some changes to the building
approved, which were approved. | am still working with them. They do have to be
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out of their building in Oakland in November. They will be bringing about 45 more
jobs to the island but until we can actually start bringing some new buildings up here
and removing some of the ones where we have to do some reports on before we can
remove them, we need to make room for the good-paying jobs which everyone in
Vallejo wants. We all want to the biotech or high tech firms come in and provide
some really good jobs. It is difficult to put them into existing buildings out there.
There is a tremendous amount of work that needs to be done on any of these
buildings. There is quake retrofit, the ADA upgrades, the ceiling heights are six to
seven feet, the infrastructure is not in, you don't have the appropriate fire flow for
some of the buildings. You can’t put infrastructure in until remediation gets done
because the City will not accept anything and the workers won’t go out there and
work in these utility lines when they think there is contamination. So, | just wanted to
kind of clarify that. There is a commercial developer out there. We are really
focusing on it. | am hoping to have the maps for the remainder of the commercial
submitted within the next twelve months. We have to figure out how we are going to
park all of these buildings. We are definitely working very hard to get it done, and
sometimes | am a little offended, and | take it personally when someone gets up and
says that we are not working hard on this. We have put in incredible hours out there,
all for the good of this development, and we don’t see a dime of return of our money
until we start getting this commercial development done. We have tremendous
incentive to get it done. | am here if any of you have any questlons I would be more
than happy to respond to them.

Chairperson Legalos: Thank you.
Deborah Marshall: Would you Iiké to ask questions now?
Chairperson Legalos: Now is fine. Commissioner Salvadori:

Commissioner Salvadori: Thank you. | believe Wanda is working very hard. We had
a bumpy start to our relationship, and | have a high degree of respect for her.
However, | think some of the issues | am going to bring up are some of the problems
she is dealing with. There is no surprise to anybody here that my focus is on jobs. It
has been for the past ten years, and we are falling woefully short, and the curve of
expectations in terms of jobs is going faster, and faster, and we are going backwards.
That being said. You know that. | don’t need to tell you that, and | am sure you are
not happy with it, but it is fact. The disappointment that | got was looking at the
Infrastructure Plan that basically says in the industrial areas, the infrastructure
feeding the industrial areas is not going to start until 2009 or 2010. How can you
possibly hope to get jobs out there is you are not going to have anything avallable
until 2010 or 2011?

Wanda Chiahak: You do see what my frustration is. There will be infrastructure
done on Walnut Avenue that goes through a commercial area that | was just
mentioning — that 83 acre site. There will be a portion of that done this year with the
balance of it done in 2008 as soon as our remediation is finished. One of the things
on Azuar, which is where the main large water line runs — there has been a plume
recently discovered in the last few months. There was an unknown contaminant on
the island. There are ongoing discussions with the regulatory agencies and the Navy
on that plume as we speak, and it has virtually stopped infrastructure development on
Azuar going north toward North Island. That will cause us to have to take some _
different steps, do some re-design on the water lines in order to get the service to the
commercial area. | am currently speaking of the area along the waterfront. The
environmental remediation has slipped one year since | came to Mare Island, and the
slippage is not a Lennar issue. We have put the remedial actions plans in place and
they go to the regulatory agencies and it seems to just get stalled there. When they
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were telling us we were going to have an approval a year ago, it was a year earlier
than what they are telling me now for the waterfront area, and until the remediation is
done; the infrastructure cannot go in. If any of you would feel comfortable putting
pressure on regulatory agencies to get our remediation plans approved, | am all for
that.

Commissioner Salvadori: Actually that was something you asked of the Committee
that the Planning Commission suggested almost a year ago. That was something
that you had asked of that committee, and to my knowledge; it still doesn’t even exist.

Wanda Chiahak: That's correct.
Commissioner Salvadori: So that's not happening either, is it?
Wanda Chiahak: No itisn't.

Commissioner Salvadori: You know, | think in June of 2008 and 2009, the reports to
the City are that we have got 1,800 and now we have 1,900 jobs, the City is starving.
The City is starving because we don’t have businesses to create revenue to build the
General Fund and so it is not good for anyone. | would sure like to see everyone
who can — that includes the Committee, Staff, the City Council — put pressure and
help to get these numbers run up. Set the explanations high and put those things
necessary in your hands to make it happen because, it is just not.

Wanda Chiahak: That is correct. We have planned on spending something like sixty
million dollars this year. We are about fifteen to twenty million behind schedule right
now because we are waiting to get some plans approved through the City so we can
start construction on certain things. We are going to be starting on Azuar between
Touro and the traffic circle along where SKP is right now and then the section of
Walnut — putting the wet and dry utilities in there which will lead to the commercial
area.

Chairperson Legalos: Commissioner McConnell:

Commissioner McConnell: To representatives of Lennar. | also served on that
Committee with Mr. Salvadori, and | had some follow-up questions about that activity
as well as what was put in the Staff Report. The initial commitment from Lennar and
the City is for a ten-year period which expires in 2016. We are four years into that
ten-year period — about 40 percent. Near estimation is that Lennar met 40% of its
development goals at this point in time.

Wanda Chiahak: If you look at it from a financial point of view, at this point in time we
were supposed to have spent something like fifty-four million dollars on costs. We
spent well in excess of ninety million dollars, and, at the end of June, we were
supposed to be at one hundred five million in revenues. At the end of March, we
were actually at one hundred seven million in revenues. From that point of view, we
are meeting the goals. Where we are falling short, Commissioner, is on jobs.

Commissioner McConnell: Part of the feedback that | have received from the
community at large relates to the housing and particularly the closeness and the
quality of housing on Mare Island. It is being criticized very heavily, and | note that in
the Staff Report, you are proposing to deliver 372 home sites this year. Will those
home sites be any farther apart or of a higher quality in construction than what we
have seen there so far?
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Wanda Chiahak: Let me clarify one thing, and then | will let Dina speak to that.
Lennar Mare Island does not build houses. We sell the land, our transaction that is
approved by the City, to residential developers. Lennar Homes has been the largest
buyer of those lots. John Lang has also bought lots, and | have no idea what size
lots they are because | do commercial, so | am going to let Dina speak to that.

Commissioner McConnell: All right.

Dina Tasini: | guess the answer is two-fold. Part of that 300 homes that we are
proposing to be built this year are 190 town homes.

Wanda Chiahak: Excuse me. The lots that she plans to deliver this year.
Dina Tasini: Did | say “built"?
Wanda Chiahak: You said home to be built.

Dina Tasini: Oh yeah — 1 am going to build them myselfl Yeah — we are going to
deliver to a third-party developer. There are about 190 town homes so they will be in
buildings of nine to twelve town homes. Yes, those will be extremely dense in
comparison to the other developments we have had on Mare Island. We do have
larger lots in another development that we call the “Hill’, which is 8D so there will be
some larger lots with not so much closeness and then another development that will
be similar to the other development. So, | guess the answer is that the designs have
been approved, the maps have been approved, so the type of development will be
similar. '

Commissioner McConnell: | pass it on to you for whatever it is worth. The comments
received also relate to the quality of construction which most people reported to me
as being poor.

Wanda Chiahak: Had they received good customer service back?

Commissioner McConnell: | didn’t ask them about customer service. These are just
comments | received about what they view the quality of the projects out there to be.
If we look at the Staff Report, it indicates that you had delivered 34 single family
home sites in 2006. We are going up to 372 in 2007. That is almost a thousand
percent increase in the home sites. How are we coming on the commercial sites in
terms of percentage increase in 2007 compared to 2006? | have heard why you
haven't done it, but percentage wise — why?

Dina Tasini: | think that Wanda addressed part of that when we spoke to how many
acres we are trying to put in for maps this year so | guess | will let Wanda look at
percentages because | think you have to say that we didn’t do any maps for
commercial last year, and this year we have at least three to four that are going
forward. But, let Wanda answer that more specifically.

Wanda Chiahak: On a first out basis, Commissioner, we today cannot deliver
anything for sale because we don’t have legal parcels on Mare Island. There are no
maps in place out there. So, in order to sell a piece of land, we need the legal parcel
and there haven’t been any delivered in prior years because of the remediation with -
the Tentative Map that in to the City right now. We will be delivering 83 acres. itis
23 parcels and approximately of those 23 parcels, there is vacant land of
approximately 20 acres that will be available for sale in two and a hailf to five acre
parcels, depending on whether they are adjacent to another two and a half acre
parcel or not.
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Commissioner McConnell: | am assuming those applications move as rapidly as
possible. When do you anticipate offering them into the market?

-Wanda Chiahak: We plan for it to go before the in July. We are taking the
map there first because of the Historic District and some of the elements that | want
them to look at before we actually go into design and then we need to come in before
the Planning Commission. Michelle?

Michelle Hightower: August.

Wanda Chiahak: We are going to start marketing the property right about the same
time the map comes in here. We won't actually be able to close on deels until the
map records and that doesn’t happen until it has been approved by the Planning
Commission. Does it go to counsel?

Michelle Hightower: No.

Wanda Chiahak: Okay, then we have to meet all the conditions of the map before it
can actually record, so it will take a few months to get that done but we will be putting
them on the market by about August or September when it comes before you guys
and trying to bring users in. | might mention that | have also expanded our brokerage
team and have added a team out of the Oakland office to give some more regional
perspective to help us find more businesses to bring to the island.

Commissioner McConnell: Okay. The agreement runs through 2016 with a one
potential extension, assuming you are in good faith at that time as found by the
Planning Director. Do you anticipate needing to go beyond 2016 at this time?

Wanda Chiahak: No. We anticipate being done before 2016, particularly if the
residential market would pick back up.

Commissioner McConnell: Then the report of Pacific Lumber was one of the
businesses who left the island. Do you know why Pacific Lumber left?

Wanda Chiahak: | don't. That happened just right after | came. | am not sure why
they left. .

Commissioner McConnell: You have already indicated difficulty in dealing with the
federal bureaucracy. There is a reference in here to Congressman Miller working on
grant requests in the year 2007, 2008. Congressional year — has that happened?

Dina Tasini: It is currently in committee. We actually did apply for several grants.
One had to do with railroad crossings. We should know somewhere in the end of this
month. The other thing we are talking about is that we are working with the City on
the new ferry facility link. | see that as more than just getting the residents to and
from. | see that as also a link for employers. You could come from San Francisco to
Vallejo to work. That broadens the employment base as well.

Commissioner McConnell: At one time we discussed the possibility of having water
taxies to ferry workers back and forth. Have you had any further discussion on that
at all?

Wanda Chiahak: There has not. We would much prefer the ferry. We have had
meetings with many people and there was talk about doing something along those
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lines if we can’t get the ferry service to actually come to the Island. The ferry would
be ideal.

Commissioner McConnell: When do you think that might be a requirement or a
need?

Wanda Chiahak: | have no idea. It would depend on how fast we can get that
waterfront going.

Commissioner McConnell: Certainly before 2016 though, right?
Wanda Chiahak: Yes.

Commissioner McConnell: One of the requirements the law has is to have local
residents hired as much as possible. You indicated in the report that you are putting
that admonition in your leases. Other than putting that request into leases with
tenants, what other action has been taken to attempt to employ Vallejo residents.

Wanda Chiahak: That is the only avenue we have for trying to encourage employers
to hire local residents. We do put it in that they advertise locally for employees and
they make the effort to hire locally as well as do business with local businesses.

Commissioner McConnell: So the lease language is the only thing', there is not much
else being done in that area?

Wanda Chiahak: Other than just talking to them about it that is the only place we
have to put any kind of requirement. It is not really a requirement. We can only ask
them to we cannot force them to.

Commissioner McConnell: One of the other requirements is that you are supposed
to assist in the formation of neighborhood associations. Have any neighborhood
associations actually formed out there yet?

Dina Tasini: There have been no HOAs to date. There are several informal
associations that have been created. They directly work with us. We held a
community meeting 6 or 7 months ago and the next one is this Thursday night at the
museum. Also we try to keep them apprised through different forms of information. |
know that they meet in the residence. They call Lennar very often to ask questions
and get additional services, in particular with landscaping. | have been dealing with
that issue on a daily basis.

Commissioner McConnell: With the number of houses that are out there how many
do you think will be active in an HOA?

Dina Tasini: At the last community meeting over 100 people came. It was set for two
hours and we were there for almost three hours. It was very energetic. It was very
well attended. This time we have extended the invitation to businesses as well.

Commissioner McConnell: The report refers to the formation of the Community
Facilities District and the payment of taxes to the City through that District. Has that
District actually been formed yet?

‘Dina Tasml There are several that have been formed. For some of the areas we W|II

continue to annex residential areas into those.
Commissioner McConnell: Have they actually been paying taxes to the Clty.
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Dina Tasini: Yes.

Commissioner McConnell: Lennar is also supposed to be creating an Island Wide
Municipal Services District. What is the status of that?

Wanda Chiahak: One was formed in 2002. Mare Island is self-sustaining. All the
emergency services are out there. Street and landscape maintenance are out there.
They were paid for through this District. This year we are putting a 2007 one in place
for maintenance purposes as well. That will take the place of the 2002 when it
sunsets. Because most of these do not include emergency services which are
typically paid through property taxes, however, we do not pay property taxes the
same way. It is not calculated the same way so we had to have a mechanism for
paying the services that are usually paid through property taxes. Once we have
enough property tax revenue coming in off the Island to cover those services the
2002 goes away and the 2007 steps in, in its place. It will still pay for all the public
improvements on the Island.

Commissioner McConnell: Good. The Agreement suggests that there will be a build-
out of 1400 units. Do you still see that as being realistic?

Wanda Chiahak: Yes. That not only includes the single-family residences it includes
those along the waterfront.

Commissioner McConnell: Assuming 2016 is the outside year what year do you think
the build out of 1400 will be?

Wanda Chiahak: That truly depends on the market. Our crystal ball is a little foggy
now. Our projections are showing that around 2012. Of course that crystal ball can
be totally wrong.

Commissioner McConnell: | understand that. One of the desires that | have heard is
to develop a sports recreational facility on Mare Island and that is hopefully going to
be done in conjunction with GVRD. Have there been any actions taken along those
lines?

Wanda Chiahak: No that was in discussion when we were working on the north
Island. There is a sports facility that operates out there now in that round building.

Commissioner McConnell: Right.

Wanda Chiahak: We have talked to GVRD in the past about doing something on a
smaller scale. We were not able to come to any resolution of that.

Commissioner McConnell: Do you have any anticipation of when the three
promenade areas, the 5 acres will be developed? The staff report refers to 5 acres of
waterfront promenade being developed. Do you have any idea when that will take
place?

Dina Tasini: That will take place at the same time we put in the infrastructure. That
is actually a 60 foot wide promenade walkway that goes along the waterfront for the
total length. It goes down to where the waves are.

Commissioner McConnell: When do you think you might actually start working on
that?
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Wanda Chiahak: That would start when all the remediation is done on the waterfront.
That will probably be around 2009 or 2010 based on the current schedule for clean-

up.

Commissioner McConnell: One of the last requirements is that you are supposed to
be raising the standards for the causeway bridge. Anything done on that yet?

Dina Tasini: Well we did add landscaping to the entrance in addition | have been
talking with several people to reconstruct the light fixtures because we have them
sort of sitting there waiting for us to be able to put them up. Then there is the
painting. That is not in this year's budget. It is an extremely expensive project but in
the interim | am trying to figure out another way to incrementally finish parts of that
that are still affordable. Right now we are not looking to paint this fiscal year.

Commissioner McConnell: So the impression | am forming in response to this
information is that perhaps over the next two to four years we are not going to see an
awful lot of surface, noticeable activities but after that we might start seeing some
tangible results. :

Dina Tasini: Yeah.

Wanda Chiahak: One of the things you are going to start seeing in the next twelve
months is the clean-up and demolition of some of the buildings that are being
developed in the commercial areas. | think that is going to be a very positive thing
because it will show that things are actually starting to happen. You are definitely
going to see more infrastructure going in, in the 83 acre area where we are getting
the map. Those are physical things you are going to see. What is not going to show
is the fact that we are going to be mapping the balance: of the commercial which is
approximately 170 acres of land and buildings. Those will be coming through the
City. Hopefully | will be submitting another one in about 4 or 5§ months, as soon as
we get some of the parking issues resolved. There is going to be a lot of activity
going on.

Commissioner McConnell: Thank you very much for your presentation.
Commissioner Salvadori: | will make this very short but Commissioner McConnell
asked a question that | believe | can shed some light on. If | am not correct they will
correct me. The 2002 District was installed to cover all of the civic costs on Mare
Island. It is my understanding that what Lennar and the businesses are paying there,
all the property tax revenue that is collected for residences on Mare Island is going to
offset that CFD. Is that not correct? It is not going to the City’s general fund to fund
other things in the City. ltis directed to the CFD on Mare Island.

Wanda Chiahak: | believe that is correct.

Chairperson Legalos: If there are no further questions and no further business the
meeting is adjourned.

M. ADJOURNMENT

There being no.further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 8:50 P.M.

Respectfully submittéd,
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Uik Woichd/

(for) DON HAZEN, Secretary
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PROJECT

SUMMARY: Amendment to the 2005 Mare Island Specific Plan Amended

and Restated including the Mare Island Historic Project
Guidelines, Mare Island Historic Resources Catalogue, and
Preliminary Master Development Plan; and an Amendment
to Chapter 16.38 of the Vallejo Municipal Code regarding
historic resources within the Mare Island Historic District.

RECOMMENDATION: - Recommend City Council Approval -

CEQA: Addendum to the SEIR for the 2005 Specific Plan (Section
15164 CEQA Guidelines)

PROJECT DATA SUMMARY

Name of Applicants: Dina Tasini, Lennar Mare Island LLC
' City of Vallejo Planning Division

Location: Mare Island

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Lennar Mare Island, LLC (Lennar) and the City of Vallejo (City) propose to amend the
2005 Mare Island Specific Plan Amended and Restated, (2005 Specific Plan) and to
amend the City of Vallejo Municipal Code (VMC) regarding policies related to Mare
Island historic resources and the Mare Island Historic District (Historic District). The
proposed amendments are referred to as “Specific Plan Amendment 1", (SPAIl). The
primary purpose of SPA ll is to:

~ A. Address commitments made by Lennar regarding impacts of the 2005
Preliminary Development Plan (Development Plan) on the Historic District,
pursuant to a Settlement Agreement between Lennar, the National Trust
for Historic Preservation (NTHP), two individuals representing the Vallejo
Architectural Heritage Foundation (VAHF) and the City of Vallejo.



B. Incorporate appropriate mitigation measures as required by the certified
Final Subsequent Environmental Impact Report (SEIR) Mitigation
Monitoring Program (MMP) for the 2005 Specific Plan.

C. Address issues that have evolved since the adoption of the 2005 Specific
Plan, including land use restrictions related to the inactive dredge ponds,
clarification of building standards for new residential subdivisions and other
non-substantive changes and corrections throughout the documents.

D. Amend the Vallejo Municipal Code to provide consistency with the 2005
Specific Plan regarding historic resources within the Mare Island Historic
District. :

The documents to be amended as part of this proposal are provided as Attachment 2
Mare Island Specific Plan Amendments and are as follows: Attachment B - 2005
Specific Plan; Attachment C - Appendix B.1 Historic Project Guidelines; Attachment D —
Appendix B.3 Historic Resources Catalogue (Contains amended pages only); and
Attachment D Appendix D — Development Plan.

BACKGROUND SUMMARY

In December 2005, the City Council approved Lennar’'s proposal to amend and
restate the 1999 Mare Island Specific Plan. The Mare Island Specific Plan
guides the future development of Mare Island, a former Naval Shipyard which
closed operation in 1996, and serves as the Master Plan for the Island. The 2005
Specific Plan generally consists of a development program similar to that in the
1999 Specific Plan as well as the 1994 Mare Island Final Reuse Plan, and
specifically incorporates policies related to the Historic District, as provided in
Historic Project Guidelines (Appendix B.1), Revised Predictive Archaeological
Model and Archaeological Treatment Plan for Mare Island (Appendix B.2),
Catalog of Historic Resources (Appendix B.3), and Design Guidelines for-the
Mare Island Historic District (Appendix B.4). The Historic District was designated
as a nationally recognized historic landmark (NHL) in 1975 and a local historic
district in 1999. The Historic District contains 502 historic buildings and
structures listed as contributing resources, including 42 City Landmarks.

To facilitate development within the Historic District, the 2005 Specific Plan and
Historic Project Guidelines establish three building/structure classifications for
contributing resources. This includes City Landmarks (Highly Significant);
Notable Resources (individually Significant); and Component Resources (Not
Individually Significant). The criteria to demolish historic buildings on Mare
Island are based on their individual classification. The Development Plan, as
approved in 2005, calls for the demolition of 183 contributing resources and of
those proposed for demolition, 154 are Component Resources and the



remaining 29 are Notable Resources. No Landmark Resources would be
demolished under the 2005 Specific Plan. Proposed demolitions would be
subject to the criteria established in the Historic Project Guidelines before
demolition could take place.

~On November 29, 2005, the City Council certified the Final Subsequent
Environmental Impact Report (SEIR) prepared for the 2005 Specific Plan, which
identified the proposed demolition of 183 historic resources as a significant
impact to the Historic District, and adopted a statement of overriding
considerations. A Mitigation Monitoring Program (MMP) identifying measures to
reduce the project impacts was also adopted.

A. Settlement Agreement

During the public review process for the 2005 Specific Plan and SEIR,
representatives of the NTHP and the VAHF expressed concerns regarding the
impacts of the Development Plan on the Historic District, which encompasses
most of the 13 Reuse Areas on Mare Island. Members of the Architectural
Heritage and Landmarks Commission (AHLC) also expressed. similar concern.
To address these issues, Lennar and the City entered into negotiations with the
NTHP and VAHF, and in April 2006, a Settlement Agreement between the above
parties was approved by the City Council. The Settlement Agreement commits
Lennar to apply for the subject amendment to the 2005 Specific Plan to ensure
that the negotiated terms of the Settlement Agreement are implemented. Lennar
is also required to consult with the NTHP on the proposed amendment.

As part of the Settlement negotiations, Lennar, City Staff, and representatives
from the NTHP, VAHF, and State Office of Historic Preservation (SHPO)
conducted several site visits to evaluate many of the buildings proposed for
demolition, and the setting of the surrounding areas. Based on the evaluation
and follow-up discussions, the parties agreed to the following primary terms:

¢ Reclassification of 15 historic resources to upgrade their level of significance
Retention of nine (9) historic resources originally approved for demolition

¢ Reuse of two (2) contributing resources originally approved for retention with
no planned reuse

e Additional criteria to demolish certain Notable Resources

e Fund allocation to rehabilitate historic resources and to the Mare Island
Historic Park Foundation Funds

¢ Fund allocation for AHLC Training

" Reclassification and Retention of Historic Resources: The buildings to be
reclassified are primarily located within Reuse Areas- 4 and 6 within and
surrounding the historic core. Those buildings listed for retention and reuse are
generally located within Reuse Areas 2B and 3A near the Mare Island
Causeway. Lennar also agreed to reuse to the extent feasible, the Morton Field .



Archway, a non-contributor to the Historic District. Staff has included an
annotated version of the Settlement Agreement that provides references to the
amendments made in the 2005 Specific Plan and associated appendices. (See
Attachment 2A.) A summary list of the contributing resources affected by the
Settlement Agreement and proposed SPA Il is also provided as Attachment A-1
to the Settlement Agreement.  The proposed reclassification and retention of
historic resources is reflected in Section 3.0 of Appendix B.1 Historic Project
Guidelines, and Sections 2A, 2B, 3A, 4, 6, and 8 of Appendix B.3 Historic
Resources Catalogue, and Appendix E Development Plan.

The retention and reuse of additional buildings would logically increase the total
amount of non-residential building area analyzed and approved as part of the -
Development Plan. Based on the type and size of buildings to be retained and
reused through the Settlement ‘Agreement and subject amendment,
approximately 266,000 square feet of additional non-residential building area
would be added to the Development Plan. To offset this amount and eliminate
the need to conduct further environmental review of SPA Il, Appendix E shows a
comparable reduction in square footage for new buildings in the Development
Plan as part of this proposed amendment.

Proposed Increased Demolition Criteria for Certain Notable Resources: As
previously mentioned, the Historic Project Guidelines provides certain criteria
before demolition of an historic resource can take place. However, Sections 9
through 11 of the Settlement Agreement address additional demolition criteria for
certain Notable Resources. To allow Lennar to move forward in some areas,
Reuse Areas 2A, 2B and 3A are exempted from this additional requirement, as
well as Buildings 206, 208, 237 and 257. These criteria, as defined in Section 5.0
of the Historic Project Guidelines, are intended to ensure that the master
developer or property owner has evaluated all feasible reuse options for the
resources before demolition is approved.

Rehabilitation Fund: The parties agreed to include in the Settlement Agreement
a mitigation measure approved by City Council as part of the Final SEIR
certification. (See Sections 1 — 4 of the Settlement Agreement.) This requires
Lennar to establish a mitigation or rehabilitation loan fund for historic resources
within the Historic District. The details of the fund are provided in Section 5.0 of
the Historic Project Guidelines. Generally, Lennar would provide loans up to
$250,000 at an interest rate of one percent (1%) less than the then prime lending
rate, with the maximum outstanding balance of all loans to not exceed Two
Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00).

Mare Island Historic Park Foundation: Although not part of the SPA Il, Lennar
has donated $250,000 to the Mare Island Historic Park Foundation (MIHPF) as a
fund to restore St. Peter's Chapel or other historic buildings within the Mare
Island Historic Core, per Section 5 of the Settlement Agreement. The initial
agreement for this donation was part of a separate agreement between the City
and Lennar. The Settlement Agreement includes a requirement that projects for



which these funds would be used will be reviewed by the AHLC at a public
meeting to determine consistency with the Secretary of Interior Standards.
Advance notification of these public meetings would be provided to the NTHP
and VAHF.

AHLC Training: Also, not included in SPA Il documents but worth noting is
Lennar’s commitment to fund $15,000 to be used to educate members of the
AHLC on the application of the Historic Project Guidelines and Historic Design
Guidelines, as specified in Section 13 of the Settlement Agreement. Lennar and
City Staff anticipate such training to take place within one to two months
following the adoption of the SPA Il by City Council.

Consultation with the National Trust for Historic Preservation: As required
by Section 12 of the Settlement Agreement, the proposed SPA Il was forwarded
to the NTHP for review and comment in August 2006. Lennar met with NTHP
representatives and City Staff in September 2006 to discuss their comments and
revised the documents accordingly. The documents were then revised and two
subsequent drafts were resubmitted to the NTHP and VAHF for further
consultation.

A compilation of comments from the NTHP and VAHF were received between
December 2006 and May 2007. In general, their comments addressed the need
for clarification of the negotiated terms, the review process for projects within the
National Historic Landmarks District, and minor corrections to the documents.
Further review and consulitation took place in May 2007, and changes have been
made to the documents to the satisfaction of the VAHF and NTHP. (See
Attachment 2H.)

B. SEIR Mitigation Measures

SPA Il includes the incorporation of mitigation measures approved as part of the
certified Final SEIR for the 2005 Specific Plan. This includes the requirement to
prepare a Feasibility Analysis that evaluates relocation alternatives prior to
submitting a Site Development Analysis, (formerly referred to as Deterrence
Analysis) for approval by the Development Services Division. (Mitigation
Measure A.2). In addition, projects involving demolition or any work within the
site of a cultural landscape will also require that the project sponsor retain a
qualified consultant to prepare a cultural landscape evaluation prior to carrying
out any work within any of the ten landscapes identified as contributing
resources to the National Register Historic District, and submit the evaluation to
the Development Services Department for review and approval. (Mitigation
Measure A.6b). These mitigations measures are incorporated into Sections 4.0
and 5.0 of the Historic Project Guidelines.



C. Amendments to the Specific Plan Document

All of the above referenced changes regarding historic resources have been
included in Chapter 2.0 of the 2005 Specific Plan, the Historic Project
Guidelines, Historic Resources Catalogue, Preliminary Development Plan and
and/or other appropriate sections of the 2005 Specific Plan. Due to the extensive
reformatting of the Historic Project Guidelines, the amendments in this document
are not redlined but are summarized and highlighted. Additional amendments
un-related to historic resources are described below.

Pursuant to a separate Three Party Dredge Pond Agreement between the City,
Lennar, and Weston Solutions regarding the Mare Island Dredge Pond
Commercialization Project, SPA 1l includes amendments that prohibit the
reactivation of the 10 inactive dredge ponds on Mare Island, and restrict the
activity within those areas to open space, conservation and managed wetland
uses. These changes are documented throughout Chapter 3.0 Land Use of the
2005 Specific Plan document.

Revisions and corrections to the Land Use Plan, including Table 3-1 Summary of
Development Program, Table 3-2 Development Program by Reuse Area, and
Section 3.5 Land Use Program by Reuse Area are proposed ta reflect the land
use program as specified in the SEIR for the 2005 Specific Plan and Appendix E,
Development Plan. Given that the tables and discussion in the 2005 Specific
Plan include approximations in land use allocations, the amendments would
provide consistency between the documents, and minimize potential conflict in
future land use entitlements.

Staff has also proposed to enhance the requirements for new residential
subdivisions on Mare Island by including several detailed standards in the 2005
Specific Plan. This involves a requirement that accessory structures such as
gazebos, patio covers, and trellises, as well as building additions be consistent
with the Unit Plan approved for the subject subdivision. In additional, enclosed
front or rear porches are not permitted unless otherwise specified in the Unit
Plan for the subject subdivision, and garage conversions are prohibited on Mare
Island. ‘

D. Amendment to the Vallejo Municipal Code (VMC)

Chapter 16.38 Architectural Heritage and Historic Preservation of the V.M.C.
currently requires the development of Historic Project Guidelines for the
preservation and treatment of Mare Island historic resources. Given the
- adoption of the 2005 Specific Plan, which included the incorporation of Appendix
B.1 Historic Project Guidelines and other related appendices, the V.M.C. is
proposed to be amended to delete this requirement and include a reference to
the Mare Island Specific Plan for projects within the Mare Island Historic District.
(See Attachment 1C and 2F.)



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Pursuant to Section 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines, an Addendum to the Final
Subsequent EIR for the 2005 Specific Plan has been prepared (See Attachment
2G). Based on the analysis provided in the Addendum, the proposed
amendments to the 2005 Specific Plan and Chapter 16.38 of the Vallejo
Municipal Code do not require major changes to the 2005 Specific Plan, no new
significant or substantially more severe environmental effects would result from
the proposed amendment to the 2005 Specific Plan, and none of the criteria in
CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 are present; therefore no subsequent
Environmental Impact Report or additional CEQA compliance is required for the
adoption of the amendment to the 2005 Specific Plan or Chapter 16.38 of the
Vallejo Mun|C|paI Code.

ARCHITECTURAL HERITAGE AND LANDARKS COMISSION
RECOMMENDATION

The 2005 Specific Plan Area encompasses all of the Mare Island Historic
District, for which the AHLC has project review authority. = SPA Il provides
changes specifically related to policies and development review within the
Historic District; therefore, a recommendation from the AHLC to the City Council
is necessary. Given the complexity of the project, City Staff and Lennar held a
Study Session with the AHLC in September 2006 and May 2007. On May 17,
2007, the AHLC held a public hearing and unanimously recommended that the
proposed SPA |l be forwarded to the City Council for approval. (See Attachment
2H.)

CONCLUSIONIRECOMMENDATION

Staff and Lennar believe the proposed SPA Il satisfies Section 12 of the
Settlement Agreement to include certainnegotiated terms as part of an
amendment to the 2005 Specific Plan. These changes address the concerns of
NTHP, VAHF, SHPO and members of the AHLC by minimizing or reducing the
impacts of the 2005 Development Plan on the Historic District. The approved
Development Plan has been revised to reflect the additional retained historic
resources and the associated documents have also been edited and reformatted
to more clearly define the development review process required for projects
within the Historic District. SPA Il also incorporates restrictions on the dredge
ponds, corrects and clarifies land use allocations, and includes additional
standards to enhance the residential subdivisions on the Island, in addition to
other minor corrections and clarifications that improve the document. Lastly, the
proposed amendment to Chapter 16.38 of the VMC provides consistency with:
the 2005 Specific Plan.



Staff recommends that the Planning Commission:

- 1. Adopt the Addendum to the certified Final Subsequent Environmental Impact
Report for the Mare Island Specific Plan as amended by the SPA 1l (SP #98-
01C)

2. Approve the Mare Island Specific Plan as amended by the SPA 1l (SP #98-
01C) ,

3. Recommend that the City Council Adopt an Ordinance adopting the Mare
Island Specific Plan as amended by the SPA Il (SP #98-01C)

4. Recommend that the City Council Adopt an Ordinance to Approve CTA #06-
0006 regarding an amended to Chapter 16.38 Architectural Heritage and
Historic Preservation of the Vallejo Municipal Code.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolutions and Ordinances
A. Planning Commission Resolution
B. Exhibit A — Ordinance to amend the Mare Island Specific Plan
C. Exhibit B — Ordinance to amend Chapter 16.38 of the Vallejo
Municipal Code '

2. Specific Plan Amendment Documents

Annotated Copy of the Settlement Agreement

Amended Mare Island Specific Plan

Appendix B.1 Amended Historic Project Guidelines

Appendix B.3 Amended Historic Resources Catalogue

Appendix E.1 Amended Preliminary Master Development Plan
Proposed Text Changes to Chapter 16.38

Addendum to the Subsequent Environmental Impact Report
AHLC Staff Report dated May 17, 2007 w/Comments from the
National Trust for Historic Preservation and Vallejo Architectural
Historic Foundation Provided on May 17, 2007

Prepared by: [ U/UM D M‘J
Michelle Hightower, Senior Planher
Approved by:
Don Héie/\, Planning Manager
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ATTACHMENT 1

SP #98-01C and CTA #06-0006
Resolution and Ordinances

Planning Commission Report — June 18, 2007
A. Planning Commission Resolution

B. Exhibit A — Proposed Ordinance
Adopting an Amendment to the 2005
Mare Island Specific Plan Amended and
Restated

C. Exhibit B - Ordinance Adopting an
Amendment to Chapter 16.38 of the
Vallejo Municipal Code




ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF VALLEJO PLANNING COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. PC

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION .
APPROVING THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE MARE
ISLAND SPECIFIC PLAN (SPAII) AND MAKING
RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL
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WHEREAS, an application was filed by Lennar Mare Island, LLC to amend the 2005
Mare Island Specific Plan Amended and Restated (2005 Mare Island Specific Plan); and
an application form and supplemental application materials were received on August 1,
2006; and

WHEREAS, Section 65450 et seq. of the California Government Code provides for
preparation and adoption of Specific Plans for the systematic implementation of the
General Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City of Vallejo (“City”) Planning Division staff has proposed to amend

Chapter 16.38 Architectural Heritage and Historic Preservation of the Vallejo Municipal

Code (“VMC”) to provide consistency between the 2005 Mare Island Specific Planas
amended, and the VMC; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to the Mare Island Specific Plan and Chapter
16.38 of the VMC are collectively known as Specific Plan Amendment II or SPA II; and

WHEREAS, the Mare Island Specific Plan as amended by the SPA II (SP #98-01C) is
intended to replace and supersede the 2005 Mare Island Specific Plan; and

WHEREAS, when compared to the 2005 Mare Island Specific Plan, the Mare Island
Specific Plan as amended by the SPA II (SP #98-01C) includes additional regulations
regarding historic resources and minor clarifications and corrections; and

WHEREAS, the Mare Island Speciﬁé Plan as amended by the SPA II (SP #98-01C)
relates to the reuse of the former Mare Island Naval Shipyard (“Mare Island”) on
approximately 5,250 acres of land located within the City; and

WHEREAS, the City has complied with the requirements of the Local Planning Law
(Government Code section 65300 et seq.), the current State of California General Plan
Guidelines, and the City’s applicable ordinances and resolutions with respect to approval
of the Mare Island Specific Plan, as amended by the SPA II (SP #98-01C); and



WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 65090, notice of the Planning
Commission’s hearing was published in at least one newspaper of general circulation
within the City of Vallejo at least ten calendar days before the Commission’s public
hearing; and '

WHEREAS, the City Planning division proposal’s to amend Chapter 16.38 of the VMC
is to delete duplicate language better contained in the Mare Island Historic Resources
Project Guidelines and to reference applicable materials which related to projects
involving ‘contributing resources’; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission approved a Resolution of Intention directing staff
to amend Chapter 16.38 Architectural Heritage and Historic Preservation of the VMC on
June 4, 2007; and

WHEREAS, an Addendum to the certified Final Subsequent Environmental Impact
Report for the amended Mare Island Specific Plan has been prepared; and

WHEREAS, on May 17, 2007 the Architectural Heritage and Landmarks Commission
held a public hearing on the project and voted unanimously to forward a recommendation
to the City Council to adopt SPA II; and

WHEREAS, the official record for this project includes, but is not limited to, the staff
reports, minutes, application materials, and all letters, comments and materials received
at the public hearings; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Division and designated City Staff have reviewed the project
in accordance with applicable regulations and have recommended the proposal to the
Planning Commission, as set forth in the staff report dated June 18, 2007; and

WHEREAS, the City of Vallejo Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public
hearing to consider SPA II on June 18, 2007 at which testimony and evidence, both
written and oral, were presented to and considered by the Planning Commission; and

WHEREAS, based on evidence received at the public hearing, the Planning Commission
makes the following factual findings:

I.  CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT FINDINGS

Section 1. Pursuant to Section 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines, an Addendum to the
Final Subsequent EIR for the amended Mare Island Specific Plan has been prepared for
SPA II and based on the analysis provided in the Addendum, the proposed project does
not require major changes to the 2005 Mare Island Specific Plan, no new significant or
substantially more severe environmental effects would result from the proposed project,
and none of the criteria in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 are present; therefore no
subsequent Environmental Impact Report or additional CEQA compliance is required for



the adoption of the amendment to the Mare Island Specific Plan or Chapter 16.38 of the
Vallejo Municipal Code.

II. SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT FINDINGS

Section 1. The Planning Commission finds, based on the facts contained in the staff
report incorporated herein by this reference, and given the evidence presented at the
public hearing, that as amended, the Mare Island Specific Plan:

A) Is consistent with the goals and policies of the Vallejo General Plan including but
not limited to:

i) General Plan Land Use Compatibility and Density Goal 3 in that the Mare
Island Specific Plan, as amended, continues to encourage mixed use commercial,
industrial and residential development on Mare Island in a manner that accounts for Mare
Island’s unique and complex land use patterns, historic resources, and environmental
constraints;

ii) General Plan Commercial Development Goal 7 in that the Mare Island Specific
Plan, as amended, continues to promote use of Mare Island as a commercial and
economic asset for the City of Vallejo; and

iii) General Plan Industrial Development Goal 3, Policy 3 in that the Mare Island
Specific Plan, as amended, continues to guide industrial development on Mare
Island which recognizes and encourages flexible design and land use standards.

B) Is consistent with the provisions of Chapter 16 of the Vallejo Municipal code and Part
I of Chapter 17 of the Vallejo Municipal Code.

Section 2: The Planning Commission of the City of Vallejo further finds, that The Mare
Island Specific Plan is also the Master Plan for the Planned Development District which
contains Mare Island pursuant to Vallejo Municipal Code 16.116.035 and Ordinance No.
____N.C.(2d). 1t is the Planning Commission’s recommendation that the Mare Island
Specific Plan, as now amended, should continue to be the Master Plan for the Mare
Island Planned Development District pursuant to Vallejo Municipal Code 16.116.035 and
Ordinance No.  N.C. (2d)

II.  VALLEJO MUNICIPAL CODE TEXT AMENDMENT FINDINGS
Section 1: The Planning Commission finds, based on the facts contained in the staff
report incorporated herein by this reference, and given the evidence presented at the

public hearing, that the proposed amendment to Chapter 16.38 of the VMC:

A) Is consistent with the goals and policies of the Vallejo general plan and the
Mare Island Specific plan in that:

B) Is consistent with Title 16 of the Vallejo Municipal Code.



C) Is reasonably related to promoting the Safety, Health and Welfare of the
residents of the City of Vallejo.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF VALLEJO
HEREBY RESOLVES TO:

(1) ADOPT the Addendum to the certified Final Subsequent Environmental Impact
Report for the Mare Island Specific Plan as amended by the SPA II (SP #98-01C);

(2) APPROVE the Mare Island Specific Plan, as amended by the SPA II (SP #98-01C),
and RECOMMEND THAT CITY COUNCIL ADOPT the Mare Island Specific Plan as
amended by the SPA II (SP #98-01C);

(3) RECOMMEND THAT CITY COUNCIL ADOPT an Ordinance adopting the Mare
Island Specific Plan as amended by the SPA II (SP #98-01C) as the Master Plan for the
Mare Island Planned Development;

(4) RECOMMEND THAT CITY COUNCIL ADOPT an Ordinance to Approve CTA
#06-0006 regarding an amendment to Chapter 16.38 Architectural Heritage and Historic
Preservation of the Vallejo Municipal Code.

The Planning Commission bases this Resolution on the evidence at the hearing, and the
findings contained in this Resolution and in the staff report.

IV. VOTE
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the
City of Vallejo, State of California, on thel8th day of June, 2007, by the following
vote to-wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

CHARLES LEGALOS, CHAIRPERSON
City of Vallejo PLANNING COMMISSION
Attest:

Don Hazen
Planning Commission Secretary



ATTACHMENT B

EXHIBIT A
ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF VALLEJO ADOPTING SPECIFIC PLAN
- AMENDMENT NO. 98-01C and AMENDING
THE MARE ISLAND SPECIFIC PLAN/
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT MASTER PLAN

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VALLEJO DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Findings and Determination.
The City Council hereby finds and determines that:

A. As required by Government Code Section 65358(a), the proposed Specific Plan
Amendment No. 98-01C regarding the Amendment to the Mare Island Specific Plan
Amended and Restated, as defined and described in City Council Resolution No. (
) is in the public interest of the people of the City of Vallejo, and is in conformity
with public convenience, the general welfare and good land use practice by
converting and reusing the former Mare Island Naval Shipyard for industrial,
commercial, residential, open space, recreation, cultural and institutional uses for the
benefit of the greater Vallejo community, and

B. The Amendment to the Mare Island Specific Plan Amended and Restated is
consistent with the objectives, goals, policies and general land uses specified in the
City’s General Plan.

C. By Resolution No.( ), the City Council has adopted the Addendum to the certified
Subsequent Environmental Impact Report for the Mare Island Specific Plan Amended
and Restated.

SECTION 2. Adoption of the Mare Island Specific Plan.

Based on the findings herein and in the resolutions recited above, the City Council hereby
adopts and incorporates the Specific Plan Amendment No. 98-01C, entitled “Amendment
to the Mare Island Specific Plan Amended and Restated, dated May 25, 2007,” including
all appendices, as revised, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 3. Adoption of Master Plan.

Based on the findings herein and in the resolutions recited above, the City Council hereby .
adopts and incorporates the Specific Plan Amendment No. 98-01C, entitled “Amendment
to the Mare Island Specific Plan Amended and Restated, dated June 11, 2007,” including
all appendices, as revised, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference into
the Mare Island Specific Plan adopted as the Planned Development Master Plan.



SECTION 4. Severability.

This Ordinance and the various parts thereof are hereby declared to be severable. Should
any section of this Ordinance be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as
a whole, or any portion thereof other than the section so declared to be unconstitutional or
invalid.

SECTION 4. Effective Date.

The effective date of this Ordinance shall be thirty (30) days after the final passage.



ATTACHMENT C

' - EXHIBITB.
Note: New text is shown in bold, deleted text as strikeout.

ORDINANCE NO. () N.C.(2d)

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF VALLEJO AMENDING SECTION 2 (PART) OF
ORDINANCE NO. 558 N.C. (2d), AS AMENDED, OF THE VALLEJO MUNICIPAL
CODE TO AMEND CHAPTER 16.38 - ARCHITECTURAL HERITAGE AND
HISTORIC PRESERVATION REGARDING HISTORIC RESORUCES WITHIN THE
MARE ISLAND HISTORIC DISTRICT

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VALLEJO DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Chapter 16.38 — Architectural Heritage and Historic Preservation is hereby
amended as follows:

II. Mare Island Amendment Historic District

16.38.030 Purpose-of Mare-Island-amendmentPurpose

The purpose of Section 16.38.30 through 16.38.32 is to establish the sources of
regulatory authority which set forth the standards, procedures and
regulations for contributing resources on the former Mare Island Naval
Shipyard (Mare Island). The sources listed in this section are in addition to
any other applicable local, state or federal law which may apply.

16.38.31 Developmenf Review within the Mare Island Historic District

All new construction, demolition, alteration and relocation of contributing
resources, including but not limited to landscaping, signage, and fencing
within the Mare Island Historic District, as defined in the Mare Island
Specific Plan, shall be subject to the standards, regulations and procedures as
contained inef+t the following documents:

1) The Mare Island Specific Plan/Master Plan, and all of its appendices,

particularly:

a) Appendix B.1 Mare Island Historic District Project Guidelines




16.38.032 Designation of landmarks

Additional contributing resources including previously unevaluated or
undiscovered resources may be designated as city landmarks by the
commission pursuant to Part III of this chapter. Such previously unevaluated
or undiscovered resources may be potentially eligible for listing in the
California Register of Historical Resources. (Ord. 1410 N.C.(2d) § 2 (part),

1999.)

























16:38:047-Milis-Aet (Provided in Section 6.0 of the Historic Project Guidelines.)

SECTION 2. Severability.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Ordinance is for any
reason held to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The City Council hereby
declares that it would have passed and adopted this Ordinance, and each and all
provisions hereof, irrespective of the fact that one or more provisions may be declared
invalid.

SECTION 3.  Effective Date.

This Ordihance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and after (30) days
after its final passage.

FIRST READ at a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Vallejo held the

26th day of June 2007 and finally passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the
Council held the 10th day of July 2007 by the following vote.
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ATTACHMENT 2

SP #98-01C and CTA #06-0006
Proposed 2005 Mare Island Specific Plan
Amendment Il Documents
Planning Commission Report — June 18, 2007

A. Annotated Copy of the Settlement Agreement
-B. Amended 2005 Mare Island Specific Plan

C. Appendix B.1 Amended Historic Project
Guidelines

D. Appendix B.3 Amended Historic Resources
Catalogue (Amended Pages Only)

E. Appendix E.1 Amended Preliminary Master
Development Plan

F. Proposed Text Changes to Chapter 16.38

G. Addendum to the Final Subsequent
Environmental Impact Report

H. AHLC Staff Report dated May 17, 2007
w/Comments from the National Trust for
Historic Preservation and Vallejo
Architectural Historic Foundation Provided
on May 17, 2007




ATTACHMENT A

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
(Modified for the Purposes of an Attachment to the Staff Report)
Revised 6/07/07
Compliance with This Settlement Agreement (“Settlement Agreement™) is entered into as of
the terms of the the _ 11th dayof April , 2006 by and among the
Agreement is NATIONAL TRUST FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION, a non-profit
provided in this corporation (“NTHP”), the VALLEJO ARCHITECTURAL HERITAGE
column. FOUNDATION, a non-profit corporation (“VAHF”), LENNAR MARE

ISLAND, LLC, a California limited liability company (“LMI”), the CITY OF
VALLEJO, a municipal corporation of the State of California (the “City”), Judy
Irvin, an individual (“Irvin”) and Elizabeth Pidgeon, an individual (“Pidgeon™).
Collectively, NTHP, VAHF, LMI and the City may be referred to herein as the
Parties. Irvin and Pidgeon are Parties only with respect to Section 15. The
effective date of this Settlement Agreement shall be 4/11/06 (“Effective Date™).

RECITALS

A. LMI is the master developer of the former Mare Island Naval
Shipyard in Vallejo, California.

B. Pursuant to an Acquisition Agreement between the City of
Vallejo (“City”) and LMI dated December 19, 1999, as amended, and a
Development Agreement between the City of Vallejo and LMI dated
September 12, 2001, as amended, LMI is engaged in developing the Project
on the Property on Mare Island, as those terms are defined in the Development
Agreement.

C. On December 6, 2005, the Vallejo City Council approved, on a
second reading, an ordinance adopting Specific Plan Amendment 98-01B
amending and restating the Mare Island Specific Plan, having, on
November 30, 2005, adopted by resolution General Plan Amendment No. 02-
0001 and certified the Final Subsequent Environmental Impact Report (State
Clearinghouse No. 2003092057) (“FSEIR”) (collectively, the “Mare Island
Specific Plan™).

D. On December 9, 2005, the City filed and posted a Notice of
Determination concerning the Mare Island Specific Plan.

E. Subsequently, LMI entered into discussions with NTHP and
VAHF with respect to NTHP and VAHFs’ concerns regarding possible
impacts to historical resources under the Mare Island Specific Plan.

F. On January 6, 2006, in furtherance of ongoing settlement
negotiations, the City, NTHP, VAHF and LMI entered into a letter agreement
tolling the statute of limitations for NTHP and VAHF to challenge
certification of the FSEIR under the California Environmental Quality Act
(“CEQA”) until Tuesday, January 17, 2006.
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G. On January 13, 2006, in furtherance of still ongoing settlement
negotiations the City, NTHP, VAHF, and LMI entered into a second letter
agreement tolling the statute of limitations for NTHP and VAHF to challenge
certification of the FSEIR under CEQA until Monday, January 30, 2006.

H. On January 27, 2006, in furtherance of still ongoing settlement
negotiations the City, NTHP, VAHF, and LMI entered into a third letter
agreement tolling the statute of limitations for NTHP and VAHF to challenge
certification of the FSEIR under CEQA until Monday, February 13, 2006.

I. On February 10, 2006, in furtherance of still ongoing settlement
negotiations the City, NTHP, VAHF, and LMI entered into a fourth letter
agreement tolling the statute of limitations for NTHP and VAHF to challenge
certification of the FSEIR under CEQA until Monday, February 27, 2006.

J. On February 24, 2006, in furtherance of still ongoing settlement
negotiations the City, NTHP, VAHF, and LMI entered into a fifth letter
agreement tolling the statute of limitations for NTHP and VAHF to challenge
certification of the FSEIR under CEQA until Monday, March 13, 2006.

K. On March 10, 2006, in furtherance of still ongoing settlement
negotiations the City, NTHP, VAHF, and LMI entered into a sixth letter
agreement tolling the statute of limitations for NTHP and VAHEF to challenge
certification of the FSEIR under CEQA until Monday, March 20, 2006.

L. On March 17, 2006, in furtherance of still ongoing settlement
negotiations the City, NTHP, VAHF, and LMI entered into a seventh letter
agreement tolling the statute of limitations for NTHP and VAHF to challenge
certification of the FSEIR under CEQA until March 27, 2006.

M. On March 24, 2006, in furtherance of still ongoing settlement
negotiations the City, NTHP, VAHF, and LMI entered into an eighth letter
agreement tolling the statute of limitations for NTHP and VAHF to challenge
certification of the FSEIR under CEQA until April 12, 2006.

N. The Parties have agreed to settle their disputes to avoid legal
proceedings and the time, expense and uncertainty that such proceedings
would involve. The Parties acknowledge that this settlement is for the
purpose of preventing protracted litigation, thereby fully and finally resolving
all existing claims related to the Mare Island Specific Plan and encouraging
reuse of Mare Island.

O. All capitalized terms undefined herein shall have that meaning set
forth in the Mare Island Specific Plan.
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See Historic Project
Guidelines Section
5.4for1-4.

AGREEMENT

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above Recitals and for other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is
acknowledged, it is hereby agreed as follows:

Rehabilitation Fund

L On or before September __, 2006, LMI will make available up to
Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) to establish a revolving loan fund for the
rehabilitation of certain Contributing Resources within the Mare Island Historic
District. All loans from the fund will be subject to the following: (a) loan monies
will be available solely for hard costs associated with necessary seismic
improvements, exterior fagade restoration, window restoration or replacement and
foundation repairs; (b) all work must comply with the Mare Island Design
Guidelines, Chapter 16.38 of the Vallejo Municipal Code and the Secretary of the
Interior’s Standards for Historic Building Rehabilitation (the “Secretary’s
Standards™); (c) no single loan may exceed Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars
($250,000.00); (d) loans will be for a term of no more than thirty six (36) months;
(¢) the interest rate on the loans will be one percent (1%) less than the then prime
lending rate, which rate may be adjusted from time to time; (f) the maximum
outstanding balance of all loans will not exceed Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000.00); and (g) no one person or organization, including affiliates, may
hold more than one loan from LMI under this program at any one time. LMI may
establish additional loan criteria, including, without limitation, commercially
reasonable underwriting criteria.

2. Once a loan is approved, LMI will fund the approved work over a
twelve (12) month period as the applicant submits legitimate contractor invoices
for the work, which invoices may be subject to verification by LMI. LMI or the
administrator of the fund, if different, shall review the loan fund periodically and
shall deduct from the available loan balance the amount of any defaulted loans.

3. All loan repayments, excluding interest, will be returned to the
loan fund and made available for new loans under the loan program for a period
of five (5) years from the date of the first loan. LMI shall have no obligation to
make any new loan following the date that is five (5) years after the date it makes
the first loan.

4. LMI and City acknowledge and agree that loan funds provided
under Sections 1, 2 and 3 above shall not be considered or accounted for as
Project Costs (as defined in the Acquisition Agreement) under the terms of the
Acquisition Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, reasonable costs of loan
fund administration and defaulted amounts are Project Costs.
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Separate
Agreement; not
required to be part
of the Historic
Project
Guidelines.

Reclassified Buildings
are Bold Italic;
Retained or Reused
Buildings are Bold
Underline.

See Historic Project
Guidelines Section 3
Tables 1 & 6,
Section 5.2; Historic
Resources Catalog
2B; Appendix E.1I.
For Morton Field,
see Section 3.4.1 (B)
of the Specific Plan.

Mare Island Historic Park Foundation

5. Pursuant to a separate agreement to which NTHP and VAHF are
not parties or third party beneficiaries, LMI has agreed to donate Two Hundred
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00) to the Mare Island Historic Park
Foundation (“MIHPF”) to be placed in trust and jointly controlled by the City and
LMI as a fund specifically devoted to the restoration of St. Peter’s Chapel or other
historic buildings within the Mare Island Historic Core, as mutually agreed upon
by the City and LMI. The City’s Architectural Heritage and Landmarks
Commission (“AHLC”) will review at a public meeting any proposed project
pursuant to that separate agreement for consistency with the Secretary’s Standards
prior to expenditure of the funds. City shall notify NTHP and VAHF in advance
of the date and time of such consideration by the AHLC.

All notices pursuant to this Section 5 shall be in writing and shall be deemed to
have been duly given on the date of delivery if delivered personally to the party to
whom notice is to be given (including messenger or recognized delivery or
courier service) or on the second day after mailing, postage prepaid, first class
mail, as follows:

NTHP: National Trust for Historic Preservation
Western Office
Attn: Michael Buhler, Regional Attorney
5 Third Street, Suite 707
San Francisco, California 94103

VAHF: Vallejo Architectural Heritage Foundation
Attn: Current President

419 Farragut Avenue
Vallejo, California 94590

Additional Retention and Reclassification of Resources

6. LMI makes the following commitments regarding Reuse Areas
2A, 2B and 3A: (1) Building 455 will be reclassified as a Notable Resource
planned for demolition; (2) Building S11-01 (bunker at southern end of 3A) will
be designated for reuse; (3) Building 845 (tiny guard shack) will be designated
for reuse but may be relocated within Reuse Sub-area 3A contingent on the
receipt of all necessary City approvals; (4) Building 599 will be designated for
reuse unless the traffic monitoring requirement contained in the Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program approved on November 30, 2005 determines
that demolition of the building is required in order to implement the required
mitigation; (5) Buildings 757, 527 and 535 will be designated for reuse; and (6)
LMI will include the Morton Field archway, in place or relocated, in its future
development plans, to the extent feasible. Other than the foregoing retention and
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See Historic Project
Guidelines Section 3
Tables 1, 8, 10, 11, 12,
Section 5.0, 5.2;
Historic Resources
Catalog 3B,4,5,6,8;
Appendix E.1. Bldgs.
634 and 854 not
proposed for
demolition, but no
reuse programmed
and Bldg. H-64
previously classified
as Notable therefore
reclassification is not
required,

See Historic Project
Guidelines Section
4.6.

See Historic Project
Guidelines Section
5.3.2,

reclassification of buildings, LMI may proceed immediately upon execution of
this Settlement Agreement with demolition in Reuse Sub-areas 2A, 2B and 3A
consistent with the Mare Island Specific Plan upon approval by Planning Division
staff and notice only to the AHLC.

7. LMI makes the following commitments regarding Reuse Areas 3B,
4,5,6,and 8: (1) Building 259 will be reclassified as a Notable Resource
planned for demolition; (2) Building $23-01 will be designated for reuse; (3)
Buildings 632, 634, and 854 will be designated for reuse; (4) Buildings 766 and
BS3 will be reclassified as Notable Resources planned for demolition; (5)
Building $32-06 will be reclassified as a Notable Resource planned for
demolition; (6) Buildings L-F, M-D, N-H and O-B will be reclassified as Notable
Resources planned for demolition; (7) Building M-007A will be designated for
reuse on the same project site as Building M-007 (which has been relocated); (8)
Buildings 6D, T-A, U-B and U-D will be reclassified as Notable Resources
planned for demolition); and (9) Buildings H-64, M-001A4 and M-001C will be
reclassified as Notable Resources planned for demolition. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, prior to demolition of any historic resource referenced in this Section 7
for which there is an approved Certificate of Appropriateness (“COA”) requiring
retention, an amendment to the applicable COA must be approved by the AHLC.

8. For those buildings newly designated for reuse in Sections 6 and 7
above, CEQA review will be required prior to any subsequent demolition. The
City retains complete discretion in its consideration of any actions set forth in
these Sections 6, 7 and 8.

Increased Demolition Criteria for Notable Resources Island-Wide

9. As a condition precedent to final issuance of a demolition permit
for a Notable Resource currently planned for demolition outside of Reuse Sub-
areas 2A, 2B and 3A, which application shall be processed by the City
concurrently with the required Unit Plan application, LMI agrees that a Unit Plan
pursuant to Vallejo Municipal Code Section 16.116.075 will have been approved
for a replacement project that will either (1) include new construction within the
footprint of the Notable Resource proposed for demolition; or (2) involve the
rehabilitation of a nearby Landmark or Notable Resource that will necessitate
removing one or more Notable Resources of lesser reuse potential to create
adequate parking, circulation, or lay down for the rehabilitated Landmark or
Notable Resource; or (3) be part of a public works project. Further, the proponent
of each replacement project will have demonstrated to the City commercially
reasonable financial resources necessary to complete the proposed replacement
project, and the replacement project will be scheduled to commence within six
(6) months of receipt of all necessary City approvals.

The Parties agree that the demolition of any Notable Resource currently planned
for reuse pursuant to the Mare Island Specific Plan shall be subject to the
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See Historic Project
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conditions precedent set forth in this Section 9 and discretionary new project
review under CEQA.

10. Prior to demolition, LMI will prepare the appropriate level of
HABS documentation for any Notable Resource, including photographs, plans
and a written description, to the extent such documentation has not already been
completed. The HABS documentation will be made available to the MIHPF and
the Solano County, John F. Kennedy Library.

11. The provisions of Section 9 and Section 10 above shall not apply
to Buildings 206, 208, 237 and 257, the demolition of which shall be pursuant to
the Mare Island Specific Plan.

Mare Island Specific Plan Amendment

12. LMI in consultation with NTHP shall prepare revisions to
Appendix B-1 to the Mare Island Specific Plan (the "Historic Project Guidelines")
and relevant sections of the Mare Island Specific Plan text consistent with the
terms of this Settlement Agreement and submit such revisions to the City for
processing as a specific plan amendment. The revisions shall include topics such
as (1) preconditions for Notable Resources planned for demolition that are
located outside Reuse Sub-areas 2A, 2B and 3A; (2) mutually acceptable changes
to the demolition criteria for Notable Resources scheduled for demolition, for
which no further CEQA review shall be required; (3) reclassification of certain
buildings as Notable Resources; (4) revision of the Preliminary Development
Plan; (5) the changes approved by the City as mitigation measures under CEQA
that were not previously included in the text of the Mare Island Specific Plan or
Historic Guidelines; and (6) a prohibition on demolition based on the willful
neglect of LMI. The City shall process the proposed revisions in accordance with
all applicable Federal, State and local law. Failure by the City to approve the
proposed Historic Project Guidelines and Mare Island Specific Plan text revisions
will not under any circumstances allow NTHP or VAHF to challenge any
demolition, rehabilitation or new construction in Reuse Sub-areas 2A, 2B and 3A
consistent with this Settlement Agreement and the Mare Island Specific Plan.

The Parties contemplate that the Mare Island Specific Plan amendment process
will be completed within eight (8) months from execution of this Settlement
Agreement.

Fund for Training

13. Within sixty (60) days after the Effective Date, LMI shall provide
to City a one-time lump sum payment of $15,000 to be held and administered by
the City, so long as the funds remain, for training for members of the AHLC on
the application of the Historic Project Guidelines and Design Guidelines.
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Attorneys Fees

14. As soon as reasonably possible, and in no event later than forty-
five (45) days from the Effective Date, LMI shall pay to NTHP the amount of
$45,000 in complete satisfaction of all claims by NTHP, VAHF and their counsel
for attorney’s fees and costs in connection with the negotiation and preparation of
this Settlement Agreement and the contemplated revisions of the Mare Island
Specific Plan and the Historic Project Guidelines.

Restrictions on Challenges

15. The Parties covenant to act in good faith in all matters related to
the implementation and enforcement of this Settlement Agreement. NTHP and
VAHF may continue to participate in administrative processes available to the
public relative to proposed demolitions or substantial alterations of Contributing
Resources, except that NTHP, VAHF, Irvin and Pidgeon agree not to challenge
any demolition, rehabilitation or new construction in Reuse Sub-areas 2A, 2B and
3A that are consistent with this Settlement Agreement and the Mare Island
Specific Plan.

NTHP, VAHF, Irvin and Pidgeon further covenant not to file suit or in any way
participate or provide assistance in any such suit against LMI or the City in
opposition to development in Reuse Sub-areas 3B, 4, 5, 6, 8, and 9, according to
the Mare Island Specific Plan and this Settlement Agreement, including suits
challenging any local, regional, state or federal permits, approvals or
authorizations required to implement the Mare Island Specific Plan in said Sub-
areas, except to the extent that (1) the proposed development is materially
inconsistent with the Mare Island Specific Plan or Historic Project Guidelines,
both as they may be amended, or (2) the challenge is based solely on material
facts or circumstances not in existence on the effective date of this Settlement
Agreement. This covenant shall not prevent the undersigned from enforcing the
provisions of this Settlement Agreement or from taking legal actions authorized in
the following paragraph.

The Parties acknowledge that the final content of amendments to the Mare Island
Specific Plan and the Historic Project Guidelines that are contemplated by this
Settlement Agreement is not yet determined and awaits a public process and
considered approval by the City. In the event the City amends the Mare Island
Specific Plan and Historic Project Guidelines in a manner consistent with this
Settlement Agreement, NTHP and VAHF are completely barred from challenging
the approvals set forth in Recital C above. Notwithstanding City’s complete
discretion with respect to amendments to the Mare Island Specific Plan and
Historic Project Guidelines, in the event that the aforementioned amendments
adopted by the City are inconsistent with this Settlement Agreement, NTHP and
VAHF may take any legal action they deem to be in their best interests, including
any legal action that was available to them to challenge the City’s compliance
with CEQA as of the time of the City’s approval of the FSEIR and the other
actions set forth above in Recital C. In this event only, the City and LMI hereby
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waive the CEQA statute of limitations for NTHP and VAHF only, and no other
entity or individual, as to actions taken by the City in November and December
2005 set forth in Recital C, and agree that the statute of limitations shall not run
until 30 days after the posting of a Notice of Determination following the City’s
future amendments to the Mare Island Specific Plan and the Historic Project
Guidelines called for and consistent with this Settlement Agreement or, in the
event the City disapproves such amendments, 30 days after the date of such
disapproval by the City Council. If the City fails to take any action to amend the
Mare Island Specific Plan or Historic Project Guidelines within 18 months of the
Effective Date, NTHP and VAHF may take any legal action they deem to be in
their best interests, including any legal action that was available to them to
challenge the City's compliance with CEQA as of the time of the City's approval
of the FSEIR and the other actions set forth above in Recital C, upon satisfaction
of the following conditions: (1) NTHP and VAHF have delivered written notice
to LMI and the City within 30 days of the expiration of such 18-month period
requesting action by the City to amend the Mare Island Specific Plan and/or the
Historic Project Guidelines (the “Action Request™), (2) a 90-day cure period
following the delivery of such notice has expired without action by the City to
approve the amendments, and (3) the legal action by NTHP and VAHF is filed
within 30 days of the expiration of such 90-day cure period. In the event that
either the 30-day period for delivering the Action Request expires without the
delivery of such Action Request or the 30-day period for filing a legal action
expires without a legal action being filed, NTHP and VAHF shall be forever
barred from bringing an action challenging the City's approval of the Mare Island
Specific Plan, the Historic Project Guidelines and the FSEIR. Any legal actions
taken by NTHP or VAHF under this paragraph may not challenge or affect LMI’s
right to proceed with demolition, rehabilitation or new construction in Reuse Sub-
areas 2A, 2B and 3A in a manner consistent with this Settlement Agreement and
the Mare Island Specific Plan. In addition, in the event of successful legal
challenge pursuant to this Section 15, any order, writ or other ruling from the
court shall not invalidate any permits for demolition, rehabilitation, new
construction or use within Reuse Sub-areas 2A, 2B or 3A consistent with the
Mare Island Specific Plan, and the Parties agree that the Mare Island Specific Plan
and the FSEIR shall remain valid for purposes of demolition, rehabilitation, new
construction or use within these Reuse Sub-areas and the Parties will ask the court
issuing such writ, order or ruling to reflect this agreement in any such writ, order
or ruling.

Cooperation

16. Each Party to this Settlement Agreement shall cooperate fully in
the execution of any and all other documents and in the completion of any
additional actions that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and
effect to the terms and intent of this Settlement Agreement. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, NTHP and VAHF acknowledge that LMI and the City
have entered into this Settlement Agreement in order to further the reuse of Mare
Island consistent with the Mare Island Specific Plan, and, accordingly, NTHP and
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VAHF agree to cooperate with LMI’s efforts to implement the terms of this
Settlement Agreement and the Mare Island Specific Plan.

Release

17. Except as provided in Section 15, upon the execution of this
Settlement Agreement, NTHP and VAHF hereby release and forever discharge
LMI and City and their respective officers, officials, staff, members, directors,
agents, employees, attorneys, representatives, subsidiaries, affiliates,
predecessors, successors, partners, limited partners, and assigns from all claims,
demands and causes of action which, as of the Effective Date, NTHP and VAHF
ever had or now have against LMI or the City.

Press Release

18. The parties agree to prepare a mutually agreeable press release
regarding this Settlement Agreement and to disseminate it at a mutually agreeable
time.

No Admission

19. Nothing in this Settlement Agreement shall be deemed as an
admission or denial as to the validity of any claims or defenses.

Entire Agreement

20. The Parties agree that this Settlement Agreement sets forth the
entire agreement between them and relating to the subject matter hereof and that
this Settlement Agreement merges and supersedes all prior discussions,
agreements, understandings, representations, and all other communications
between them relating to the subject matter of this Settlement Agreement.

Representations and Warranties

21. Each Party represents and warrants that it has the right, power and
authority to execute this Settlement Agreement. Each Party further represents and
warrants that it has the exclusive right to prosecute and compromise the claims
released by this Settlement Agreement and that it has neither made nor suffered to
be made any sale, assignment, transfer, conveyance, pledge, hypothecation, or
encumbrance of any kind whatsoever of any right, claim, demand, obligation,
cost, expense, sanction, grievance, action, cause of action, controversy, debt,
damage, arbitration, liability, duty, penalty, attorney fee, charge, suit, punitive
damage, injury, loss, agreement, contract, promise, or lien released, canceled,
rescinded or discharged hereby, and that it is the sole and absolute legal and
equitable owner thereof, free and clear of any interest of any other person or
entity. Each Party represents and warrants that it has given any and all notices,
and obtained any and all consents, powers and authorities, necessary to permit it,
and the persons executing this Settlement Agreement for it, to enter into this
Settlement Agreement.
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Written Waiver

22. A waiver of any Party’s right to enforce any provision of this
Settlement Agreement shall not be effective unless such a waiver is made
expressly in writing. An express waiver of any one breach shall not be deemed a
waiver of any other breach of the same or any other provision of this Settlement
Agreement.

Legal Representation

23. The Parties affirm that they have been represented by counsel of
their own choosing regarding the preparation and negotiation of this Settlement
Agreement and the matters and claims set forth herein, and that each of them has
read this Settlement Agreement and is fully aware of its contents and its legal
effect. Neither Party is relying on any statement of the other Party outside the
terms set forth in this Settlement Agreement as an inducement to enter into this
Settlement Agreement.

Joint Preparation

24, The language of all parts of this Settlement Agreement shall in all
cases be construed as a whole, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or
against any party. No presumptions or rules of interpretation based upon the
identity of the party preparing or drafting the Settlement Agreement, or any part
thereof, shall be applicable or invoked.

Equal Dignity

25. This Settlement Agreement may not be altered, amended, modified
or otherwise changed except in writing duly executed by an authorized
representative of each of the Parties.

California Law

26. This Settlement Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of California.

Counterparts

217. This Settlement Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each
of which will be deemed an original. This Settlement Agreement shall be binding
upon the receipt of facsimile signatures; provided, however, that any person
transmitting his or her signature by facsimile shall promptly send an original
signature to the other parties.

Captions

28. Captions are included herein for ease of reference only. The
captions are not intended to affect the meaning of the contents or scope of this
Settlement Agreement.
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Survival of Obligations

29. None of the releases contained in this Settlement Agreement is
intended to release any Party from any obligation or understanding to be
performed pursuant to this Settlement Agreement, all of which obligations and
understandings shall survive the execution hereof.

Comply with all Laws

30. The Parties shall comply with all applicable laws, statutes,
ordinances and regulations regarding their obligations under this Settlement
Agreement.

Successors and Assigns

31. This Settlement Agreement shall be binding upon each of the
parties hereto and their respective successors, agents, assigns, heirs, executors,
trustees, shareholders, directors, officers, attorneys, consultants and insurers.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Settlement Agreement is executed and
agreed to by the following, as of the last date set forth below.

It is so agreed. (Original Signatures on file with the City.)

NATIONAL TRUST FOR
HISTORIC PRESERVATION
a non-profit corporation

LENNAR MARE ISLAND, LLC, a
California limited liability company
By: Lennar Homes of California,
Inc., its manager

By:
Signature By:
Name: Signature
Name:
Title:
Title:
Date:
Date:
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Paul Edmondson CITY OF VALLEJO, a municipal

General Counsel Corporation
VALLEJO ARCHITECTURAL By:
HERITAGE FOUNDATION
a non-profit corporation John P. Thompson
Interim City Manager
By: Date:
Signature
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:
Name:
Craig Whittom
Title: Community Development Director
Date: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
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Frederick G. Soley
City Attorney

Judy Irvin, an individual

Date:

Elizabeth Pidgeon, an individual

Date:

The above-referenced individuals have executed this Settlement
Agreement solely with respect to their obligations not to challenge certain
approvals pursuant to Section 15 of this Settlement Agreement and for no other

purpose.
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ATTACHMENT A-1

MARE ISLAND SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT I
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT - SUMMARY OF CHANGES

(Revised 6/07/07)
Table 1: Buildings Reclassified as a Notable Resource

Settlement | Reuse | Building | ERA Building Type Size
Agmt. Section | Area No. Built
1. 16(1) 2B 455 4 L- Storage 31,160
2. |7 3B 259 3 Storage 24,200
3. 174 5 766 4 G - Latrine 4,200
4. |74 5 BS-3 5 H - Other Infrastructure 1,128
5. 17(5 5 S32-06 |5 F - Bomb Shelter 1,310
6. |7(6) 6 L-F 4 B - Residential Garage/Shed | 420
7. 17(6) 6 M-D 4 B - Residential Garage/Shed | 546
8. |7(6) 6 N-H 4 A - Residential 1,092
9. |7(6) 6 O-B 4 A - Residential Servants Qrts. | 721
10. [ 7(8) 6 6-D 3 B - Residential Garage/Shed | 765
11. | 7(8) 6 T-A 4 B- Residential Garage/Shed | 458
12. | 7(8) 6 U-B 4 B - Residential Garage/Shed | 572
13. [ 7(8) 6 U-D 4 B - Residential Garage/Shed | 565
14. | 7(9) 8 H-64' |4 B - Residential Garage/Shed | 651
15. 1709 8 M-001A | 4 A - Residential Servants 694
Quarters
16. | 7(9) 8 M-001C | 4 B - Residential Garage/Shed | 680
Notes: 1 - Previously classified as a Notable; no reclassification is required.
Table 2: Buildings Designated for Reuse/Retention
Settlement Reuse | Building | ERA Building Type Classification | Size
Agmt. Section | Area No. Built
1. 1603 3A 845 5 E - Pumphouse Component 186
2. 16(2) 3A S11-01 5 F - Bomb Shelter Component 1,960
3. 16 3A 599 5 O - Metal Storehouse Notable 112,500
4. 16(5) 3A 757 5 J - Torpedo Storehouse Component 6,375
5. 16(5 2A 527 5 L - Warehouse Notable 114,328
6. |6(5) 2B 535! 5 O - Public Works Shops | Notable 29,866
7. |7(Q) 4 S23-01 |5 F - Bomb Shelter Component 988
8. 703 4 632 4 E - Welding Station Component 812
9. 1703 4 634° 4 Utility Component 743
10. | 7(3) 4 854 4 Utility Component 795
11. |7(7) 6 M-007A |3 Residential Garage/Shed | Component 228
Total Square Footage Reused 268,553
Notes:

1 — Building 535 falls along the boundary line separating Reuse Areas 2B and 6. The portion of the building

approved for demolition and currently proposed for reuse is within Reuse Area 6 and totals 29,866 square feet.
2 - Buildings 634 and 854 were not proposed for demolition in the 2005 Mare Island Specific Plan; however, no
developed reuse was included.
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ATTACHMENT B

PROPOSED 2007
MARE ISLAND SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT I1
REVIEW GUIDE

The following is a list of red-lined changes that have been made to Mare Island Specific
Plan Amendment document. Minor editorial changes and corrections are not included in
this list, nor are text changes approved as part of the 2005 Staff Initiated Changes Errata.
Table of Contents, Figures, and Footnotes will be updated for final printing.

Global Changes: , ,
1. “Historic Guidelines” has been replaced with “Historic Project Guidelines”
2. Cedar Avenue has been replaced with Azuar Drive

CHAPTER 1.0 INTRODUCTION :
Page 2: Section 1.2 Planning for the Reuse of Mare Island, includes 2005 adoption date
and anticipated adoption date of June 26, 2007 for SPA II.

Page 14: Section 1.6.2 Reuse Process, paragraph following bulleted list, clarified
information regarding Reuse Plan adoption and use of Specific Plan.

Page 15: Section 1.6.2 (B) Planning Development Entitlements, added Resource
Conservation which is designated for inactive dredge ponds and wetland area; (C)
Environmental Clean-Up, clarified information regarding Eastern Early Transfer Parcel.

Page 21: Section 1.8.2 State of California (B) California State Lands Commission,
clarified information regarding Settlement and Exchange Agreement.

Page 22: Section 1.8.3 City of Vallejo (B), (C), (D), clarified review authority for City
Staff, Architectural Heritage and Landmarks Commission and Planning Commission.

Page 23: Section 2.2 Significance of Historic Resources, deleted and relocated
discussion of National Registration Form to page 28, Section 2.3.1 Federal Designations
and Program, National Register discussion.

Pages 24 and 28: Section 2.3.1 Federal Designations and Programs, deleted blank spaces
and relocated discussion from pages 28 and 29.

Page 29: National Registration Form discussion relocated from Page 23 as part of
National Register discussion.



Page 31: Section 2.3.3, amended title to more appropriately address discussion; revised
discussion to include current proposal to amend the Vallejo Municipal Code that would
replace the Mare Island Amendment with references to the Mare Island Specific Plan;
relocated Project Guidelines discussion to 3™ paragraph.

Page 32: Section 2.3.4, Federal Preservation Tax Incentive Program, amended to include
projects that may be eligible for the National Register; California State Historical ‘
Building Code, clarified use of the State Historical Building Code.

Page 34: Section 2.4.2, deleted text referencing Mare Island Amendment to reflect
current proposal to amend the Vallejo Municipal Code to replace the Mare Island
Amendment with references to the Mare Island Specific Plan.

Page 35: Section 2.5, amended title to more appropriately address discussion.

Page 37: Section 2.5.2 —2.5.7, reformatted sections to eliminate separate headings and to
include the discussion as part of 2.5.1 Preservation Considerations and Priorities.

Page 38: (B) Sub-area Sensitivity and Character, deleted subject reference regarding
repetitive resources; included additional characteristics originally provided in Historic
Project Guidelines.

Page 39 - 40: Section 2.5.3 Individual Resource Significance, deleted detailed definitions
of individual resource classifications, which are provided in Section 2.0 of the Historic
Project Guidelines.

Page 44 — 49: Sections 2.5.4 —2.5.7, deleted detailed information regarding contributing
resources, which is.provided in Section 3.0 of the Historic Project Guidelines, and
included summaries of the considerations as (D) (E) and (F).

Page 50: Section 2.5.2, formerly Section 2.6, renamed section and 1nc1uded it as part of
the Historic Project Guidelines Section of the document.

Page 51: Section 2.5.2, formerly Section 2.6, added information regarding Historic
Project Guidelines; deleted text regarding Mare Island Amendment, consistent with the
above; deleted text regarding Historic Project Guidelines providing direction, as other
sections of the Specific Plan and appendices also provide this direction; deleted text
regarding establishing a project site, which is provided in Section 4.0 of the Historic
Project Guidelines.

Page 52 — 55: Sections 2.6.2 and 2.6.3, deleted text regarding treatment standards and
new construction, which is provided in Section 4.0 of the Historic Project Guidelines.

Page 55: Section 2.6, formerly Section 2.7, included information on character areas and
corrected information on design guidelines.



Page 56 - 59: Section 2.8, deleted Demolition Criteria, which is provided in Section 5.0
of the Historic Project Guidelines.

Page 62: Section 2.9 Planning and Review, added all appendices related to Mare Island
Historic Resources and deleted reference to the Mare Island Amendment.

CHAPTER 3.0 LAND USE

Page 66: Section 3.2.2 Dredge Ponds, amended to reflect agreement to not allow re-
activation of the dredge ponds on Mare Island; Sections 3.2.3 Conservation Easement,
and 3.2.4 Open Space amended to reflect agreement to not allow re-activation of the
dredge ponds on Mare Island.

Page 73: Section 3.2.12 Uses Requiring Site Development Permit, amended to restrict
uses within wetlands and inactive dredge pond areas; Table 3-1, amended to reflect
Development Program, as provided in the certified 2005 Final Subsequent Environmental
Impact Report.

Page 78: Section 3.4 Parks and Open Space, amended to restrict uses within wetlands
and inactive dredge pond areas.

Page 80: Section 3.4.1 (B) Regional Park, amended pursuant to Article 6 of the Historic
Resources Settlement Agreement regarding Morton Field.

Page 82: Section 3.4.3 (C) City Park and (D) Wildlife Refuge, amended to indicate that
dredge ponds are inactive.

Page 84: Section 3.5 Land Use Program by Reuse Area, amended to indicate that Table
3-2 has been revised to reflect Development Program as provided in the certified 2005
Subsequent Environmental Impact Report.

Page 85: Table 3-2, revised to reflect Development Program as provided in the certified
Subsequent Environmental Impact Report.

Pages 87 - 96: Sections 3.5.2 — 3.5.13 Reuse Areas 1A, 1B, 2A, 3A, 3B, 4, 5, 6, 9 and
10A (A) Land Use, amended text and square footage to reflect Development Program as’
provided in the certified Subsequent Environmental Impact Report.

. Page 90: Section 3.5.7 Reuse Area 3B, 193,845 square feet of additional warehouse use
added due to demolition of Building 866 (387,690 square feet) in Reuse Area 8, which
was originally assumed for reuse; remaining 193,845 square feet of warehouse use added
to Reuse Area 5.

Page 92: Section 3.5.9 Reuse Area 5, 193,845 square feet of warehouse use added due to
demolition of Building 866 (387,690 square feet) in Reuse Area 8, which was originally



assumed for reuse; remaining 193,845 square feet of warehouse use added to Reuse Area
3B.

Page 93: Section 3.5.12, Reuse Area 8, deleted child-care facility and adult vocation
school, which buildings have been demolished; deleted reuse of Building 866 which has
. being demolished; amended to reflect inactive dredge ponds.

Page 96: Section 3.5.18 Reuse Area 13, amended to reflect restriction of RCRA; Section
3.5.19 Wetlands, amended to reflect inactive dredge ponds and current occupancy of
Building 505 and status of U.S. Fish and Wildlife on Mare Island.

Page 97: Section 3.5.19 Wetlands (Land Use), amended to reflect inactive dredge ponds
and open space, conservation and habitat management as allowed uses; deleted access
roads as an allowed use for dredge ponds.

98: Section 3.5.22 Accessory and Temporary Uses, amended to reference Vallejo
Municipal Code for accessory and temporary uses; added model home complexes as a
temporary use.

CHPATER 4.0 URBAN DESIGN

Page 104: Numbers ix - xii, added to reference subject Planned Development Unit Plan
for setback requirements for accessory structures and additions; prohibit carports;
prohibit garage conversions.

Page 123: Section 4.10.11 South Residential Village, deleted references to Bulldlngs
866, 902, and 1003 which have been approved for demolition.

Page 124: Section 4.10.13 South Island Business Park, clarified ownership of area.

CHAPTER 5.0 TRANSPORTATION

Page 139: Section 5.7 Bicycle and Pedestrian, amended to clarify three types of
bikeways or routes planned for Mare Island; clarified Class I Bikeway/Multi-Use Path
along Walnut Avenue.

CHAPTER 6.0 UTILITY SYSTEMS

Page 150: Section 6.2 Proposed System Improvements, amended to clarify that utility -
lines for water, sewer and storm drainage will be owned, operated and maintained by the
City and Vallejo Sanitation and Flood Control District (VSFCD).

CHAPTER 8.0 IMPLEMENTATION

Page 157: Table 8-1 Implementation Summary of Public Area Improvements, amended
Interpretive Program to reflect Mitigation Measure A.lc. '
Page 161: Section 8.2.4 Zoning, amended to include Resource Conservation areas.



Page 165: Section 8.3.3 Unit Plan Procedure (MUPD Zoning), amended to include
policy that Unit Plans are required for the permanent reuse of any building and for all
new construction, except for trellises, gazebos and patio covers; Section 8.3.4 Cultural
Resources, deleted references to Mare Island Amendment, per Zoning Code Text
Amendment; deleted all standards and procedures for projects within the Mare Island
Historic District and referenced the Historic Project Guidelines.
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1.0

INTRODUCTION

1.1

THE VISION FOR MARE ISLAND

Mare Island has always had a very special role in the history of Vallejo. The conversion
of Mare Island to civilian uses presents a tremendous challenge to and opportunity for the
City of Vallejo. As described below, the transfer process has involved many years of
coordinated community planning. The guiding vision for the initial Reuse Plan and
Specific Plan, as well as for all subsequent amendments has held constant. That vision is
to create new, well paying jobs and to restore to Mare Island the vitality that it brought to
Vallejo through its recognized long period of significance—“91 years from the era of
wooden sailing ships to the eve of the nuclear era, from the early American occupation of
California through World War IL”! A part of this vision is the growing recognition that
the historic character of Mare Island, in and of itself, adds incalculably to the level of
economic development opportunities and types of jobs that can be created, both for the
City and the region.

It is not difficult to understand why job creation has been such a constant theme through
the conversion planning. Until the base closure was approved in 1993, it was the primary
economic engine for the City. During the second World War, it was one of the busiest
shipyards in the world with more than 40,000 workers. Before downsizing in 1988, there
were still more than 10,000 jobs. At the date of closure, the shipyard employed
approximately 5,800 workers.

It is also widely recognized that the buildings and landscape setting of the former naval
shipyard, which is appropriately designated as a national treasure, contains one of the
richest collections of cultural resources within a relatively small area to be found
anywhere in the country. Mare Island is a built record of the impact of the nation’s
presence on the edge of the continent. It is the oldest shipyard and naval facility on the
West Coast, established six years after Mexico ceded the area to the United States and
four years after California was admitted to the Union. It contains some of the oldest
shipyard buildings in the country, as well as a diverse collection of industrial and military
base architecture, with state-of-the-art examples of Civil War, Spanish War, World War I
and World War I era structures that range from massive industrial plants to elegant
single-family officer’s quarters. These structures are a physical part of the legacy of the
massive military investments that were made to maintain this very important naval base,
which became an integral part of the economy of the City and the region.

The vision of Mare Island as a vital new place where people live and work within the
context of a well-established, highly distinctive and historically significant fabric of

' Nation

al Register of Historic Places Registration Form for the Mare Island Historic District, Vallejo, California.

Engineering Field Activity, West Naval Facilities Engineering Command, San Bruno, California. J anuary, 1996.
Section Number 7, pp. 1-2.
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buildings and landscape. It is a vision that acknowledges economic development and
preservation as mutually inclusive goals of a Specific Plan to extend the former vitality of
the Mare Island Naval Base into the 21st Century, fostering a new district of the City
within the existing fabric of a nationally recognized historic place of almost unparalled
significance.

1.2 PLANNING FOR THE REUSE OF MARE ISLAND

After presidential approval and congressional acceptance in 1993 of the Base

- Realignment and Closure Commission (BRAC) Report recommending closure of the
Mare Island Naval Shipyard (referred to as Mare Island or the Shipyard), the City of
Vallejo undertook an extensive community-based reuse planning process. The Shipyard
had always been a vital part of the City’s economy and character and there was particular
concern over the loss of such an important employment base. The resulting Mare Island

. Final Reuse Plan (Reuse Plan) was accepted by the Vallejo City Council as the guiding
document for reuse activities in 1994. The Reuse Plan was the basis for the Mare Island
Specific Plan as adopted on March 30, 1999 (1999 Specific Plan), and remains the
blueprint for this amendment and restatement of the Mare Island Specific Plan adopted
on December 6,———— 2005 and subsequently amended and restated on )
2006June 26, 2007 (Specific Plan).” The Specific Plan replaces and supersedes the 1999
Specific Plan, as do all future amendments and restatements.> Concurrently with the
processing of this Specific Plan, the City is processing an amendment to its General Plan.
The Specific Plan is consistent with the General Plan, as amended.

The 1999 Specific Plan established a vision for the geographic area of Mare Island as a
vibrant civilian employment center and balanced new neighborhood for the City of
Vallejo. 1999 Specific Plan goals were focused on the replacement of jobs and economic
activity once provided by the military use of Mare Island. The 1999 Specific Plan
designated land uses and established development standards for identified reuse areas and
provided an implementation program to guide all subsequent planning activities for Mare
Island.

Following selection of the Master Developer (Lennar Mare Island, LLC)—fex) for the
majority of Mare Island and as part of the entitlement process, extensive studies were
prepared on historic resources and environmental conditions as well as on the capacities
of the transportation and service infrastructure. The studies, which also have been
informed by the Final EIS/EIR (1998) for the base closure, are the basis for the
amendments that have been incorporated into the Specific Plan. These amendments, as

? Throughout this document, references to the “Specific Plan” should be understood to mean the amended and
restated Specific Plan. References to the “1999 Specific Plan” should be understood to mean the Mare Island
2’Speciﬁc Plan, as adopted on March 30, 1999.
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1.3

summarized below, maintain consistency with the goals and policies of both the Reuse
Plan and the 1999 Specific Plan. The emphasis for both interim and ultimate land uses as
described by the Specific Plan remains on job-creation and the integration of new uses
into the historic fabric of Mare Island. The vision for the conversion to predominately
civilian use of Mare Island continues to be the revitalization of a historic place that will
provide interim and long-term regional recreational, employment and housing
opportunities while maintaining the waterfront-related industrial activities associated with
its past and present.

In summary, the reasons for amending and restating the 1999 Specific Plan are
summarized as follows:

State Lands Commission jurisdiction over Reuse Area 10A (see Land Use
Element, Section 3.5.13), requires changing the land use designation from
residential to industrial, and relocating residential uses to other areas.

More detailed information on the location of environmental contamination,
especially in Reuse Area 2, results in the need to relocate residential uses to more
suitable Reuse Areas and to phase the development plan according to the cleanup
process.

Modifications in Reuse Area boundaries, including sub-divisions of several Reuse
Areas, are made to provide logical planning units based on more accurate land
surveys and to recognize current boundaries for the State Lands Commission,
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, and other jurisdictional entities.

Updated studies on land use pi'ogramming, marketing, economic feasibility,
employment, housing demand, education and other comparable topics that inform
development planning decisions have been conducted.

Additional analyses of historic and archaeological resources provide detailed
information, including a survey of, and guidelines for, the preservation and reuse

- of an increased number of historic structures and a reduced number of required
demolitions, that results in opportunities for increased square footages in the
overall development program. :

More detailed information on, and criteria for, the design of transportation and
utility infrastructure is provided to support refined Specific Plan concepts.

REUSE GOALS AND CONCEPTS

The goals developed through the reuse planning process and incorporated into the 1999
Specific Plan are still the guiding principles for reuse. Some of these goals are not land
use-related, but they are important to include as a context for the land use policies,
standards and programs described in the Specific Plan. The goals include the following:
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Create jobs and other economic development opportunities to sustain and improve
the economic conditions in Vallejo, the rest of Solano County, Napa County and
the greater San Francisco Bay Area into the 21st century.

Create a self-sustaining and multi-use community that is unified under a common
design theme with a balance of industrial, office, commercial, residential,
educational, recreation, cultural and open space uses that will meet the needs of
future generations. :

Preserve and enhance the history of Mare Island as an integral part of the reuse.

Use a variety of innovative economic development tools, including public-private
partnerships and domestic-international partnerships, for marketing, financing and
acquiisition.

Ensure that those impacted by closure are provided retraining and educational
opportunities for careers that are high paying and highly skilled.

‘Ensure that the human services needed by those impacted by downsizing and
closure are easily accessible and available.

1.4 FRAMEWORK FOR CHANGE

The Mare Island Specific Plan is not a rigid plan or a final picture; instead it provides the
foundation and the process for land use decisions that must be made as economic
decisions present themselves. This framework for change provides the flexibility needed
to respond to economic development and other opportunities that benefit Mare Island, the
community and the region.

1.4.1 Policies

Based on the concepts set forth in the Reuse Plan, the following general development
policies have been incorporated into the Specific Plan:

(A)  Access

Access on and to Mare Island should achieve a balance between
automobile, transit, bicycle and pedestrian modes.

The existing network of streets and the layout of Mare Island encourage
pedestrian movement and transit usage and should therefore be reinforced.

(B)  Buildings and Places

The special heritage of Mare Island, which is expressed in its historic
buildings and landscaping, will be preserved and made accessible to the
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1.5

1.5.1

public as a living, evolving environment within the Historic District
according to the Secretary of the Interior’s standards.

The reuse of historic buildings and places on Mare Island, including
proposed new construction, will provide a full range of land uses including
for employment, residential, commercial, recreation and open space.

(C)  Open Space

The Mare Island community will continue to be characterized by the
remarkable extent and quality of its open space and recreational amenities
and by its natural resource areas. -

New development on Mare Island will preserve and expand existing open
- space areas and will provide access to a regional and local populace.

SETTING
Location

Mare Island is located on the western edge of the City of Vallejo in southwestern Solano
County (see Figure 1-1: Regional Location). It is approximately 30 miles northeast of
San Francisco and within easy travel distance of major cities within Solano County and
adjoining counties. Mare Island is bounded by Mare Island Strait (part of the Napa River)
on the east, San Pablo Bay on the west, Carquinez Strait on the south, and Napa Marsh,
State Route 37 and San Pablo Bay National Wildlife Refuge on the north. The entire site
lies within the incorporated boundaries of the City of Vallejo. The two existing points of

~ access are from State Route 37, the primary route across the North Bay connecting U.S.

Route 101 and Interstate 80, and across the Mare Island Causeway from Tennessee
Street, one of Vallejo’s main arterials and a primary connection with Interstate 80.

Mare Island is approximately 3.5 miles long by one mile wide. It comprises
approximately 5,250 acres (revised from the historic recording of 5,460 acres to reflect
more recent and accurate assessment of submerged lands by the Navy and not including
the 29-acre Roosevelt Terrace property, as discussed below), of which 1,448 acres are
Reuse Areas identified for development and recreational uses, including conservation
easements, and 3,787 acres are dredge disposal ponds, wetlands and submerged lands.
Generally speaking, the Island is relatively flat, ranging in elevation from sea level to 284
feet above sea level at the southern end. The “Hill”, a large upland open space at the
southern end of Mare Island, is part of the original Shipyard. At the time of transfer, the
buildings on Mare Island totaled approximately 10.5 million square feet.
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Figure 1-1: Regional Location
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1.5.2

Plan Area

The Specific Plan Area for Mare Island, as illustrated in Figure 1-2, is bounded by Mare
Island Strait on the east, San Pablo Bay on the west, Carquinez Strait on the south and the
Napa Marsh and historic diked marshlands on the north. In addition, the Plan Area
includes the following “complex” of Shipyard properties: (1) the Causeway from Mare
Island to Tennessee Street, (2) Building 513 and the Main Entrance at the eastern end of
the Causeway, (3) the rail spur that extends from Mare Island through the City of Vallejo
to Broadway, and (4) the bulkhead extending from Sandy Beach into Mare Island Strait.

With one exception the Specific Plan Area remains the same as defined in the Reuse Plan
and in the 1999 Specific Plan. The one amendment to the Specific Plan Area is that the
on-shore Roosevelt Terrace property, a naval base housing complex containing 300 units
located on Sacramento Street, is no longer included. Roosevelt Terrace is being privately
developed and will be fully integrated into the City of Vallejo fabric.

Within the Specific Plan Area, there are 13 distinctive Reuse Areas or land use zones in
addition to the wetland and dredge pond areas located on the west side of Mare Island.
These areas were defined during the reuse planning process as a vehicle for
understanding the complex nature of Mare Island and as “a way of thinking” about its
management and reuse. It also was understood that these areas would evolve over time.
It is the intent of the Specific Plan to allow limited flexibility in Reuse Area densities,
uses and boundaries as more precise survey and site information becomes available and
in response to the realities of reuse development, as discussed in the Land Use

Section (3.1.2). Subsequent to adoption of the 1999 Specific Plan, it should be noted that
certain Reuse Area boundaries have been modified and some Reuse Areas have been sub-
divided in response to more detailed design and environmental studies. Current
boundaries for the Reuse Areas are illustrated in Figure 1-3.
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Figure 1-2: Specific Plan Area
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Figure 1-3: Reuse Areas
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1.5.3 Ownership
(A)  Public Sector:

When the federal to federal transfer process is completed, the U.S. Army Reserve will
retain a portion of Reuse Area 10B as well as Building 1294 in Reuse Area 9. The
Veterans Administration operates an outpatient clinic in the former nuclear medical clinic
building in Reuse Area 3B and will continue to do so under a long-term sublease with the
City of Vallejo, which now owns the facility. The U.S Coast Guard will retain ownership
of the communication tower in Reuse Area 12. Three other public ownerships of
properties within the Specific Plan Area ultimately will include the following:

In addition to the majority of the wetlands and dredge disposal pond areas,
the State of California, through the California State Lands Commission
(State Lands Commission), will own Reuse Area 12, which is identified
for use as a regional park, and Reuse Area 13, which is identified for use
as a city park. Reuse Area 10A, which will also be owned by the State of
California, contains a number of warehouse facilities and other support
infrastructure. Finally, the State of California also will own most of the
Mare Island Strait waterfront, including portions of the Waterfront
Promenade and the Waterfront Industrial Park.

State Lands will own a small wetlands area bounded by Reuse Areas 2B
and 6.

As part of a public benefit transfer to the Department of Education, the
Vallejo Unified School District will maintain and operate the school
buildings in Reuse Area 6. ’

(B)  Private Sector:

The following properties have been or ultimately will be owned or leased by private
entities, as follows:

Reuse Areas 1B through 9, which the Navy conveyed to the City of
Vallejo_with the exception of some Federally retained areas, subsequently
has been conveyed for development purposes by the City to a private
sector, Master Developer. In addition, most of Reuse Area 10A, as well as
the Waterfront Promenade, will be leased by the State of California to the
City, which will in turn sublease it to the Master Developer. Reuse Area
1A also will be conveyed for development purposes by the City to a
selected, private sector developer. Ownership of the 18 hole golf course,
Reuse Area 11, has been transferred to a private owner/operator following
an Economic Development Conveyance (EDC) between the Navy and the
City and a subsequent agreement between the City and the
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owner/operator. The agreement requires that the property continue to be
used as a golf course.

These ownership patterns for Mare Island are illustrated in Figure 1-4.
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Figure 1-4: Ownership
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1.6

1.6.1

HISTORY OF MARE ISLAND
History Prior to Base Realignment and Closure

At the time of the first European contact in 1775, Mare Island was occupied by the
Patwin, who were descendents of the Miwok-Costanoans. Native American populations
may have used Mare Island for as long as 2000 years before the European conquest.3
The first European settlers gave it the name “Isla Plana” or Flat Island. General Mariano
Vallejo, the Mexican Commandante for Northern California, renamed the Island “Isla de
la Yegua” (Mare Island) in 1835, it is reported, after his white mare fell off a raft and
swam ashore. In 1852, Commander John Sloat recommended Mare Island to President
Fillmore as the site for the first Pacific naval installation. It was established as such by
Commander David Farragut in 1854.

The first ship built on Mare Island was launched in 1860. In all, 513 vessels, ranging
from wooden sailing ships to nuclear-powered submarines, were constructed and as many
as 1,227 were repaired or overhauled at the Shipyard facilities. The majority of this
activity was during the five years of World War II, making the Shipyard one of the
busiest in the world with a peak employment of over 41,000. In the 1950’s, the Navy
designated the facility as a building and overhaul yard for submarines, which remained its
primary use until the base was closed.

In 1988, there were approximately 10,000 employees on Mare Island. The downsizing of
the Shipyard workforce began in 1989 due to a number of factors. Defense spending was
cut to reduce the national deficit, newer naval vessels required less maintenance, and the
end of the Cold War reduced the need for defense facilities and operations. When
Congress confirmed closure in October 1993, Shipyard employment was approximately
5,800 civilians.

The BRAC Commission in its June 1993 report to President Clinton recommended the
closure of Mare Island. President Clinton approved the Commission’s recommendations
in July 1993, and the 103rd Congress accepted the decision. The Navy completed its
scheduled work by the spring of 1995, and the Shipyard was closed on April 1, 1996.

1.6.2 Reuse Process

Following the decision to close the Shipyard in 1993, the City of Vallejo has been
actively engaged in planning for reuse of Mare Island. The first step was to implement
the conversion process known as the Mare Island Futures Project, which had two
components. The Legislative Committee, comprised of federal, state and local elected

3 James Allan and William Self, "Evaluation of Prehistoric Archeological Resources, Mare Island Naval Shipyard,
Vallejo, California, " Prepared for Department of the Navy, Engineering Field Activity, West, April 1996b, p. 1; also
see Allan and Self, "Prehistoric Archeological Context Statement and site Prediction Model, Mare Island Naval
Shipyard, Vallejo, California," 1996a, for further discussion of prehistoric occupation and overview of prior
archaeological studies, beginning with the 1907 Nelson study of recorded prehistoric shell midden sites.
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officials, facilitated a timely and efficient conversion to civilian use. The Work Group
included more than 50 representatives of labor, business, government, education,
énvironmental organizations, and private citizens with interests in the reuse of Mare
Island.

The Work Group had the responsibility for the development of the Reuse Plan and was
assisted by four other interest groups, as follows:

The first was from an Advisory Panel from the Urban Land Institute. A group of
national real estate and land use professionals with experience in base closures
and adaptive reuse analyzed the constraints and opportunities on Mare Island and
made recommendations regarding its reuse.

The second was a team of consultants with professional expertise in land use,
infrastructure, transportation, market feasibility and fiscal analysis.

The third were citizen-based resource groups.

The fourth was the community, which actively participated in the reuse process
through the Work Group’s numerous public meetings and community forums.
Finally, the Restoration Advisory Board (RAB) was established as a federally
generated organization to provide the Navy with a process for informing the local
community of the ongoing environmental cleanup process.

The Mare Island Specific Plan is the City’s tool for implementing the Reuse Plan, which
was adopted in 1994. Subsequently.Using-the-Speeific Plan; the City-has selected master
developers for both Mare Island and Roosevelt Terrace and is utilizing the Specific Plan

to facilitate reuse, leasing, and property transfers. has-facilitatedreuse-leasing-and
property-transfers—The entitlements that are part of the reuse process for the transfer and

acquisition of Specific Plan Area properties, excluding Roosevelt Terrace, are described
‘as follows:

(A) Transfer of L.and Ownership

Economic Development Conveyance Memorandum of Agreement (EDC
MOA) between the Navy and the City: an agreement for transfer of
property ownership from the Navy to the City

Lease in Furtherance of Conveyance (LIFOC) between the Navy and the
City: Interim lease of Navy property to the City for economic benefit prior
to transfer

Acquisition Agreement by and between the City of Vallejo and Lennar
Mare Island, LLC

State Lands Property Settlement and Exchange Agreement between the
City and the California State Lands Commission to settle ownership
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disputes on land being transferred from the Navy to the City and the State
(referred to as the Mare Island Property Settlement and Exchange
Agreement) :

(B)  Planning and Development Entitlements

General Plan Amendment (GPA); initiated by the City, amending the
City’s General Plan to include Mare Island per the Reuse Plan

Specific Plan for Mare Island; initiated by the City under the Amended
General Plan

Zoning of Mare Island to Mixed Use Planned Development (MUPD)_and

Resource Conservation (RC) - for zoning purposes; Initiated by the City to
provide framework for subsequent entitlements and development of Mare
Island :

Development Agreement; initiated between the City and the Master
Developer.

(C) Environmental Cleanup Agreements

The EDC MOA was the initial agreement between the City and the Navy, not only for
property transfer, but also for the environmental cleanup of Mare Island. As the “Early
Transfer” option washas-been selected by the City, the following are agreements and
documentation related to the environmental cleanup_for the 600 acre Eastern Early
Transfer Parcel (EETP) under “Early Transfer (ET).”

Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement (ESCA)

Mare Island Remediation Agreement (MIRA)_and, possibly, future ET
Agreements

Consent Agreements between the City, the Department of Toxic
Substances Control (DTSC) and Lennar Mare Island, LLC

Consent Agreement between the Environmental Protections Agency
(EPA), the U.S. Navy, Lennar Mare Island, LLC and the City of Vallejo
concerning PCBs on Mare Island (allows the fee simple transfer process to
proceed for the Mare Island Eastern Early Transfer Parcel--EETP)

Covenant Deferral Request from the Navy and the Governor of
California’s Letter of Agreement
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1.7 RELATIONSHIP TO THE CITY OF VALLEJO GENERAL PLAN

The Reuse Plan was accepted by the Vallejo City Council in July 1994. The 1999
Specific Plan implements the vision and goals of the Reuse Plan. The 2005 and 2006
amendments and restatements and future amendments and restatements further
implements the Reuse Plan, while providing a level of analysis of physical conditions and
of current economic considerations that allows it also to serve as the zoning and Planned
Development Master Plan for Mare Island.

The Specific Plan is consistent with and implements those portions of the Vallejo General
‘Plan that apply to the Specific Plan Area. The designations on the Land Use Map of the
Vallejo General Plan for Mare Island, as amended on March 30, 1999, are shown in
Figure 1-5.

In summary, the Vallejo General Plan contains the following goals and policies that are
directly relevant to Mare Island:

Urban Design Goal 1: To establish a strong city identity.

Policy: Use a specific plan and area plans as the development guide for the reuse of
- Mare Island.

Industrial Development Goal 1: To maintain Mare Island as an economic asset —
particularly in terms of industrial development — for the community.

Policy: Use a specific plan in evaluating new industrial development on Mare Island.

Other Services Goal: To provide an efficient and financially sound system of
urban services to protect the health, safety, and general welfare of Vallejo area
residents.

Policy: Encourage revenue-generating uses on Mare Islahd to mitigate the costs of
improving and maintaining public facilities and services on Mare Island.

In addition, there are other goals and policies, such as those to maximize the use of
existing infrastructure and other assets, that are particularly relevant to the unique
characteristics of Mare Island. Interim uses are allowed as required to respond to the
closure of the Mare Island Naval Shipyard and to meet community needs for housing,
employment and recreational activities. With City approval, existing interim, non-
conforming uses can be allowed to remain on Mare Island until development is ready to
proceed in conformance with the Mare Island Specific Plan. As documented in the City
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of Vallejo Findings Related to Approval of the Mare Island Project, the 1999 Specific
Plan is consistent with all relevant goals and policies of the Vallejo General Plan.

The Land Use Plan for Mare Island, as described in Section 3.0 and illustrated by
Figure 3-1 (Land Use), is consistent with the Land Use Map of the Vallejo General Plan
(Figure 1-5). As discussed in the Implementation Section (8.0), the Specific Plan Area
is zoned MUPD (Mixed Use Planned Development) and RC (Resource Conservation) in
the City of Vallejo Zoning Ordinance, as illustrated in Figure 1-6.

The application process for all PD zoned projects is Master Plan approval and Unit Plan
approval. For zoning purposes, the Specific Plan also serves as the Master Plan for Mare
Island, allowing all Specific Plan development projects to be implemented through the
City’s Planned Development Unit Plan (Unit Plan) process, subject to the policies,
standards, guidelines, and provisions of the Specific Plan. The Unit Plan describes the
specific design and uses for the project, as proposed conceptually in the Master Plan, and
is intended to give the City a more refined and detailed description of structures (both
new buildings and rehabilitations), landscaping, design features and uses. The Unit Plan .
process is discussed in more detail in the Implementation Section 8.3.1.
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Figure 1-5: General Plan Designations for Mare Island
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Figure 1-6: Mare Island Zoning
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1.8 JURISDICTIONAL RELATIONSHIPS
1.8.1 Federal Government

(A)  United States Department of the Navy

The Navy retains ownership of certain portions of the Specific Plan Area. Therefore,
pursuant to the Navy’s interpretation of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA),
the Navy, normally the federal lead agency with responsibility for environmental review
and adoption of an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS), has delegated any NEPA
analysis responsibility to the City of Vallejo, subject to Navy approval.

(B)  United States Army Corps of Engineers (Corps)

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, the Corps has jurisdiction over all
wetlands and other waters of the United States on Mare Island. In the event of fill of
these wetlands by any public agency or private party, a permit will be required from the
Corps.

(C)  United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS)

The Endangered Species Act requires the USFWS to protect endangered plant and
wildlife species and their habitat from disturbance. The USFWS has issued a biological
opinion with a finding of “no jeopardy” for the transfer by the Navy of the Specific Plan
Area to the City of Vallejo.

(D)  United States Department of the Interior

The National Register is administered by the National Park Service (NPS), under the U.S.
Department of the Interior. As part of a series of agreement documents prepared under
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act, federal jurisdiction over historic
resources has, in effect, been transferred to the City of Vallejo. As discussed in the
Cultural Resources section of the Plan (2.0), NPS will review and make
recommendations for all buildings and other resources in the Historic District under
consideration for tax-credit status.

1.8.2 State of California

(A) California Environmental Protection Agency and Department of Toxic Substance
Control (Cal EPA and DTSC)

DTSC is the primary regulator overseeing environmental remediation on Mare Island.

(B) California State L ands Commission

In accordance with the executed Mare Island Property Settlement and Exchange
- Agreement between the City of Vallejo and the State Lands Commission, certain portions
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of the Specific Plan Area are under the jurisdiction of the State Lands Commission
following transfer ef ownership-from the Navy._As authorized by the State in August
2004 (SB 1481), the City of Vallejo holds, as trustee, all Public Trust Lands. -The

" . Settlement and Exchange Aagreement obligates the City of Vallejo to reserve such lands
for “public trust purposes” (e. g. commerce, navigation, fisheries, recreation, etc).

(C) California Office of Historic Preservation (OHP)

OHP is responsible for the administration of federal and state historic preservation
programs in California. OHP’s mission includes encouraging economic revitalization
through education and public awareness, fostering and maintaining relationships with
local government agencies and preservation organizations, and ensuring compliance with
federal and state regulations. At the local level, the role of OHP includes consultation on
the Historic Resource Project Guidelines (the Project Guidelines) and review of historic
resources impacts from reuse of Mare Island in accordance with CEQA. As director of
the OHP, the California State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) may provide
guidance to staff in review of Project Guidelines and CEQA compliance. California’s
SHPO, who is appointed by the governor, also has certain responsibilities under federal
law. Consultation with the Department of the Interior and the SHPO for Mare Island, as
required under Section 106 agreement documents, is substantially complete.

(D) California State Department of Transportation (Caltrans)

Consultation with and approval from Caltrans will be required for any reconfiguration of
the State Route 37 interchange.

/

(E)  San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC)

Pursuant to the McAteer Petris Act, BCDC has jurisdiction over all development within
100 feet of the high water line of San Francisco Bay. A permit will be required from
BCDC for development of the Waterfront Promenade and other areas within the 100-foot
high water line band, including along the Mare Island Strait.

()  San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB)

Under Section 401 of the Clean Water Act, the RWQCB has authority to certify that any
actions taken pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act do not violate state water
quality standards. The RWQCB also has the authority to issue a construction permit for
storm water discharge as well as a permanent discharge permit.

- 1.8.3 City of Vallejo

(A) Development Agreement

- In March 2001, the City entered into a development agreement with Lennar Mare Island,
LLC for the development of Reuse Areas 1B-10A. At a future time, the City of Vallejo
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may also negotiate a development agreement with a private developer for the
development of Reuse Area 1A, the North Island Industrial Park.

(B)  City Staff

Reviews and acts on all Mare Island projects in accordance with the Development
Agreement, the Specific Plan and Subsequent EIR. As directed, staff may approve certain
types of projects or refer them for further review and action_by the Architectural Heritage

and Landmarks Commission or Planning Commission.

(C)  Architectural Heritage and Landmarks Commission (AHLC)
The AHLC reviews and acts on prevides-recommendations-for-the review-of selected

* projects requiring a certificate of appropriateness (COA) under the Vallejo Municipal

Code (VMC) 16.38. P&Et—l—l—él:&ndmafks—efdmaﬁee-
(D) Planning Commission

Reviews and acts on discretionary permits such as tentative maps and unit plans
applieations-as per the General PlanA and Specific Plan.

(E) City Council

Reviews and acts on matters referred by the PC or to be heard on appeal.
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2.0 CULTURAL RESOURCES

2.1 INTRODUCTION

As the oldest shipyard and naval facility on the West Coast of the United States, Mare
Island has been recognized for its historic significance by the federal, state and local
governments. At the federal level, portions of the Mare Island Naval Shipyard were
designated a National Historic Landmark (NHL) in 1975. Four years later, in 1979, the
larger Naval Base was listed as a California State Historical Landmark (CSHL) as the
“First U.S. Naval Station in the Pacific.” In 1997, the Naval Base was again honored for
its historic significance by listing of the Mare Island Historic District (NRHD) on the
National Register of Historic Places. Finally, in 1999, the City of Vallejo designated the
Mare Island National Register Historic District as a local historic district containing 42
individual City Landmarks._These districts are collectively referred to as the Mare Island
Historic District (Historic District).

As should be apparent from Section 1.0 of the Specific Plan, the City of Vallejo
recognizes Mare Island’s historic character as an irreplaceable asset in the reuse planning
process. Economic development and historic preservation are inextricably intertwined in
the vision for creating a dynamic future for Mare Island. Preservation of Mare Island’s
cultural resources is therefore an essential element of the Reuse Plan, which also supports
and facilitates the achievement of the City’s economic development goals.

This Ssection of the Specific Plan recognizes the central role which cultural preservation |
will play in the reuse of Mare Island. The first sub-sections describe the importance of

the historic resources, and outline the considerations applicable to proposals for the
conservation, reuse and new development within the Historic District, which will be
implemented through the Historic Project Guidelines (Appendix B.1), and other |
implementing tools. The second sub-sections address protection of Mare Island’s
archaeological resource, which will be implemented through the Archaeological
Treatment Plan (Appendix B.2)

2.2  SIGNIFICANCE OF HISTORIC RESOURCES

The MareIsland-Historic District encompasses approximately 65 percent of the Mare
Island Naval Shipyard and includes approximately 661 buildings.-and- structures, and
sites-502, 502 of which are identified as Contributing-contributing Reseureesresources,
including 12 historic landscape areas, and one archeological site; comprised of 27
discrete features. Of the 502 buildings and structures that are €contributing Rresources,
396 are located within the area slated for reuse by the master developer under thrs
Spemﬁc Plan Registea
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2.3  HISTORIC DESIGNATIONS AND LISTINGS

Preservation planning on Mare Island starts with the existing designations, each of wh1ch
recognizes and establishes the significance of the Historic District. Following is a
summary of the designations and listings that have been made for Mare Island cultural
resources at the federal, state and local levels. Mare Island historic resource boundaries
are illustrated on Figure 2-1 (Historic Area Boundaries). This figure also illustrates
how the Historic District boundaries relate to the Reuse Area boundaries which serve as
basic planning units for all other aspects of the specific Plan. Figure 2-2 (Historic
Resources) focuses on the types of resources that comprise the Historic District
designated in 1997. The following text also describes some of the development
opportunities and constraints resulting from this designation of historic resources.

2.3.1 Federal Designations and Programs

National Historic Landmark - National Historic Landmark designation is made by the
Secretary of the Interior (Secretary) and is reserved for significant historic places that
“possess exceptional value or quality in illustrating and interpreting the heritage of the
United States.” This is the highest level of federal recognition available for historic
resources.

* From the: National Register of Historic Places Registration Form for the Mare Island Historic District, Vallejo,
California. Engineering Field Activity, West Naval Facilities Engineering Command, San Bruno, California.
January, 1996. Section Number 7, Pages 1 and 2.

> http://www.cr.nps.gov/nr/about.htm
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A portion of fhe “Mare Island Naval Shipyard,” was designated a National Historic
Landmark (NHL) on May 15, 1975. This listing, which is divided into four
geographically distinct areas or groupings, covers 50 buildings and structures, 42 of

which are still extant. At the time that the NHL was designated, it was felt that “It was
neither desirable nor possible to include all surviving historic edifices in a single district.”
The NHL is comprised of four areas which are characterized as follows.

Area A:  The Historic Core, which contains some of the most significant structures on
Mare Island, including the oldest shops, some of the oldest residences, the
post chapel, the first drydock constructed on the West Coast, and the main
administration building. The boundary was drawn to exclude as many modern
structures as possible, but still includes more than two-dozen.

Area B:  The U.S. Naval Weapons Annex, which is located at the south end of the
Island. It contains munitions storage facilities and the original base cemetery.

Area C:  The Hospital Complex. an elongated area containing three 19th Century

buildings separated from the other historic shipyard structures. The three

buildings are not physically contiguous, but were felt to have a visual

connection along Azuar Drive (formerly Cedar Avenue).

Area D: Relocated Officers’ quarters, which were moved to a small tract separated
from the other historic areas in approximately 1953. The four quarters were

originally sited on the north side of the Sanger Plan parade ground in 1888.
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Figure 2-1: Historic Area Boundaries

MARE ISLAND SPECIFIC PLAN 2005 PAGE 26
we-101161 DRAFT OF June 11, 2007




Figure 2-2: Historic Resources
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The four, non-contiguous NHL areas have a combined size of approximately 150 acres
and, with one exception (a portion of Area D), are within the boundary of the Historic
District that was established 22 years later, as discussed below. The entire National
Historic Landmark District is located within the Historic District boundaries and -Specific

Plan Area.

National Register of Historic Places Historic District — The National Register of
Historic Places (National Register) is the nation's official list of cultural resources
identified as worthy of preservation. Authorized under the National Historic Preservation
Act of 1966, as amended (the “National Historic Preservation Act”), the National
Register is part of a nation-wide program to coordinate and support public and private

® http://www.cr.nps.gov/nr/about.htm
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efforts to identify, evaluate and protect the country's historic and archaeological
resources. Listed properties include districts, sites, buildings, structures and objects that
are significant in American history, architecture, archaeology, engineering and culture.
The National Register is administered by the National Park Service (NPS) of the U.S.
Department of the Interior and includes all designated historic areas in the National Park
System as well as those designated properties that are determined to be significant to the
nation, a state or a community’.

The “Mare Island Historic District,” was listed in the National Register on January 21,
1997. As nominated by the U.S. Navy, the Historic District contains 502 buildings,
structures and landscapes (50 of which were within the boundaries of the National
Historic Landmark) and one archaeological site comprised of 27 separate features. The
buildings, structures and landscapes within the District are not individually listed on the
National Register, but are identified as “contributing resources” on the Registration
Form. The area covered by the master development plan (Reuse Areas 1B-10A) of the
Specific Plan Area contains 396 of the “contributing resources.”

For the purposes of evaluating significance, the National Register Registration Form
divided the Historic District into five historic periods and seven areas, corresponding to
the discrete functions or missions of the Naval Base. The boundaries of the Historic
District were drawn to include virtually all resources associated with the identified areas
and built within the identified period of significance. While the Registration Form listed
all pre-1945 buildings in their original condition as “contributing resources, it also
contains extensive discussion of the setting and property types within the District, as well
as descriptions of buildings with individual historic or architectural significance.

The National Register Nomination was based on a detailed survey of the Naval Base. As
described in the Registration Form (Registration Form) for the Mare Island Historic
District:

“The Mare Island Historic District includes a rich collection of
buildings, structures, and sites that represent nearly a century of
naval activities at this, the oldest shipyard and naval facility on the
West Coast of the United States. The core of Mare Island has
always been the shipyard, the raison d’etre of the facility, and it is
within the shipyard that the most precious and impressive aspects
of the district may be seen — the oldest buildings on the base and
some of the oldest shipyard buildings anywhere in the United
States, as well as the huge shop buildings from the 20th century,
some of which are larger than 300,000 square feet. The naval
base, however, has always been more than shipyard, and the
historic district is dotted with buildings, structures, and sites that

’ From material on the National Register of Historic Places website: http://www.cr.nps.gov/nr/about.htm.
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reflect the presence of a naval community, as comparable to a
298

municipality as to a military base.

According to the Registration Form, there is no “simple thematic unity” to the properties
at Mare Island. In fact, “[t]he dominant characteristic of the historic district is its
diversity,” both because of its 91-year period of significance and its multiple military
functions. The conservation and development standards for reuse of Mare Island
established under this Specific Plan have been developed to respond to and promote the
diversity of the District,

2.3.2 State Designations and Programs

California State Historical Landmark — State Historical Landmarks are sites,
buildings, features or events that are of statewide significance, including for their
anthropological, cultural, military, political, architectural, economic or technical,
religious, and experimental value. -

The entire area within the Mare Island National Register Historic District was listed as
California State Historical Landmark No. 751 in 1979 due to its status as the “First U.S.
Naval Station in the Pacific.” To date, there are 1,100 State Historical Landmark
designated properties. The State Historical Landmark designation is limited to the
District and does not list any individual properties.

California Register of Historical Resources -- The California Register of Historical
Resources (California Register) is the state version of the National Register program and
provides an authoritative guide for state and local agencies to use in identifying historical
resources for protection, “to the extent prudent and feasible, from substantial adverse
change.” For the most part, the California Register parallels the National Register in the
criteria it provides for listing and protection. Pursuant to enabling legislation enacted in
1992 (AB 2881), the California Register automatically includes “California properties
formally determined eligible for or listed in the National Register of Historic Places,”' as
well as all local listings and all California State Historical Landmarks, beginning with

listing No. 770.

The California Register listing for Mare Island essentially mirrors the National Register
Historic District listing and includes 502 buildings, structures and landscapes (50 of
which were within the National Historic Landmark District) and one archaeological site
with 27 separate features. Technically, the California Register includes the National
Register and City listings, but does not include the State Historical Landmark ’

® From the: National Register of Historic Places Registration Form for the Mare Island Historic District, Vallejo,
California. Engineering Field Activity, West Naval Facilities Engineering Command, San Bruno, California.
January, 1996. Section Number 7, Pages 1 and 2.

® California Public Resources Code, section 5024.1. Also see the California Register web page:
http://ohp.parks.ca.gov/landmarks/index/htm.

1° California Public Resources Code, section 5024.1(d).
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designation, described above, which was made prior to State enabling legislation.
However, since the State Historical Landmark designation includes the entire National
Register Historic District, this omission has no effect. Although the buildings and
structures which make up the Historic District are discussed in the California Register
listing, they are not considered to be individually listed.

2.3.3 LeealProgramsLocal Designations

City of Vallejo Historic District and City Landmark Designation — In 1999, the City
of Vallejo Preservation Ordinance of the Vallejo Municipal Code (Chapter 16.38) was
amended to include the Mare Island Amendment. The “Mare Island Historic District,”
which is coterminous with the Natlonal Reglster Hlstorlc Dlstrlct was then de51gnated as
a local historic district. ¢ e : :

Qfdiﬂaﬂee—éM&re—Is}&ndMeﬂdmenﬁ—m—l-QQQ The C1ty Hlstorlc Dlstrlct 1ncludes all

structures listed as “contributing resources” to the National Register Historic District, as
well the one “contributing resource” consisting of 27 separate archaeological features.

For local regulatory purposes, all of the structures identified as “contributing resources”
in the National Register Registration Form are also defined as Econtributing Rresources
under the Mare Island Amendment, although there is no corresponding designation under
the general City Ordinance. In addition, each of the 42 surviving structures of the
original 50 within the boundaries of the National Historic Landmark District is also
designated as a City Landmark.

Gede—ei'—the%qe%m*e&pal—@ede——Chapter 16 38 of the Va11e10 Mumcmal Code

This-section-of the-City’s-Munieipal-Code required preparation of the Historic Resources

Project Guidelines for Mare Island. These “project guidelines” were to specify that a
Certificates of Appropriateness (COA) is required for construction of new structures or
alterations to contributing resources or Landmarks: and the process for obtaining a COA.
or demolition permit. The Mare Island Amendment also allowed for the use of
conservation easements and the incentives available under the Mills Act.

5In 2007, Chapter 16.38 of the Vallejo Municipal was amended to reflect the completion
and adoption of the Mare Island Historic Project Guidelines, which are contained in

Appendlx B. 1 as part of thls Spec1ﬁc Plan- These-“project-guidelines™ speeify-when
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2.3.4 _Preservation Incentives

Due to its status as a designated historic district under federal, state and local law, the
Mare Island Historic District is eligible for a number of economic incentive programs.
Each of these programs has the added public benefit of requiring all exterior and, in some
cases, interior alterations to comply with the stringent Secretary of the Interior’s
Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties."! (Secretary’s Standards). The Mare
Island developer may use a combination of preservation incentives in rehabilitating
historic structures.

Federal Preservation Tax Incentive Program — The federal Historic Preservation Tax
Incentives Program is available for buildings that are National Historic Landmarks, that
are separately listed in the National Register, or that contribute to National Register
historic districts and certain local historic districts or are eligible for the National
Register: Properties must be income-producing and must be rehabilitated according to
the Secretary’s Standards. One of the key incentives is a 20% income tax credit for the
substantial rehabilitation of certified historic buildings for commercial, industrial, and
rental residential purposes permitted under the Tax Reform Act of 1986.

California State Historical Building Code (SHBC) — The SHBC provides alternative
building regulations for the rehabilitation, preservation, restoration, or relocation of
buildings/structures designated as historic buildings or properties. The SHBC applies to
all qualified historic structures, districts and sites, and allows for alternative site
development design regarding open space, landscaping, pedestrian and vehicular access,
sidewalks, driveways, parking spaces, service delivery access, grading, erosion control,
and public utilities.

= To qualify, designation must be under federal, state, or local authority. The intent of
the SHBC is to protect California’s architectural heritage by recognizing the unique
construction problems inherent in historic buildings and offering an alternative code to
deal with these problems. The SHBC is contained in Part 8, Title 24 of the California
Code of Regulations. '

Conservation Easements — Section 815 et. seq. of the California Civil Code provides
for landowners to convey “conservation easements” to qualified non-profit organizations.
In exchange for the conveyance, the landowner receives a tax benefit in the form of a
charitable contribution deduction and an adjustment in the value of the property for

! Kay D. Weeks and Anne E. Grimmer, The Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic
Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring, and Reconstructing Historic Buildings or the
Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation and Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings,
(Washington, D.C.; U.S. Department of the Interior), 1995, 1. .
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2.4

income tax purposes is adjusted to account for the effect of the easement. The easement
creates a restriction on the use of the property that is binding upon successive owners of
the property. The purpose of a conservation easement is to ensure that land is retained
predominately in its natural, scenic, historical, agricultural, forested or open space
condition. A conservation easement may be held by qualified tax exempt non-profit
organizations whose primary purpose is the preservation, protection or enhancement of
the resource in question, as well as the state or any city, county, district, or other state or
local government entity. In the case of an historic resource, an easement can be created
which protects the historic elements of a resource, while enabling continued use of the

property.

State Mills Act — Under the Mills Act, property owners of historic buildings may
qualify for potential property tax relief if they pledge to rehabilitate and maintain the
historical and architectural character of their properties for at least a ten-year period.'
Owner-occupied single-family residences and income producing commercial properties
may qualify for the Mills Act program. A formal agreement, generally known as a Mills
Act contract or as an historic property contract, is executed between the local government
and the property owner for a minimum ten-year term. Contracts are automatically
renewed each year and are transferred to new owners when the property is sold. Property
owners agree to protect, preserve, and maintain the property in accordance with specific
historic preservation standards and conditions identified in the contract. The City of
Vallejo is a participant in the Mills Act.

PRESERVATION GOALS AND POLICIES

The Specific Plan provides for the protection of the historic character of the former Naval
Shipyard while allowing appropriate redevelopment. Change and adaptive reuse were the
primary characteristics of the Shipyard during the Navy’s occupancy and the Specific
Plan anticipates that this process will continue into the future. The Specific Plan
contemplates that Mare Island’s function as an exemplar of industrial development from
every decade since the 1850s will continue through implementation of the Reuse Plan
and that Mare Island will continue to be characterized by a diversity of uses, architectural
styles and eras into the future.

The Specific Plan has been designed with recognition of the special challenges associated
with preserving industrial/military buildings, some of which are easily adapted to new
requirements, and some of which are not. The challenges of adaptive civilian reuse are
exacerbated by the prior “city within a city” role of the Naval Base as a home for officers
and enlisted men, and the worksite of up to 41,053 military-sector workers, resulting in
development, transportation and retail patterns which do not translate easily to civilian
use.

2 See Section 439 et. seq. of the Revenue and Taxation Code (Historic Property Restriction).
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For planning purposes, it is also important that all of the designations have focused on the
significance of Mare Island as a district of national, state and local importance. While 42
buildings have been recognized as landmarks by the City, the real importance of Mare
Island is as a district representing nearly 150 years of United States military history, and
City of Vallejo economic and social history. Equally important, the district designation
does not focus on any particular decade or era, but on the construction, use and adaptive
reuse of buildings from every time period within its 94=year-period of significance.

2.4.1 General Plan Goals

As described above, the City of Vallejo General Plan contains a variety of goals and
policies relevant to reuse and development of Mare Island. In addition to the economic
development goals, the General Plan establishes an Historic Preservation Goal of
preserving and improving hlstorlcally and archltecturally significant structures and
neighborhoods.

The City General Plan, therefore, recognizes that there is no inconsistency between the
dual goals of economic development and historic preservation and, in fact, that they are
mutually supportive.

2.4.2 Reuse Program Policies

HlStOI‘lC Prolect Guldehnes estabhsh more spec1ﬁc goals and pohcles for 1ncorporat1ng
historic preservation into implementation of the Reuse Plan, as reflected in this Specific
Plan.

A. Implement the goals and policies of the Vallejo General
Plan as they pertain to Mare Island and the goals, standards
and procedures of the Mare Island Specific Plan;

B. Recognize the signiﬁcance of Mare Island’s role in the
history of Vallejo, California and the United States through,
among other implementation measures, an interpretive
program (see Section 8.3.3);

C. Incorporate contributing resources on Mare Island into the
City’s regulations and procedures so that these resources
will be preserved and protected, and thereby continue to
contribute to the city’s cultural and aesthetic heritage;

D. Encourage the adaptive reuse of contributing resources
which is critical to meeting the needs of the community,
including economic development, job creation, and
additional cultural, educational and recreational
opportunities;
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G.

Enhance property values and increase economic benefits to
the community through the exploration and implementation
of creative incentives for preservation;

Protect and enhance Mare Island’s attraction to tourism and
thereby economic development; and

Integrate preservation of contributing resources into public
and private development.

2.4.3 Additional Specific Plan Policies

In addition to the above goals and policies, the Specific Plan is intended to implement the
following preservation policies applicable to the Mare Island Historic District:

i

ii

iii

iv

Significant adverse impacts to the Historic District and to individual
Landmarks shall be avoided. Any alteration, relocation or demolition of
existing individual structures shall be conducted in a manner that does not
significantly impact the Historic District or a Landmark structure. Any
new construction shall be conducted in a manner that does not
significantly impact the Historic District or a designated Landmark.

New construction shall be consistent with the requirements of the Specific
Plan, including Section 4.0 (Urban Design) and the Historie
GuidelinesHistoric Project Guidelines (Appendix B.1), as well as the
Design Guidelines for the Mare Island Historic District (Appendix B.4).
The vision is that Mare Island will function as an exemplar of industrial
development and will continue to be characterized by a diversity of uses
and architectural styles and of eras both past and future.

In making decisions that affect the character of the Historic District or a
National Historic Landmark, the City shall follow the criteria and
priorities set forth in the Histerie-GuidelinesHistoric Project Guidelines.

The City will provide incentives to encourage removal of buildings or
structures which were constructed outside the period of significance and
which adversely affect the historic character of the District (i.e.
intrusions).

ROLE-OF-THE-HISTORIC GUIDELINESHISTORIC PROJECT GUIDELINES

2.5
INREUSEPLANNING
The City of Vallejo recognizes that many of the buildings within Mare Island are crucial
to maintaining the significance of the Historic District, as well as being individually
important. While the Historic District is both multi-faceted and resilient, certain changes
MARE ISLAND SPECIFIC PLAN 2005 PAGE 35
we-101161 DRAFT OF June 11, 2007 ‘




cannot be allowed if the unique quality of the Historic District is to be preserved. As
required by the former Mare Island Amendment, a primary role of the Histerie
GuidelinesHistoric Project Guidelines is to identify these areas and structures of high
historic sensitivity or value, so that they can be given the necessary protections.

At the same time, the City also recognizes that not every structure within the Historic
District can or should be preserved in situ. Some do not contribute to the historic
character of the District; some have obsolete floor plans; some are in poor condition; and
some interfere with the functionality of other structures. The Historie-GuidelinesHistoric
Project Guidelines (Appendix B.1) are designed to assist the City in making planning
decisions about structures and landscapes within the Historic District; that will protect the
National Register status of the Historic District.

The Histerie-GuidelinesHistoric Project Guidelines are necessary because existing
designations and regulations do not provide sufficient specific criteria or standards to
guide City in making basic reuse decisions within the Historic District. For instance, the
National Register listing designates virtually all pre-1945 structures as “contributing
resources’ w1thout regard to quahty, relatlve srgmﬁcance or presence of dupllcate
structures. +he 3§ i etattean-so1n €

eeﬂ%ai—n—&nyelemek&eﬂ-emeﬂa To make planmng dec131ons itis necessary for the City

to establish both priorities and policies for preservation within the Historic District and to
establish a framework for evaluating the impacts of proposed changes on the Historic
District.

Under the Mare Island Amendment, the Historie-GuidelinesHistoric Project Guidelines,
contained in Appendix B.1, are intended to guide all development planning for the City
of Vallejo Mare Island Historic District. The Guidelines are required to provide specific
and detailed standards for each contributing resource by providing recommended and not
recommended actions in terms of alteration, new construction, demolition and relocation
based on the Secretary’s Standards. The Guidelines are required to include the existing
designation status for each resource, including identification of those resources
designated as City Landmarks. For a catalogue of descriptions and classifications, see
Appendix B.3.

2.5.1 Preservation Considerations and Priorities

For planning purposes, therefore, the City has developed a set of considerations or
characteristics for evaluating development proposals within the Historic District. As
explained in the National Register Registration Form, the resources can only be
understood in the context in which they were built. Impacts therefore must also be
reviewed in context. This approach is consistent with the Secretary’s Standards, which
require consideration of “setting” in determining compatibility, and the Federal Tax
Program Regulations, which require consideration of impacts to the “project site,”

As identified by the City, these considerations include the following: (1) district
charaeteristiesenvironment; (2) sub-area sensitivity and character; (3) individual historic
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significance; (4) property type; and (5) period of significance and eras. Every
development proposal will be located on a continuum for each of these considerations
from “most impactive” to “least impactive.” Depending on the location of the
development proposal and the nature of the affected properties, one or more of these
considerations will be significant to the decision-making.

2:5:2(A) District CharaeteristiesEnvironment

According to the National Register Registration Form, there was no “simple thematic
unity” to the Mare Island Historic District. Instead, the Historic District consists of five |
eras and seven subareas, each representing a different function within the Naval Base.

The individual buildings within the subareas were not necessarily functionally related,
though the subareas each served a different military mission within the Naval Base.

While the National Register Historic District was divided into seven subareas for analytic
purposes, its boundaries were drawn to include as many pre-1945 buildings as possible.
In contrast, the Mare Island National Historic Landmark was divided into four discrete
groupings, each corresponding to a different function: the hospital district; the shipyard,
the naval weapons annex and the historic core

For planning purposes, it is also important to remember that the Mare Island Historic
District is a “snapshot” of the Naval Base as it existed at its 1975, 1997 and 1999 listings,
not as it existed at any single point during its 91-year period of significance. In fact, the
Mare Island “historic environment™ was characterized by constant change, reuse, and
replacement of resources. Many of the buildings were built as temporary structures,
intended to be relocated as military needs changed.

For the purposes of the Registration Form, “integrity” was defined as of 1945, but the
individual structures may have been modified many times between their construction and
the end of World War II. Other buildings which remained in their pre-1945 locations
were nonetheless altered significantly before completion of the National Register survey.
Still other post-1945 buildings are intrusions into character of the Historic District, even
though they may be highly functional.

(B) Sub-Area Sensitivity and Character

The following characteristics or development patterns are important in defining the
“historic environment” of the Mare Island Historic District:

The basic relationships among c€ontributing Rresources were ad hoc and |
functional, reflecting the operational needs of the military at both the conclusion

of World War II and in 1996 when the Shipyard closed. Historic structures which
did not continue to meet military needs during the Cold War were altered, moved

or demolished between 1945 and 1996, leaving only those pre-1945 structures
which remained useful to the military.
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The Historic District also contains a number of repetitive resources, either in
groupings or as individual outbuildings to larger, more significant structures.

= AL a¥a - o O)
Cl - ct 5 v
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The Historic District is strongly characterized by a mix of periods, materials and
architectural styles. Due to the unusually long period of significance, and the
temporary nature of many of the buildings, the District is not visually cohesive in
the manner of historic areas constructed over a shorter period of time or pursuant
to a single plan.

The Historic District is also strongly characterized by a mix of uses, including
clearly identifiable industrial, administrative (i.e. office) and residential uses.
Often, these original uses can be easily distinguished by their architecture.

The Historic District as a whole is strongly characterized by a mix of eras,
although the mix varies depending on the development patterns within the various
planning sub-Areas. Area 4, for instance contains buildings from all 5 eras,
including 32 from 1898-1918, 19 from 1919-1948 and 27 from 1939-1945. In
contrast, sub-Areas 2A, 2B, 3A, and 10B do not contain any buildings constructed
before 1919.

Residential uses are often located in close visual proximity to non-residential
uses, including industrial buildings. Although residential areas are clearly
identifiable, separation of uses is much weaker than in typical civilian
developments.

Setbacks for industrial and administrative buildings largely appear to be random,
while many buildings are not oriented toward the street, all of which contributes
to the ad hoc, unplanned character of the District.

. Differences between uses are often highlighted by landscaping. For instance,
industrial areas have limited landscaping while residential areas are characterized

- by mature trees and grass.

. Outside of the Historic Core, industrial buildings are often widely spaced with

paved areas between the structures.

Structures along the waterfront are often strongly oriented toward the water,
underscoring their Shipyard function, with a strong visual present from the
mainland.

. In Reuse Areas 3B and 4, major building clusters and siting patterns form a

streetwall that is essential to the establishment of historic character.

The Historic District boundaries or edges are not strongly defined, and the casual
visitor may not be conscious of entering an historic environment.
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A comprehensive description of the characteristics and development patterns that define
the “setting” is an important part of the Design Guidelines for the Historic District for use
by property owners, architects, landscape architects and City staff (Appendix B.4).

2:53(C) Individual Resource Signiﬁcance

In addition to 1dent1fy1ng dBistrict characteristics, the City has dlstlngulshed among the
contributing resources in the Historic Project GuidelinesMare Island-Ordinance based on
their individual hlstorlc 51gn1ﬁcance Contrlbutln,q resources are categorlzed as one of

the following: Wh

City Landmarks (Highly Significant) — this group consists of structures,-o¢ buildings,
or sites which have been determined by the City to be of outstanding historical or
architectural significance. This group includes all 42 extant structures within the four
National Historic Landmark groupings. If, in the future, additional City Landmarks were
designated within the Historic District, they would be included in this group.

Notable Resources (Individually Significant) — this group consists of structures,

buildings or sites identified as contributing resources in the National Register
Registration Form which are not listed as City Landmarks, but which are of noteworthy

hlstoncal or arch1tectural 51gn1ﬁcance All-efthe-structures-within-this-group-are-noted-as

Component Resources (Not Individually Significant) — this group consists of

structures, buildings or sites identified as contributing resources in the Registration Form |
which are not listed as City Landmarks and lack individual historical, engineering, or
architectural significance, do not individually add to the District’s sense of time and place
and historical development, are repetitive property types or small secondary structures, or

" This is consistent with 36 CFR § 67.4 and § 67.5 requirements for certifications of historic significance.
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lack overall integrity due to alteration or deterioration of location, design, setting,

materlals workmanshlp, feehng or association.* Reseurces-in-this-group-may-possess

A more detailed description of the above classifications is provided in the Historic

Project Guidelines (Appendix B.1), and descriptions and photographs of the individual
resources are provided in the Historic Resources Catalogue, (Appendix B.3).

" This is consistent with 36 CFR § 67.4 and § 67.5(a)).(2) definitions of a building that does not contribute to the
historic significance of a district and 36 CFR § 67.5(b¢) (5)’s definition of the types of buildings in a functional
grouping which may be demolished with the proper showing.
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Plate 1: Examples of City Landmarks

Building 00446 (Smithery, 1856) Dry Dock #1 (1891)
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Plate 2: Examples of Notable Resources

Building 0459 (Submarine Repair Base Barracks, 1931) Building 0521 (Administrative Offices, 1941)

Building 0077 (Ordinance Storage, 1870) Building 0483 (Storage, 1940)
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Plate 3: Examples of Component Resources

Building 0376A (Enlisted Quarters, 1941)

Building 0671 (Electrical substation, 1942)
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1 Reuse Areas 11, 12 and 13 are located within the Historic District and Specific Plan Area, but are not subject to
City of Vallejo land use regulation and will not be developed by the Master developer. References to the Historic
District in this Section are to only those portions of the District subject to local City of Vallejo regulation.
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ERAL ERA2 ERA3 ERAA4 ERA-S

AREA | 18541865 | 18661897 | 18981918 | 19191938 | 19391945 | TOTFAL
HA 1 1
ZA 1 8 9
2B 3 1 4
3A 6 9 15
3B 6 1 37 9 H 64
4 2 6 32 19 27 86
3 1 9 6 - 38 34
6 2 H 27 38 81
8 6 7 5 6 24
9 2 8 8 18
10A 8 3 18 29
16B 2 2

FOTAL 9 15 109 88 166 387

16 Pages 8-56 through 8-60 of the National Register of Historic Places Registration Form for Mare Island Historic

District, Vallejo, California, January, 1996.

7" One building in area 3B (buildings 0125) and 4 landscape features (1 in sub area 4, 1 in 8, and 2 in sub area 9) do

not have construction dates.
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5

ERA1 | ERA2 | ERA3 | ERA4 | ERAS | NONE | TOTAL

5
NFA NA NA NA NA NAA NA
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(D) Major Property Types

The Historic District contains a large number of resources that have been categorized by
general property types. A list of the major property types is provided below. Detailed
descriptions and designations are provided in Appendix B.1.

A — Single-Family Residential

B- Residential Garage / Shed
C — Duplex And Multi-Family Residential
D — Barracks

E — Small Industrial Garage/ Shed/ Pumphouse /Electrical
Facility '

F — Bomb Shelter

G — Latrine
H — Other Infrastructure

1 — Landscape
J — Masonry Industrial/ Ordnance Storage/Warehouse
K -- Wooden Industrial/ Ordnance Storage /Warehouse
L — Metal-Clad Industrial/ Ordnance Storage /Warehouse
M — Masonry Industrial Shops

N — Wooden Industrial Shops

O — Metal-Clad Industrial Shops

P — Masonry Administrative, Institutional Or Commercial

Q — Wooden Administrative, Institutional Or Commercial

R — Metal-Clad Administrative, Institutional Or Commercial

S- Berths/ Quays/ Causeways

(E) Period of Significance and Era

The Historic District includes buildings, sites and structures from five Eras: 1854-1865
(Founding of the Shipyard through Civil War), 1866-1897 (Civil War to the Spanish

American War), 1898-1918 (Spanish-American War through World War I), 1919-1938

(the Interwar Years), and 1939-1945 (World War II). The defined period of significance

for the National Register listing covers 91 years, from 1854-1945. More detailed
information is provided in Appendix B.1.

(F) Area Resources and Character Defining Features

The contributing resources, including Landmarks are unevenly distributed throughout the
Historic_: District and Reuse Areas. Reuse Areas 3B. 4 and 5. all of which access the
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Waterfront contain the heaviest concentration of resources. Landmark structures are
primarily located within Reuse Area 4, in the area referred to as the “Historic Core,”
which includes the dramatic row of Officers’ Quarters along Walnut Avenue. The Reuse
Areas with the heaviest concentration of contributing resources are primarily intended for

retail/commercial and industrial use, which take advantage of the character of the Navy’s

use along the Waterfront.

To facilitate development review, the Historic Project Guidelines (Appendix B.1)
provides a description of the contributing resources by Reuse Areas.

2:62.5.2 DEVELOPMENT-REVIEWDevelopment Review CRITERIAProcess

During the reuse planning and project review process for Mare Island, the City will be
faced with countless decisions about preservation, reuse, new construction and
demolition within the Historic District. As described above, the City has made an
overarching policy decision to manage reuse and development activities that may
adversely affect the eligibility of the Historic District for the National Register of Historic
Places or the State Register of Historical Resources. The development review criteria
must therefore be sufficient to protect the Historic District from potentially significant
impacts, especially in connection with proposals for new construction and demolition.'®

In addition, City policy requires that all reuse proposals within the Historic District

comply with the Secretary’s Standards, which are defined in Appendix B.1, to the extent
applicable. As a result, all buildings to be retained on site and reused, all new

construction and all relocations must meet the Secretary’s Standards,:. Reuse-propesals

)
- a noad
vaye

The Specific Plan, therefore, is required to establish development review criteria for

reuse of the Historic District, as defined in the Historic Project Guidelines, Appendix !

B.1. in accordance with the following:

Ensure that retained resources are not impacted by reuse, by requiring that they be
treated in a manner that is consistent with the Secretary’s Standards.

Ensure that new construction is compatible with the historic nature of the Historic
District, by requiring that new construction be consistent with the Secretary’s

'® Throughout the planning process, the City has defined the primary historic resource as the Historic District. The
policy decision that no significant adverse impacts should be permitted to the District as a whole mirrors the CEQA
standard for determining whether significant adverse impacts have occurred for the purpose of environmental
review. Decisions which meet the City’s development review criteria should therefore not have a significant
adverse impact on the District, as the primary historic resource under consideration.
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Standards and Urban Design Guidelines aimed at preserving the-the Historic
District’s feeling, setting, and association. :

Ensure that any relocation of resources be accomplished in a manner that is
consistent with the Secretary's Standards (36 CFR part 68) and applicable
guidelines or technical advisories, where appropriate;

Ensure that those physical characteristics which convey the historical significance
of the District and justify its eligibility for inclusion in the National and California
Registers are not lost through demolition or new construction.

The Historic Project Guidelines in Appendix B.1 also provides the following:

Geographic scope of review and establishment of Project Sites and property lines
within the Historic District;

Standards for contributing resources that will be retained including treatments for
Preservation, Rehabilitation, Restoration and Reconstruction;

Standards for contributing resources that will relocated:

Standards for new construction within the Historic District;

Criteria and requirements for contributing resources proposed for demolition: and

Maintenance requirements for contributing resources.

1% See, e.g., John Obed Curtis, Moving Historic Buildings.
% Section 16.38.039 of the Vallejo Municipal Code.
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2.6 27—DESIGN GUIDELINES FOR THE HISTORIC DISTRICT

Design Guidelines that describe and illustrate how to apply the Secretary of the Interior’s
Standards to the particularly complex nature of the Mare Island Historic District are an
very-important ap-frent-tool for property owners and developers as well as for the City.
Such design guidelines can provide clarity and predictability in the review and permitting
process by informing the design of projects to be consistent with the Secretary of the
Interior’s Standards as well as with the goals and policies of the Specific Plan. The
De51gn Guldehnes that have been developed as part of the Spemﬁc Plan (Appendix B.4)

Description of the design character of the Historic District, 1nclud1ng architectural
styles and key features;

Description of individual “character area” and “sub-areas” that define the existing

setting of the Historic District;

Hlustrative guidelines for established treatments of contributing resources,
including preservation, restoration, reconstruction, and rehabilitation as well as
for interim maintenance procedures; and

Ilustrative Gguidelines, including design principles, -for new construction

responsive to Mm
deseﬂptieﬂ-eilsemﬂg—aeeefdmg—te-a—set—etllndlv1dual “character areas:”_and “sub--

areas.’

2! The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties, With Guidelines for
Preserving, Rehabilitating Restoring & Reconstructing Historic Buildings, page 62.
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The Design Guidelines will be used by City staff, the AHIL CArehitectural-Heritage-and
Landmarks-Commissien and other City boards and commissionsageneies to evaluate the
appropriateness of work proposed within the Historic District. The

*2 Standards for evaluating impacts to Area Resources are discussed in Section 5.4.2, while minimizing or avoiding
impacts to individual Historic Resources are discussed in 5.4.3.
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% New construction must comply with the Secretary’s Standards, as described in Section 5.3.2. The demolition
criteria in this Section address new construction primarily in the context of avoiding impacts to the Historic District
which might otherwise be caused by demolition.

* Development proposals in Area 10B will not be subject to these Historie-GuidelinesHistoric Project Guidelines
while it is owned by the federal government.
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2.7 ___2:9—INTERIM MAINTENANCE OF RESOURCES

Under the City Preservation Ordinance, owners of any Landmarks and Contributing
Resource within the District are required to “keep in good repair all exterior portions of
such resource, all interior portions of City landmarks, and all interior portions thereof
whose maintenance is necessary to prevent deterioration and decay of any exterior
architectural feature.” Nothing in the Mare Island Amendment “shall be construed to
prevent ordinary maintenance or repair of any exterior architectural feature of a
contributing resource not involving a change in design, material or external appearance
thereof.” Mare Island Amendment, Sections 16.38.048. and .049 of the Municipal Code.

Buildings in active use are generally maintained by their owners or occupants. However,
vacant historic buildings often suffer from lack of appropriate maintenance and weather-
proofing, especially if a reuse decision has not yet been made. All historic structures

within the Mare Island Historic District, including vacant buildings, shall be maintained

in accordance with standards referenced in the Historic GuidelinesHistoric Project ‘
Guidelines (Appendix B.1) and described in detail in the Design Guidelines for the

Historic District (Appendix B.4).

28 230—ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES 1

As described in Section 2.1, above, cultural resources also include archaeological
resources. Potential archaeological resources on Mare Island were surveyed as early as
1907,% and as recently as 2000.%® This continued survey work resulted in the designation
of 27 historic archaeological features, including remnants of early industrial technology
and shipbuilding, seawalls, ship berths, and building foundations within the Mare Island -
Historic District, and in the identification of areas of prehistoric archeological sensitivity.

Given the potential number of archaeological resources on Mare Island, a Revised
Predictive Archaeological Model and Archaeological Treatment Plan is included as part

of the Specific Plan (Appendix B.2). Together, they summarize why each of 27 |
archaeological features is significant and describe appropriate treatment measures (TMs)
based on potential impacts.

2.8.1 2:30:3——Archaeological Resources Protection Policy

Archaeological resources in the Plan Area are to be protected while allowing for
construction and development activity to proceed in a timely manner. As part of the

% Nelson, Archaeological Site Survey Record for CA-SOL-232.
% Dougherty (PAR), Monitoring of Historical Archaeological Sites for the Freshwater Fire Line Project.
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implementation of this policy, the predictive archaeological model was updated and a
treatment plan was prepared for inclusion in the Specific Plan.

2.8.2 2:10.2——Summary of Archaeological Resources

Figure 2-3 (Archaeological Resources) shows all 27 archaeological features and
identifies potential areas of high and medium prehistoric archaeological sensitivity.
These archaeological resources and recommended treatments are described in detail in
Appendix B.2. :
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Figure 2-3: Archaeological Resources
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No prehistoric archaeological resources retaining integrity have been found, to date, on
Mare Island. However, the potential for such finds still exists in a large area that is
relatively undisturbed by modern development and in the four concentrated areas where
early documentation described potentially significant findings.

2:72.9 PLANNING AND REVIEW

The Specific Plan, together with the Historie-GuidelinesHistoric Project Guidelines
(Appendix B.1), Revised Predictive Archaeological Model and Archaeological
Treatment Plan (Appendix B.2), the Historic Resources Catalogue (Appendix B.3), and
the Design Guidelines for the Mare Island Historic District (Appendix B.4) implement
the planning and review process as specified in Chapter 16.38 of the Vallejo Municipal

............ > Vol d 1n-data = po N 4 a
v - > - Thimeny Iy
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3.0

LAND USE

3.1

3.1.1

The Land Use Section of the Specific Plan begins with a focus on land use policies and
practices followed by a summary description of Land Use Categories, the Overall Land
Use Plan for Mare Island, and the Plan for Parks and Open Space. The Land Use Section
concludes with a more detailed description of the land uses and projected development
program for each of the areas that make up the Specific Plan Area, including the 13
Reuse Areas.

It is the intent of the Specific Plan to allow reasonable flexibility in land use designations,
development program allocations and boundaries for the 13 Reuse Areas that were
defined during the reuse planning process (Figure 1-3). This flexibility is needed for a
number of reasons:

to respond to future changes in market conditions,

to ensure that the City is able to pursue superior reuse and development
opportunities in accordance with the economic development goals of the Specific
Plan, and

to accommodate public and quasi-public uses.
LAND USE POLICIES AND PRACTICES

As envisioned in the Reuse Plan, the land use policies for Mare Island are focused on
development that, once again, will make it a major employment center for the City and
region. These policies also provide for the mix and range of land uses necessary to create

. adynamic district that will be an integrated part of the City. Criteria are provided to

guide the reasonable level of flexibility that is required for successful implementation of
the identified development program. The continued ability to attract high quality
employers as the business environment of the City and region changes over the years is
recognized as being a key aspect of the successful economic revitalization of Mare
Island.

Land Use Policies

i A balance of land uses is encouraged, including industrial, office, retail commercial,
residential, recreational, cultural, educational, open space and habitat conservation, in
order to make Mare Island a community where adequate services and resources are
readily available to its residents, workers and visitors.

it The City of Vallejo intends Mare Island to be a financially sustainable community
that generates revenues sufficient to provide basic municipal services and
infrastructure improvements.

MARE ISLAND SPECIFIC PLAN 2005 : PAGE 63

we-101161




iii There will be a strong component of employment producing land uses on Mare Island
to satisfy two needs: (1) to replace the jobs that were lost with the closure of the
Shipyard; and (2) to ensure a good jobs/housing balance on Mare Island and within
the City of Vallejo. The number of jobs and the schedule for the production of these
jobs, as established in the Reuse Plan, will be a function of the phasing of new
development. In order to maximize creation of jobs on Mare Island, more intensive
land uses producing higher employment densities are encouraged and less
intensively-developed uses, such as those requiring large laydown or outdoor storage
areas, are discouraged except in heavy industrial areas.

iv. Reuse of Mare Island as a community where people can live and work will be
encouraged by allowing home occupations and live/work and work/live uses in’
identified Reuse Areas.

v Uses that attract and support tourism, including tourism related to the natural and
contributing historic resources, will be encouraged.

vi. Flexibility in the type and density of land uses within Reuse Areas, in the reasonable
transfer of densities and similar land uses between Reuse Areas, and in the boundaries
of Reuse Areas shall be permitted without amendment of the Specific Plan if the
Development Services Director makes such determination in accordance with this
Specific Plan. Implementation criteria for evaluating transfers of land use program
square footages between Reuse Areas are provided in the Implementation section of
the Plan (see 8.3.1).

vii Each Reuse Area shall have a list of allowed land uses. In the event a use is proposed
that is not on this list, the Development Services Director will determine if such use is
substantially (1) consistent with the intent of this Plan and (2) compatible with the
other uses within the area. If this determination can be made, then the use is allowed.

3.2 LAND USE CATEGORIES

The following categories of land uses are to be found W1th1n the Specific Plan Area, as
illustrated in Figure 3 1: Land Use.
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Figure 3-1: Land Use
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3.2.1

322

3.23

3.24

Federal Transfer

As part of the base closure process, federal agencies were given the opportunity to
request that portions of Mare Island be transferred for federal activities. The requests
from four agencies were accepted by the Navy, and the resulting federal transfer
properties were conveyed to the U.S. Army Reserve, the U.S. Forest Service, the U.S.
Fish and Wildlife Service and the U.S. Coast Guard. Federal transfer properties are
exempt from local land use authority and are not subject to the provisions of the
Specific Plan.

Dredge Ponds

The former-inactive dredge ponds are required by the Three Party Dredge Pond
Agreement to be designated for uses compatible with managed wetlands. open space or
conservation. These uses may also include pond maintenance, interpretative, and
scientific/educational facilities as well as access roadways and trails, as consistent with
the use restrictions under the Agreement. The former-dredge pondéi areas
compriseare approximately one-third of the large, undeveloped western half of the
Island. At one timepresent, there wereare approximately thirteen-tenten ponds, all of

Wthh are presently 1nact1ve The-dredge-pond-uses-include pond-maintenance;

Conservation Easement

Certain undeveloped areas of Mare Island have been determined by the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service to have significant habitat value. These areas are permanently
protected from any level of development. The compatibility of future open space,
managed wetlands and conservation uses for the fermerinactive dredge ponds, as set
forth in Section 3.2.2, above, with adjacent conservation easements must behas-been
considered in the designation of those uses. -and-sSuch compatibility is to be ensured
by the active participation of the H-S-Eish-and-Wildlife-ServieeState Lands
Commission in future use approvals for the-ef formes- inactive dredge pond
areasetivities.

Open Space

This category encompasses open space uses that are both public and private, but that
are lawfully used by the public. Open space includes uses, as approved appropriate by
the Planning Manager, that are dedicated to preserving and supporting the permanent
open space areas of Mare Island, including the fermer-inactive dredge ponds and
surrounding areas. Urban uses are limited to those areas that are compatible with and
complementary to the permanent open space or that are necessary to support, service
and maintain these areas.
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3.2.5

3.2.6

3.2.7

Developed Recreation

This category encompasses both public and privately operated recreational uses. These
uses provide both active and passive recreation activities for residents, workers, and
visitors of Mare Island, as well as for the greater Vallejo community. They include but
are not limited to the following categories, as confirmed and approved by the City:

* - Active Sports: ballfields; tennis courts; swimming pools; gymnasiums; golf courses
and stables

Parks: picnic areas; playgrounds; hiking trails; grass areas; and gardens

Educational/Civic

This category encompasses uses that are public or quasi-public and that provide non-
commercial services for the welfare of the Mare Island community and its visitors, as
well as the greater Vallejo community. Permitted uses include but are not limited to
the following.

Government Services: administrative offices; public safety and maintenance
facilities

Utilities: administrative offices; substations and other structures; ;-trade-sehools;
and-maintenance facilities

Educational facilities: preschools; public and private schools; day care centers;
trade schools; colleges; and universities

Cultural facilities: community centers; libraries; museums; art galleries and
theaters

Residential

This category includes a variety of residential unit types and densities to meet a broad
spectrum of housing needs. The Specific Plan provides for a range of housing types
from detached single family homes to multi-family housing. The Land Use Plan
identifies three residential densities according to the square feet of site area per
dwelling unit, in conformance with City standards. Group housing is not identified
according to density but, rather, by use. Live/Work Residential is located in various
areas and is not identified according to density.

(A) Residential High Density
Less than 2,500 square feet of land area/dwelling unit (more than 17.4 du/ac) -

May include apartments, condominiums, townhomes, and similar housing
types
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(B) Residential Medium Density

Between 2,500-5,000 square feet of land area/dwelling unit (between 8.7
du/ac and 17.4 dv/ac)

May include townhomes, cluster-homes, zero lot line, srhall lot detached
homes, and similar housing types

(C) Residential Low Density

More than 5,000 square feet of land area/dwelling unit (less than 8.7 du/ac);
may include duplexes, new single family detached homes, reuse of existing
single family homes, and similar housing types

D) Group.

Dormitory-type housing (student housing units) related to educational uses on
Mare Island, such as Touro University. Defining characteristics include but
are not necessary limited to shared bedrooms, common toilet and bathing
facilities and cafeteria type dining facilities which may be located in separate
buildings.

(E) Live/Work and Work/Live

BLive/work and work/live combine residential and job activities in the same
space. Examples include artist studios, one and two person professional offices
and home occupations. These uses encourage mixed-use, decrease commuting,
and take advantage of opportunities for adaptive reuse of Mare Island’s historic
buildings or for new infill construction. Provisions for live/work and work/live are
as follows:

Live/work is a residential, single-tenant space that is flexible for work. The
commercial use may be any use allowed in the mixed use category. Live/work
units are counted as part of Mare Island’s total 1,400 residential unit
development program. Home occupations or businesses in single use
residential areas may be allowed, as determined by the City of Vallejo Zoning
Ordinance.

Work/live is primarily a commercially/industrially-oriented, single tenant
space combining working and living uses. A maximum of 30% of the space
may be for residential use. The commercial use may be any part of the non-
residential mixed use development program for each area. The actual
commercial use determination and percent of space provided for residential
purposes shall be made by application to the Development Services Director.

Work/live is excluded from the 1400 residential unit development program if
the space can be demonstrated to be primarily employment-oriented, to
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3.2.8

provide workspace for non-resident employees and to allocate a maximum of
30% of the space for residential purposes, as discussed above.

Live/work and work/live are allowed in areas designated for mixed use. They
may occupy existing buildings or new construction.

Non-resident employees are allowed for both live/work and work/live,

- Mixed Use

This category includes office/R&D, light industrial, retail commercial, and on-site
warehousing associated with other uses on the same or proximate site. Although its
purpose is to provide primarily for employment uses, the mixed use category also
allows residential uses.

(A) Office/R&D

Office/R&D includes business, professional and administrative uses, laboratories,
technology, light assembly and an associated range of support functions. Permitted
uses include, but are not limited to the following:

Industrial or Scientific Services: biotechnology and medical research, production
and analysis; electronic and computer research, production and analysis; software
development and analysis; and product and prototype testing and analysis -

Business Services: including but not limited to establishments that provide
financial, real estate, legal, marketing management, architectural and engineering
design, and other comparable professional services and support services.

Medical Services: labs and group medical offices

Research/Development: office; administration and marketing; laboratories;
biotechnology; electronics; and software development

Media Production: offices and facilities for television, motion picture,
digital/multi-media, print media, telecommunications and other comparable type
functions

Ancillary: warehouse activities related to primary office/R&D uses.

(B) Light Industrial

Light industrial uses are relatively low intensity in character and are housed primarily
in enclosed buildings with limited, screened outdoor areas if compatible with the
surrounding conditions. Permitted uses include, but are not limited to, the following:

MARE ISLAND SPECIFIC PLAN 2005 PAGE 69

we-101161




Light Manufacturing or Assembly: for research activities described above for
office/R&D

Research/Development: corporate campuses and software development

Light Manufacturing/Processing: computer components; small industrial products
and bottling

Media Production: special effects; television production studios and printing

Warehouse/Distribution: small industrial products; small consumer goods; wine
storage and distribution

Ancillary: office and warehouse activities
(C) Retail Commercial

This use category may include neighborhood serving businesses for both residents and
workers in mixed_-use areas. Household serving retail commercial, such as grocery
and hardware stores, together with office serving businesses such as banks and
financial services, office supply, copy centers, and cafes may comprise the commercial
retail component for mixed use areas and are identified in the Specific Plan
Development Program (Table 3-2) for Reuse Areas 1A, 2A, 3A, 3B, 4 and 5. A small
retail commercial component may be desirable for Reuse Area 9 (University Area) and
could be included, if feasible, although it is not shown in the Development Program.

Retail commercial uses in single use areas, or centers, may include visitor serving
businesses, such as movie theatres and other types of entertainment, restaurants,
commercial goods and services, gift stores and restaurants. Single use retail
commercial centers are identified in the Land Use Plan for Reuse Areas 2A and 4. (see
Figure 3-1: Land Use), above. ‘

Permitted retail commercial uses inclﬁde, but are not limited to, the following:

Retail: stores and shops that provide goods and services to the general public as
well as to residents and workers

Personal Services: establishments that provide instructional, medical,
maintenance and improvement services :

Business Services: smaller establishments that provide financial, real estate, legal -
and support services

Eating Establishments: restaurants and bars; fast food outlets; delicatessens and
snack bars
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3.2.9

Entertainment: theaters; amusement centers; and indoor and outdoor sports
facilities

While beneficial to the functions of a retail commercial district, certain businesses also
create impacts that necessitate a major conditional use permit in any Reuse Area.
These uses include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:

Automotive services: service stations with ancillary light or heavy auto repair
Lodging: hotels, motels, and bed and breakfast inns
Theaters: cinemas and live performance space

()] Warehouse

This category is characterized by uses that generate significant amounts of truck and/or
rail traffic required for the distribution of pre-manufactured goods. On Mare Island,
warehousing is generally expected to make use of existing structures, many of which
have minimal window openings, and may provide a support function for nearby
mixed-use or industrial activities. Permitted uses include, but are not limited to, the
following: '

Warehouse/Distribution: small industrial products; small consumer goods; wine
storage and distribution

Storage and Distribution: raw and finished goods
Industrial

This category includes uses that potentially may generate more noise, hazards and
truck traffic than do the light industrial uses. In addition to truck transport, Mare
Island’s industrial uses may also utilize rail to transport materials, and ships to
transport large manufactured goods. Some industrial uses may require exterior lay-
down areas. Permitted uses include, but are not limited to the following, as included in
the city Zoning Ordinance, Section 16.06:

i Heavy Industry: such as manufacturing/processing and :
recycling/processing; recycling to be limited to current users in Reuse
Area 1B in their existing locations

it Warehouse/Distribution: includes uses that generate more noise,
hazards and traffic than the light industrial uses; also may require exterior
lay-down areas ‘

iii Light Industrial: uses as described above in the mixed use category
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v

Construction Services: such as incidental storage on lots other than
construction sites as well as the retail or wholesale sale, from the premises,
of materials used in the construction of buildings or other structures;
excludes retail sales of paint, fixtures and hardware or of automotive and
heavy equipment use types; typical uses include building materials stores,
tool and equipment rental or sales, or building contractor work space.

Equipment Service: refers to establishments or places of business
primarily engaged primarily in repair or maintenance of heavy equipment,
as well as some automotive related services, including cleaning, and
repairs, and limited sales/rentals.

3.2.10 Ancillary Uses

The following ancillary uses may be approved through the Unit Plan process without a
Specific Plan amendment.

i

ii

Within areas designated for industrial or mixed use (see Figure 3-1 and
Table 3-2), the Development Services Director may approve limited
residential activities that involve reuse of existing buildings and live-work
type uses. Any buildings proposed for residential use must meet standards
of the City of Vallejo Building Department and the Department of Toxic
Substances Control.

Within areas designated for industrial use, the Development Services
Director may approve limited mixed use activities (light industrial,
office/R&D and retail commercial uses) that are ancillary to the primary
functions of the heavy industrial/warehouse use taking place within the
given area.

3.2.11 Uses Requiring Major Conditional Use Permits

Consistent with the City of Vallejo Municipal Code, certain land uses require additional
review to ensure that operating characteristics do not impact adjacent uses.

Major conditional use permits will be required for the following uses:

i

Religious establishments such as churches, synagogues, and temples
(except St. Peters Chapel) :

i Counseling
Hi Offt-site alcohol sales
iv On-site alcohol sales
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v Automotive services, including service stations as well as service stations
providing ancillary, light or heavy auto repair and on-site storage and/or

pay parking
vi Hotels, motels, bed and breakfast inns and theatres
3.2.12 Uses Requiring Site Development Permit
All uses within the Resource Conservation (RC) areas, including the restricted uses
described for the inactive dredge pond areas, as provided in Section 3.2.2s.
3.3 LAND USE PLAN OVERVIEW
The primary land use goal in promoting the development of Mare Island as a civilian
community is to bring new economic activity, civic uses, housing, and recreational
activities to the City of Vallejo. The Development Program for the Specific Plan
identifies the type and square footage of development that is feasible for Mare Island and
that will promote the goals established for reuse, including the creation of a balanced
community where people can work, live, shop, and play. It outlines a critical mass of
new development that can:
i create new employment opportunities;
ii be supported within the identified capacities of existing and planned utility
and transportation infrastructure;
iii meet Specific Plan policies and guidelines for the preservation and reuse
of historic buildings and surroundings; and
iv allow for recreational open space and the protection of environmentally
sensitive lands.
A summary of the Mare Island Development Program is provided in Table-3 1.
Table 3-1:  Summary Development Program
Mixed-Use (Non-Residential):........c.ccecvveeeviriiinnnccnnircnninncncnnnene 5;7514,000-6.265.772 sf
(Office/R&D, light industrial, retail, warehousing)
INAUSEIIAL: ...t et 2;050,000-1,537.126 sf
(Heavy 1ndustr1al—w&rehe&smg)
EQUcation/CiviC: .....ooveveeeeieeeieeieeeieieeceeeeereeerssseeseseessseessseessseesanes 818,000-1,254,698 st*
Total Non-Residential: .........ccccovveueennennee eeeeterereeteaaeennsesneneraeantans 9.047:000-9,057,596 sf
Total RESIAENHIAL: .......cevereereeercecreeicereseeeseeesssessesssssssssssessssssssssassssessenenness 1,400 UNItS
*Includes federal agencies)
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3.3.1

3.3.2

333

A summary description of the distribution of these major land use designations among
the 13 Reuse Areas is provided as follows:

Mixed-Use Office/Research & Development

Reuse Area 1A (North Island Industrial Park) is a proposed employment area north of
the Mare Island Causeway and east of Azuar Drive that is identified for a development
program of 1.2 million square feet of light industrial, uses-with-some-associated

commercial, and-office R&D and warehouse uses:

Industrial

Reuse Area 1B (Northwest Industrial Area) is proposed for warehousing, light and
heavy industrial.

Reuse Area 5 (Waterfront Industrial Park) and Reuse Area 10A (South Island
Business Park), will provide locations for major heavy and light industrial development
that utilizes the existing buildings and waterfront access while also allowing for new
infill buildings of compatible size and function. Reuse Area 10B (Army Reserve), with
its existing port facilities and warehouses, is a location for continued Army Reserve
activities.

Mixed-Use Employment

South of Mare Island Causeway is the major mixed-use employment center of Mare
Island, consisting of office, retail/service, R&D, and light industrial uses in existing and
infill buildings sited along the existing street grid.

Reuse Area 2A (Town Center) incorporates a number of distinctive historic buildings
along Walnut Avenue and additional new infill development along Walnut Avenue and
Azuar Drive. A 50,000 square foot commercial center provides retail services at the
intersection of Railroad Avenue and G Street. :

Reuse Area 2B (West Business Park) provides new employment uses in an area
overlooking the wetlands and landscaped open space that is part of the Reuse Area.

Reuse Area 3A (Waterfront Business Campus) establishes the opportunity for a major
business campus in a visible location with convenient access to Mare Island’s Causeway
entrance. This area would accommodate a major user or users in primarily new,
waterfront-oriented buildings. :

Reuse Area 3B (Waterfront Mixed Use) provides a wide range of employment uses in
both existing and new buildings, again sited along existing roadways.
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3.3.4 Mixed-Use Civic, Retail and Office Commercial

Reuse Area 4 (Historic Core) is proposed for a concentration of civic, retail and office
commercial, light industrial and other job-related uses that reuse some of Mare Island’s
most distinctive historic structures. The Historic Core is also intended to provide a major
public open space along the waterfront, providing for possibilities such as celebrations
and festivals, historic interpretation of ships and submarines, museums, and tourist
oriented retail. The historic industrial and warehouse buildings will serve as a backdrop

~ for the Officer’s Row mansions, which are a short walk away. -

3.3.5 Educational/Civic

Reuse Area 9 (University Area) will be maintained primarily for educational and civic
uses, and is currently being used by Touro University, a private, co-educational
independent institution of higher and professional education to operate a College of
Osteopathic medicine and a College of Health Sciences, together with a dining facility,
library, student service center, recreational facilities, administrative offices and some-
student housing. Reuse Area 9 also is identified for some office and R&D uses that are
not part of Touro University.

3.3.6 Residential

The Land Use Plan concentrates the largest number of homes in Reuse Area 6 (North
Residential Village) and Reuse Area 8 (South Residential Village) where
neighborhoods are proposed that will have higher density centers and a general
orientation toward open space and the views to the west. Housing opportunities will
include a variety of densities and housing types. High density housing is located in
conjunction with the Town Center in Reuse Area 2A and as part of new construction and
adaptive reuse of existing buildings in Reuse Areas 6 and 8.

New residential construction may include a number of product types, ranging from
apartments to single family homes. Architectural prototypes are drawn from existing
architectural styles on Mare Island. Consistent with the goals and objectives of the Reuse
Plan and the 1999 Mare Island Specific Plan, the total residential development program
totals 1,400 units. Live-work and work-live units may be provided through adaptive
reuse of existing buildings in Areas 3B and 4 (Waterfront Mixed Use and Historic
Core). :

3.3.7 Open Space

In addition to public parks that are to be provided as part of the residential area
development, there are several large, recreational open space areas planned for specific
Reuse Areas. Reuse Area 7 (Community Park) provides for larger scale recreational
activities shared by the two new residential neighborhoods. Reuse Area 11 (Golf
Course) provides an eighteen-hole golf course and club-house, as well as other support
facilities. Reuse Area 12 (Regional Park) will serve the City and surrounding areas as

MARE ISLAND SPECIFIC PLAN 2005 PAGE 75
we-101161 .




well as local residents. Reuse Area 13 (Open Space/Recreation) allows for active open
space recreational uses.

This summary of Land Use by Reuse Area is illustrated in Figure 3-1, above.

3.3.8 Island Destinations

As illustrated in Figure 3-2: Island Destinations, a number of special facilities and
activities are planned to serve future employees, residents and visitors. These include
schools, childcare facilities, recreational areas, and shopping and cultural centers. The
presence of such destinations will not only serve the Mare Island community and
encoutage residents and employees to remain on Mare Island for entertainment and
education, but also may serve to attract visitors.
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Figure 3-2: Island Destinations
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3.4

PARKS AND OPEN SPACE

The bodies of water that surround Mare Island constitute the single most important factor
in considering its land use character, including shipbuilding and other waterfront
activities. Approximately 78% (3,787 acres) of the Specific Plan Area is either wetlands
or fermer-inactive dredge pond_areas, which are restricted to open space. conservation
and managed wetlands uses, as described earlier in Section 3.2.2s. In addition to the
smaller, non-dedicated parks and open space that are part of the recognized development
area, approximately 9% (463 acres) of the overall Specific Plan Area has been designated
for moderate to large parks and recreational areas.

Parks and Open Space for Mare Island (Figure 3-3) have been planned to support the
development program for each Reuse Area in order to assure an overall framework that
will organize the structure of the community and provide a comprehensive system of
recreational amenities for residential and work life. This Plan exceeds the City of Vallejo
General Plan standards for park dedication, as identified in the subsequent discussions of
parks and open space. Proposed types of urban open space include Community Parks,
Neighborhood Parks, Pocket Parks, and the Waterfront Promenade and Plaza along the
Mare Island Strait.

The unique characteristics of Mare Island require some flexibility in City standards,
including for parks and open space, in order to accommodate development within the
historic environment. In some areas, small parks that “fit” within an existing complex of
buildings may provide valuable benefits that would not otherwise be feasible without
undesirable demolitions. Also, bicycle and pedestrian use is an existing aspect of life of
Mare Island and is planned as a major aspect of the proposed Parks and Open Space
framework. Bicycle and pedestrian circulation is described in the Transportation Element
of the Plan (Section 5.6).
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Figure 3-3: Parks and Open Space
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3.4.1 Neighborhood Parks

Neighborhood parks in Vallejo typically range between four to seven acres and are
designed primarily to provide facilities for preschool and elementary school-age children.
At Mare Island, neighborhood parks may be smaller than four acres where existing
conditions, including historic resources, may make a larger park infeasible. In addition to
providing play space for children, they also are proposed as part of the preservation of
historic sites, as passive recreation areas and gathering places for all ages, and for
providing waterfront access. The City’s standard requires 4.25 acres of neighborhood
park space per 1,000 population. This standard would require 19.5 acres based on
development population projections for Mare Island. The Spec1ﬁc Plan provides
approximately 28 acres of neighborhood parks.

Where appropriate, neighborhood parks should be bordered by streets to increase
visibility and access. In addition, housing on surrounding streets should front park uses.

(A) Alden Park

This five-acre park is located in the Historic Core (Reuse Area 4). Currently, it is
improved with a formal landscaped ceremonial area, a bandstand and flagpole and an
informal area with landscaped walking paths. Additional improvements could include
demolition of a number of the existing bomb shelters and the addition of pedestrian
linkages to the Historic core plaza. Design and maintenance of this historic
neighborhood park is discussed in both the Urban Design Section (4.3 and 4.3.3) and in
the Historie-GuidelinesHistoric Project Guidelines (Appendix B.1).

(B) Relocated Morton Field

The recreational activities currently accommodated at Morton Field are proposed to be
relocated to an appropriate area. The relocated Morton Field will provide lighted play
fields within an approximately six-acre neighborhood park that will serve as a community
recreation facility. The primary uses of this park will include playing fields for team
sports and community events._The Morton Field archway is to be retained in place or
relocated in any future development plan, to the extent possible.

(C) Parade Grounds

The Marine Parade Grounds is a four-acre historic park adjacent to both the historic
Marine Barracks in the South Residential Village (Reuse Area 8) -and the bay lands on
the west side of Mare Island. This open space will provide a central focus for the
surrounding South Residential Village and allow flat playing fields for team sports and
community events. Design and maintenance of this historic neighborhood park is
discussed in both the Urban Design Section (4.3 and 4.3.3) and in the Histerie
GuidelinesHistoric Project Guidelines (Appendix B.1).
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(D)  Club Drive Park

This five-acre historic park also is located in the South Residential Village (Reuse Area
8). It is proposed to have minimal improvements on a sloping hill with a forested
backdrop, and is designed for passive recreation. Design and maintenance of this historic
neighborhood park is discussed in both the Urban Design Section (4.3 and 4.3.3) and in
the Historie-GuidelinesHistoric Project Guidelines (Appendix B.1).

(E)  Chapel Park

Chapel Park is a three-acre historic park that provides a complementary setting for the
historic St. Peter’s Chapel in the Historic Core (Reuse Area 4) and is an example of a
small, highly prized green space. This park is planned for passive recreational use and
community events. It also offers important pedestrian linkages to the Historic core plaza
and other island destinations. Design and maintenance of this historic neighborhood park -
is discussed in both the Urban Design Section (4.3 and 4.3.3) and in the Histerie
GuidelinesHistoric Project Guidelines (Appendix B.1).

3.4.2 Community Parks

Community parks are envisioned as places for recreational activities ranging from
accessible open space to developed recreation. Open space facilities could include
interpretative signs for historic or scientific information, trails and staging areas, as well
as limited areas for concessions.” Developed recreation facilities include soccer and
baseball playing fields, non-structured recreational areas, picnic areas, gardens and grassy
areas.

Community parks are to be approximately 12 to 15 acres in size each and are designed to
provide recreational activities for all age groups. The City’s standard calls for 5 acres of
community parks per 1,000 population. This standard would require 23 acres, based on
population projections for Mare Island.

The Specific Plan proposes a 26-acre community park in Reuse Area 7, adjacent to and
between the two residential villages and linked to the school and other residential areas
by a pedestrian pathways system. The community park also links to the open space levee
system and the Marine Parade Ground (see below). Uses within the community park are
intended to include playing fields (unlighted), hiking trails, a winter storm-water
detention area and scenic outlooks.

3.4.3 District/Citywide Parks

The district/citywide park category includes parks that promote contact with the natural
environment and which have a unique character or function not found in neighborhood or
community parks. The Reuse Plan for Mare Island calls for district/citywide parks in
excess of required standards. These parks, as will be provided by the Specific Plan, -
include the golf course, a city and regional park, and a wildlife refuge.
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(A) Golf Course -

The Plan provides for improvements to and management of the existing 18-hole course as
aregional destination golf club. The golf course site totals 172 acres.

(B)  Regional Park

The Regional Park in Reuse Area 12 is intended to provide walking, cycling and
equestrian trails, habitat conservation, and other passive recreational uses. It will be
developed and managed as part of the extended open space framework for Mare Island
and encompasses 176 acres.

(C)  City Park

Approximately 32 acres of recreational open space is planned for a portion of Reuse Area
13, which is located on a landfill site and almost completely surrounded by former
inactive dredge ponds and non-tidal open space areas. Access is via an extension of A
Street, which extends through the West Business Park (Reuse Area 2B).

(D) Wildlife Refuge

Conservation easements for wildlife refuge use include 29 acres in Reuse Area 1A, 9
acres in Reuse Area 10, and 11 acres in Reuse Area 12. In addition to dedicated ,
conservation easements there are 2,865 acres of state owned wetlands on Mare Island as
well as 922 acres of fermer- inactive dredge ponds that are located outside the Reuse
Areas. ‘

3.4.4 Urban Parks

The urban parks category includes public open space within more densely developed
areas which are anticipated as being subject to more intense use. They are associated
with central features of Mare Island such as the Strait or the Historic Core. Design
treatment is predominately hardscape.

(A) Waterfront Promenade

One of Mare Island’s greatest assets is its waterfront along Mare Island Strait. The
proposed Waterfront Promenade provides opportunities for a variety of experiences based
on the character and amount of the development to the west and the type of water habitat
to the east. Specific details about the reuse and enhancement of the waterfront will be
developed through an overall plan prepared for the waterfront that will be submitted to
the San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC) for
approval.

As shown by Figui‘e 3-3, the Waterfront Promenade is conceived as an urban walkway
that extends from the Causeway north and south to the Historic Core Plaza and shipyard
area through Reuse Areas 3A, 3B and 4. North of the Causeway, a pedestrian and
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bicycle pathway will connect the Promenade, through Reuse Area 1A (and under SR 37), I
to existing access trails in the adjacent San Pablo Bay National Wildlife Refuge. This
urban linear parkway is intended to reflect the character of the City waterfront directly
across the river and, where the opportunity exists, may be linked to the inland parks and
the regional park by shared pedestrian/bicycle paths. Although the basic configuration of
the Waterfront Promenade will be within the boundary of the anticipated State Lands
Commission ownership, adjacent private areas may be designed to interface with the
Waterfront Promenade by providing compatible improvements. ' This urban linear

- Waterfront Promenade will be owned by the State Lands Commission and either leased
to or, as per proposed legislation, owned by the City-of Vallejo.

(B)  Historic Core Plaza

This urban park provides a link between the Waterfront Promenade and other parks in the
community and serves the surrounding commercial uses, including the proposed museum
and ship exhibits. It also provides a potential location for gatherings, markets, festivals,
and other public events. Design criteria and guidelines for the plaza are provided in the
Urban Design Section of the Plan (4.7.7) and in the Histerie-GuidelinesHistoric Project
Guidelines (Appendix B.1).

The development of the Plaza is considered to be part of the surrounding commercial
development plan for Reuse Area 4, although the Plaza will be City owned. When the
project is designed and constructed, each use and/or property owner around the Plaza
should be allocated and assessed a fair share of the cost of converting and refurbishing
the Plaza from an industrial yard to a pedestrian mall. These assessed fees would be
placed in an escrow account to be used to fund the Plaza improvements. Maintenance of
the Plaza could be provided by the City or an association made up of all-the-commereiat
tand-ewnerscommercial tenants and land owners on the Istand-Island. An association or
some similar funding entity, such as -€an assessment district or a Community Facilities
District (CFD), may help provide for and share the costs of parking for the visitors to the
Plaza and, possibly, for a large portion of possible future passenger shuttle service which
could serve many of the visitors.

3.4.5 Pocket Parks -

Pocket parks are small open space areas less than two acres in size that are associated
with individual neighborhoods. They may provide playgrounds, small free play space, or
simply be visual focal points at key intersections and entries. Parks in this category are
considered to be too small to be acceptable for dedication to the GVRD and are proposed
to be privately developed, owned by the City and maintained by a community facilities
district.

Pocket parks would constitute approximately seven acres of the total developed

recreation area in the master development area, as identified in the Development Program
(Table 3-2). Some of these parks will be include landscape features that contribute to the |
character of surrounding residential neighborhoods, including Crescent Park, Hilltop
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3.5

Commons, and Hilltop Circle. Other pocket parks, notably Crescent Playground, Coral
Sea Playground and Townhome Square, will be playgrounds that serve nearby residential
uses. North and South Grove Parks will be located adjacent to the proposed Flagship
Drive through Reuse Areas 6 and 8 (see Figure 5-1: Street Framework) and may be
included within the parkway right-of-way and maintained as part of the streetscape.

LAND USE PROGRAM BY REUSE AREA

This section of the Land Use Plan expands upon the summary overview provided in
Section 3.3 and the land use categories described in Section 3.2. Each Reuse Area is
briefly described, and designated uses are discussed in detail, as outlined in Table 3-2
(Development Program by Reuse Area). Development within each of the Reuse Areas
within the Historic District is dependent upon compliance with the Historie
GauidelinesHistoric Project Guidelines (Appendix B.1).

The square footages provided in the Development Program by Reuse Area should be
understood as “targets” for each land use category based on square footage of existing
buildings and anticipated infill. These programmatic target figures are intended to serve
as a guide for achieving the development goals for each area of Mare Island. They also
provide a basis for infrastructure planning. It is assumed that buildout and leasing
activities are unlikely to match exactly the programmatic square footages for the mix of
land uses outlined in Table 3-2. The totals, however, do represent an approximation of
the highest level of development intensity. The Specific Plan Land Use Policies
regarding flexibility within the overall land use development program totals allow for the
fine tuning of proposed development intensities so that space may be effectively leased
and jobs secured.
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*Qualifying Notes for Table 3-2: Development Program by Reuse Area

i Building areas include proposed buildings and existing buildings to
remain.
i Civic Use in Reuse Area 4 includes some historic buildings not under the

control of the Master Developer.

iii Civic use in Reuse Area 9 is part of- Touro University development |
program total square footage.

iv Building area totals do not include utility facilities.

v Roosevelt Terrace (29 acres) is privately developed with-approximately
300-dwelling-units-and is no longer part of the Specific Plan Area.

3.5.2 Reuse Area 1A (North Island Industrial Park)

The North Island Industrial Park (Reuse Area 1A) contains a total of 155 acres situated in
the northern portion of Mare Island. It has direct access to the State Route 37
interchange. State Route 37 and the North Gate form the northern boundary; G Street
and the Causeway form the southern boundary. To the west are Reuse Area 1B and
wetland areas, and to the east are wetlands and Mare Island Strait. A large pier extends
from Reuse Area 1A 1nto Mare Island Strait. This Reuse Area is not within the Historic
District.

This Reuse Area will be developed primarily with light industrial, warehouse and office
uses in a contemporary office park. A small commercial area to serve primarily office
park users will be located at the entrance. The Waterfront Promenade will extend the
length of the eastern edge of the area on the upland portion.

(A) Land Use

Given the direct freeway access and the relative absence of historic properties, Reuse
Area 1A is intended for comprehensive development with new buildings as a
warehouse/distribution district or office park.

Approximately 29 acres in Reuse Area 1A are to be dedicated as a conservation
casement.

The proposed development program for Reuse Area 1A is 772:600-1.222.000 |
square feet of mixed-use (54,000 office/R&D; 348,000 retail; and 370,000
warehouse), and 450,000 square feet heavy- light industrial) and 6,000 square feet |
educational/civic.
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3.5.3 Reuse Area 1B (Northwest Industrial Area)

Reuse Area 1B, a 37-acre industrial and warehousing site, will be part of the major
industrial development at the northern end of Mare Island near the State Route 37
interchange. It is separated from Reuse Area 1A by Azuar Drive on the east and, on the
south, west and north, is bordered by wetlands, and an inactive dredge disposal area.

(A) Land Use

Reuse Area 1B is identified for development with approximately 700,000 square feet of
industrial uses including $20;600- 516,563 square feet of mixed use (25;000-square-feet
ofoffice/Ré&D; 175;271,128000 squar